
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JUNE 18, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of        

City government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public 

needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual 

strategic planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 -  -  

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

June 18, 2007 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Service Commendation – Brian Stoutenburg........................................................ 1 
b) Service Commendation – Neall Schroeder........................................................... 1 
c) Proclamation in Recognition of Jack and Pearl Kotter on the Occasion of 

Their 50th Anniversary .......................................................................................... 1 
d) Proclamation Celebrating 30 Years Beaumont Hospital Troy – Presented to 

Tom Brisse, Senior Vice President and Hospital Director..................................... 1 
e) Presentation of Check by the Historical Society Regarding Purchase of 100 

W. Wattles ............................................................................................................ 1 
f) Presentation of Loss Control Award from the Michigan Municipal League 

Workers’ Compensation Fund .............................................................................. 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Special Assessment Roll for Asphalt Paving of the Easterly ½ of Eckford in 
Section 15 – Project No. 06.202.1 1 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 

 

C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Articles IV and 
XXII – Adult Business Uses 2 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. 3 

D-2 Appointment to Boards and Committees: City Council Appointment: Board of 
Zoning Appeals 3 

CONSENT AGENDA: 4 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 4 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): 5 

a) Parks and Recreation Month – July, 2007............................................................ 5 
b) Beaumont Hospital Troy – Celebrating 30 Years.................................................. 5 
c) Jack and Pearl Kotter – 50th Anniversary ............................................................. 5 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 5 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Library Bathroom 
Renovations.......................................................................................................... 5 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds on Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expenses – 
Michigan Municipal League (MML) Board of Trustees Meetings .......................... 5 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 07-3 – 
Livernois Road Resurfacing, Maple to Big Beaver Project No. 07.101.5.............. 5 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreement – Fleet Vehicles.................................................................................. 6 

e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – One (1) Trailer Mounted Sewer Jet ............................................ 6 

f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Development 
Approval/Permit Process Consultant .................................................................... 6 

E-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #65 – 
Sidwell #88-20-01-151-049 – Mark and Elizabeth Abro 7 



 
 

 

E-6 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival 7 

E-7 Private Agreement for Beaumont Critical Care – Project No. 06.933.3 7 

E-8 Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield from Special City Council 
Meeting of Monday, June 11, 2007 7 

E-9 2006/07 Budget Amendment No. 2 8 

E-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #69 – Sidwell #88-20-01-151-
046 – Mark and Elizabeth Abro 8 

E-11 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions – South Side of Hickory from 
Livernois to Plum 8 

E-12 Private Agreement for The Village at Big Beaver – Phase I Project No. 07.902.3 9 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 9 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 9 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historical Commission; Historic District Commission; 
Municipal Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board c) City Council 
Appointments – Students: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Cable 
Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic District Commission; 
Historical Commission; Library Advisory Board; Liquor Advisory Committee; Parks 
& Recreation; Planning Commission; Traffic Committee and Troy Daze Committee 9 

F-2 Bid Waiver – Sole Source Purchase – Chemical Munitions 12 

F-3 Bid Waiver – Sole Source – Irrigation Supplies 13 

F-4 Replacement of City Code Chapter 86 – Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 13 

F-5 Appointment of Voting Delegate for the June 21, 2007 SEMCOG General 
Assembly Meeting 14 



 
 

 

F-6 2007 Part-time Wage Recommendations 15 

F-7 2007 Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and Proposed 
Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations 15 

F-8 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services - SOCRRA 15 

F-9 Final Approval – The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD 7) – 
Proposed Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development, Southwest corner of 
Big Beaver and John R, Section 26 – M-1 (Light Industrial) District 16 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 18 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 18 

a) LMS – 5755 New King - Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) and 
the Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – July 23, 
2007 ................................................................................................................... 18 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 18 

a) Adult Use Businesses – Licensing Ordinance .................................................... 18 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 18 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 18 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 18 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 18 

REPORTS: 18 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 18 

a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – March 6, 2007 .................................. 18 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – May 2, 2007 .............. 18 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – May 2, 2007 .............. 18 
d) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – May 2, 2007 ........................................ 18 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 22, 2007................................ 18 
f) Personnel Board/Draft – May 29, 2007 .............................................................. 18 
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 6, 2007 ....................................... 18 



 
 

 

h) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – June 7, 2007 .................................... 18 

J-2 Department Reports: 18 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of May, 2007 ............. 18 
b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – Mid-Thumb Auctioneering 

Services – April, 2007......................................................................................... 18 
c) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – May 31, 2007 ....................................... 18 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 18 

a) Letter of Thanks to Jennifer Lawson from Oakland University’s Pre-College 
Programs Staff and the Water Festival Committee Members for Supporting 
and Presenting at the 2007 Clinton River Water Festival ................................... 18 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Proposed 18 

J-5  Calendar 18 

J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Program 
Year 2007 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocation 19 

J-7  Communication from Information Technology Director Gert Paraskevin and 
Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart Regarding Archiving City Council 
Meeting Webcasts on the Website 19 

J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Norma J. Robertson v. 
City of Troy 19 

J-9  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Hookah Cafes 19 

J-10  Communication Regarding Water Billing Issues – June, 2007 19 

STUDY ITEMS: 19 

K-1 Discussion of the Futures Report 19 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 19 

CLOSED SESSION: 19 

L-1 Closed Session: 19 



 
 

 

RECESSED 20 

RECONVENED 20 

ADJOURNMENT 20 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 20 

Monday, July 23, 2007............................................................................................. 20 
1. LMS, 5755 New King - Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) ......... 20 
2. LMS, 5755 New King - Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC)................................................................................................ 20 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 20 

Monday, July 9, 2007 Regular City Council........................................................... 20 
Monday, July 23, 2007 Regular City Council......................................................... 20 
Wednesday, August 1, 2007 Special Joint City Council-Chamber of Commerce . 20 
Monday, August 6, 2007 Regular City Council...................................................... 20 
Monday, August 20, 2007 Regular City Council.................................................... 20 
Monday, September 10, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................. 20 
Monday, September 17, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................. 20 
Monday, October 1, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................... 20 
Monday, October 15, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................. 20 
Monday, November 12, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 20 
Monday, November 19, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 20 
Monday, December 3, 2007 Regular City Council ................................................ 20 
Monday, December 17, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 20 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Service Commendation – Brian Stoutenburg 
b) Service Commendation – Neall Schroeder 
c) Proclamation in Recognition of Jack and Pearl Kotter on the Occasion of Their 50th 

Anniversary  
d) Proclamation Celebrating 30 Years Beaumont Hospital Troy – Presented to Tom Brisse, 

Senior Vice President and Hospital Director  
e) Presentation of Check by the Historical Society Regarding Purchase of 100 W. Wattles  
f) Presentation of Loss Control Award from the Michigan Municipal League Workers’ 

Compensation Fund  
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Special Assessment Roll for Asphalt Paving of the Easterly ½ of Eckford in 
Section 15 – Project No. 06.202.1 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council has caused Special Assessment roll no. 06.202.1 to be prepared 
for the purpose of defraying the Special Assessment District’s portion of the following described 
public improvement in the City of Troy; 
 

Bituminous Paving of Easterly ½ of Eckford Street 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, Troy City Council and the City Assessor have met after due legal notice and have 
reviewed said special assessment roll and have heard all persons interested in said special 
assessment roll appearing at said hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council is satisfied with said Special Assessment Roll as prepared by the 
City Assessor; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS Special 
Assessment Roll No. 06.202.1 in the amount of $428,100.00 as prepared by the City Assessor, 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Articles IV and XXII 

– Adult Business Uses 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, It is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their very nature, have 
serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly when several of them are 
concentrated under certain circumstances or when one (1) or more of them are located in near 
proximity to a residential zone, thereby having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. 
Special regulation of these uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will not 
contribute to the blighting or downgrading of the surrounding neighborhood.  These controls are 
for the purpose of preventing a concentration of these uses within any one (1) area, or to 
prevent deterioration or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. These controls do not 
legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other applicable laws;  
 
WHEREAS, In regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this ordinance to promote the 
health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the City of Troy, and to establish 
reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious secondary effects of adult 
business uses within the City of Troy. The provisions of this ordinance have neither the purpose 
nor effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable access to any 
communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. Similarly, it is neither the intent 
nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny access by adults to sexually oriented materials 
protected by the First Amendment, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of 
sexually oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor effect of this 
ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material; and 
 
WHEREAS, Based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult business uses 
presented in reports made available to the City Council, and on findings incorporated in the 
cases of City of Renton v. Playtime Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini 
Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), and other cases; and reports of secondary effects occurring in 
and around adult business uses, including, but not limited to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, 
Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City OK, Cleburne 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

TX, Dallas TX, Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix County WI, the Planning 
Commission finds that adult business uses as a category of establishments are correlated with 
harmful secondary effects, and that the foregoing reports are reasonably believed to be 
relevant to the problems that the City of Troy is seeking to abate and prevent in the future; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Articles IV 
Definitions and XXII B-3 General Business District, pertaining to permitting Adult Business 
Uses subject to Special Use Approval in the B-3 District, as printed on the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the amendments to Articles IV Definitions and XXII B-3 
General Business District, SHALL BE EFFECTIVE upon the adoption, publication, and 
effective date of amendments to Chapters 3, 60, and the enactment of Chapter 76.     
 
Yes: 
No:  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. 
 
Pending Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Nick 
Karagiannakis and Leslie Karagiannakis, husband and wife, and Garrett Family Limited 
Partnership, a Michigan Limited Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al., (Oakland County Circuit 
Court Case No. 07-083014-CZ) and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately 
represent the City. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
D-2 Appointment to Boards and Committees: City Council Appointment: Board of 

Zoning Appeals 
 
(b)  City Council Appointment 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular; 1-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Michael Bartnik  Unexpired Term 04/30/09 
 
Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Proposed Resolution – City Council 
Appointments to the Board of Zoning Appeals to include the name of Tom Krent in the 
nominations for Board of Zoning Appeals member for the unexpired term of April 30, 2009. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06-  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of June 4, 2007 
and the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Special City Council Meeting of June 11, 2007 be APPROVED 
as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) Parks and Recreation Month – July, 2007 
b) Beaumont Hospital Troy – Celebrating 30 Years  
c) Jack and Pearl Kotter – 50th Anniversary  
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Library Bathroom 

Renovations                    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the Troy Public 
Library Bathroom Renovations to the low bidder, D & S Contractors, Inc. of Berkley, MI, at 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened May 30, 2007, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds on Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expenses – Michigan 
Municipal League (MML) Board of Trustees Meetings                    

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds is AUTHORIZED for travel expenses associated 
with Council Member Robin Beltramini’s attendance of all meetings required as a result of her 
appointment to the Michigan Municipal League Board of Trustees which expires in September 
of 2008. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder Contract 07-3 – Livernois 

Road Resurfacing, Maple to Big Beaver Project No. 07.101.5                    
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-3, Livernois Road 
Resurfacing, Maple to Big Beaver, to Cadillac Asphalt LLC, 4751 White Lake Road, Clarkston, 
MI 48346 at an estimated total cost of $787,855.94; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles                    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase seven (7) 2008 
Ford Crown Victoria blue and white patrol cars from Signature Ford of Owosso, MI, through a 
Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for an estimated total cost of $147,077.00. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – One (1) Trailer Mounted Sewer Jet                    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to purchase one (1) Trailer 
Mounted Sewer Jet to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc. of 
Northville, MI for an estimated total cost of $59,820.00, as detailed in the bid tabulation opened 
May 2, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Fleet Maintenance Division is AUTHORIZED to accept 
or reject the trade-in offer of $7,500.00 for the sewer jet, pending the results to offer the 
equipment for sale on the open market at an amount greater than $7,500.00.  
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Development 

Approval/Permit Process Consultant                    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract for development 
approval/permit process consulting services to Zucker Systems of San Diego, CA, the bidder 
with the highest score as a result of a best value process, which the Troy City Council 
determines to be in the public interest, at an estimated total cost of $58,700.00; and    
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

requirements; and if additional work is required that could not be foreseen, such additional work 
is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost, at unit prices 
contained in the schedule of values opened April 24, 2007, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
E-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, 

Square Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #65 – 
Sidwell #88-20-01-151-049 – Mark and Elizabeth Abro  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Mark and Elizabeth Abro, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-
01-151-049, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $12,100.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary acquisition and closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement. 
 
E-6 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ISSUES a fireworks permit to Mad Bomber 
Fireworks Productions, of Kingsbury, IN for the display of fireworks at the conclusion of the 
2007 Troy Daze Festival on September 16, 2007. 
 
E-7 Private Agreement for Beaumont Critical Care – Project No. 06.933.3  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Beaumont Services 
Co., LLC for the installation of, water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, paving, soil erosion 
and landscaping and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield from Special City Council 

Meeting of Monday, June 11, 2007 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem 
Broomfield due to being out of the county at the Special City Council meeting of June 11, 2007.  
 
E-9 2006/07 Budget Amendment No. 2 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2006/07 Budget Amendment No. 
2 as submitted, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
E-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Regrading and 

Temporary Construction Permit, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #69 – Sidwell #88-20-01-151-046 
– Mark and Elizabeth Abro 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Mark and Elizabeth Abro, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-
01-151-046, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road 
Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of $17,800.00, plus 
closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permit in the amount of $200.00 from Mark and Elizabeth Abro, 
owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-01-151-046; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit with the Oakland County Register 
of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions – South Side of Hickory from 

Livernois to Plum 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the no parking restrictions on the south 
side of Hickory from Livernois to Plum, on June 24, 2007, between the hours of 1:00 PM and 
10:00 PM. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

E-12 Private Agreement for The Village at Big Beaver – Phase I Project No. 07.902.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and SAAAM-TROY, 
LLC, for the installation of sanitary sewer, water main, and concrete left-turn lane, walkway, 
approach and concrete curb and gutter on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historical Commission; Historic District Commission; 
Municipal Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board c) City Council 
Appointments – Students: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 
Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic District 
Commission; Historical Commission; Library Advisory Board; Liquor Advisory 
Committee; Parks & Recreation; Planning Commission; Traffic Committee and 
Troy Daze Committee     

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council  (7- Regular) 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/10 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/10 
 
Historic District Commission  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 03/01/10 
 
Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (7 Regular) – 3 Year Terms (1-Troy School Board: 1-Troy Daze: 
 1-Adv. Committee for Sr. Citizens) – 1 Year Term 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(c) City Council Appointments - Students 
 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following student(s) to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/08 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/08 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Historic District Commission  
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/08 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Library Advisory Board 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/08 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/08 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Planning Commission 
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/08 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 

Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Bid Waiver – Sole Source Purchase – Chemical Munitions 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

WHEREAS, Chemical munitions are a necessary part of the successful resolution of a tactical 
incident and assists law enforcement in the advancement of its main purpose and goal which is 
to protect life and property;  
 
WHEREAS, Certain aspects of tactical incidents depend upon and cannot be advanced without 
the use of chemical munitions; and 
 
WHEREAS, DEF-TEC (Defense Technologies) is the sole manufacturer and supplier of 
chemical munitions equipment;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and APPROVES a contract to purchase chemical munitions from DEF-TEC 
(Defense Technologies) of Casper, WY for an estimated total cost of $16,580.00.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Bid Waiver – Sole Source – Irrigation Supplies 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On June 16, 2003, a two-year contract to provide Rainbird irrigation replacement 
parts was awarded to the authorized dealer/distributor for Michigan, John Deere Landscapes, 
Inc. of Madison Heights, MI (Resolution #2003-06-335);  
 
WHEREAS, On June 20, 2005 a contract renewal was approved under the same pricing 
structure, terms and conditions (Resolution #2005-06-299-E-4a); and  
 
WHEREAS, John Deere Landscapes, Inc., the exclusive distributor, has agreed to renew the 
contract to provide irrigation parts and materials directly to the City of Troy at greatly reduced 
prices under the same pricing structure, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and APPROVES a two-year contract to provide Rainbird, MAXICOM, and other 
irrigation parts and materials with John Deere Landscapes, Inc. of Madison Heights, MI, at 
discounts up to 46% expiring June 30, 2009. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Replacement of City Code Chapter 86 – Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy strives to protect our Natural Resources and the Environment;   
 
WHEREAS, The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality mandates that all 
municipalities that are soil erosion and sedimentation control enforcement agencies have an 
approved soil erosion ordinance that addresses all requirements set forth by Part 91 of the 
Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, Public Act 451, and the promulgated 
Administrative Rules under Part 91; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Engineering Department has worked diligently with the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality to draft an approved ordinance;  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS City Code Chapter 86, Soil Erosion 
and Sedimentation Control, as previously accepted for approval by the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality on April 5, 2007 and ATTACHED hereto; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, This Ordinance Chapter SHALL REPLACE the current City 
Code Chapter 86 in its entirety; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution and City Code Chapter 86 
SHALL BE FORWARDED for approval to the Water Bureau of the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Appointment of Voting Delegate for the June 21, 2007 SEMCOG General Assembly 

Meeting 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, SEMCOG voting delegate Robin Beltramini and SEMCOG alternate voting 
delegate Mark Miller are both unable to attend the June 21, 2007 SEMCOG General Assembly 
meeting at the Sheraton Novi; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council APPOINTS       to be the 
voting delegate at the June 21, 2007 SEMCOG General Assembly meeting in the absence of 
both Robin Beltramini and Mark Miller. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

F-6 2007 Part-time Wage Recommendations 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 Part-Time Wage 
Recommendations as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 2007 Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and Proposed 

Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 Classification and Pay Plans 
as recommended by City Management and the Personnel Board, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 changes to 
the benefit package provided to Classified and Exempt employees as recommended by City 
Management and the Personnel Board, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby APPROVES the revision to the 
Personnel Rules & Regulations for Classified personnel, as recommended by City Management 
and the Personnel Board, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services - SOCRRA 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 16 - 

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement for the 
City of Troy to provide fleet maintenance services to SOCRRA, and the City Clerk and Mayor 
are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreement. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-9 Final Approval – The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD 7) – 

Proposed Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development, Southwest corner of 
Big Beaver and John R, Section 26 – M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-06- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner SAAAM-Troy, LLC has requested Final Planned Unit Development 
approval, pursuant to article 35.60.021, for The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit 
Development (PUD – 7), located on the south side of Big Beaver and west side of John R 
Road, located in section 26, within the M-1 zoning district, being approximately 15.048 acres in 
size;  
 
WHEREAS, City Council granted Preliminary Planned Unit Development Approval of PUD – 7, 
with conditions, on April 30, 2007;  
 
WHEREAS, The Final Planned Unit Development application is consistent with the application 
that received Preliminary Planned Unit Development Approval, including conditions;  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Eligibility Requirements set forth in Article 35.30.00 
and the General Development Standards set forth in Section 35.40.00;    
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development, parts of parcels 88-20-26-200-026, -
023, -069, -072, -073, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the 
attached Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE 1/4 of Section 26 
 
Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 26, thence S 00°04'00" W along the 
East line of said Section 26, a distance of 102.00 ft.; thence N 89°59'10" W (recorded as 
S 89°50'00" E), 60.00 ft. along the extension of the south line of Big Beaver Road (204 ft. 
wide) to the Point of Beginning; thence S 00°04'00" along the west line of John R. Rd., 
1032.00 ft.; thence parallel to said North line of Section 26, N 89°59'10" W, 260.00 ft.; 
thence parallel to said East line of Section 26, S 00°04'00" W, 144.00 ft.; thence parallel 
to said North line of Section 26, N 89°59'10" W, 160 ft.; thence parallel to said East line 
of Section 26, N 00°04"00" E, 338.00 ft.; thence parallel to said North line of Section 26, 
N 89°59'10" W, 235.00 ft.; thence N 00°16'31" W, 838.01 ft. (recorded as N 00°16'24" W, 
839.09 ft.) to the aforementioned south line of Big Beaver Rd.; thence S 89°59'10" E 
(recorded as N 89°50'00" E) along said south line, 660.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning; 
containing 15.048 acres more or less; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 17 - 

 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development requires that transfer by Quit Claim 
Deed of a small portion of property owned by the City but not used for roadway that is located 
to the north of Lincoln Road to the property owner for inclusion of that property into the 
proposed Planned Unit Development and the City has determined that no retention of any 
easements are necessary; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to sign a Quit Claim Deed 
conveying to SAAAM-TROY,LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, the City’s interest, if any,  
in the property legally described as: 
 
 “A described area over part of the Northeast ¼ of Section 26, 
            Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Oakland County 
            Michigan and being more particularly described as: Commencing 
  at the Northeast corner of said Section 26; thence S00°04’00”W,  
            940.00 feet along east line of said Section 26; thence N89°59’10”W,  
            60.00 feet to the west line of John R Road (120’ wide) and the 
            Point of Beginning; thence continuing N89°59’10”W, 325.00 feet; 
            thence N00°00’50”E, 25.00 feet; thence S89°59’10”E, 325.00 feet  
            to the west line to the Point of Beginning.” Parcel No. 88-20-26-200-073 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Zoning District Map of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance be AMENDED to delineate the subject parcel as PUD-007; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to 
execute the Development Agreement for The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development, 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development 
Agreement be RECORDED with the Oakland County Register of Deeds; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the applicant shall SEEK and RECEIVE all required permits, 
licenses or approvals, including but not limited to, Federal, State of Michigan, Oakland County 
and City of Troy agencies or departments, in accordance with all applicable laws. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 18 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) LMS – 5755 New King - Request for Industrial Development District (IDD) and the 

Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) – July 23, 2007       
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a)  Adult Use Businesses – Licensing Ordinance 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced   
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – March 6, 2007  
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – May 2, 2007  
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – May 2, 2007 
d) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – May 2, 2007  
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 22, 2007 
f) Personnel Board/Draft – May 29, 2007  
g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 6, 2007 
h) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – June 7, 2007 
 
J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of May, 2007  
b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services – April, 

2007  
c) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – May 31, 2007 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Jennifer Lawson from Oakland University’s Pre-College Programs 

Staff and the Water Festival Committee Members for Supporting and Presenting at the 
2007 Clinton River Water Festival     

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Proposed 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 19 - 

J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Program 
Year 2007 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocation 

 
-7  Communication from Information Technology Director Gert Paraskevin and J

Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart Regarding Archiving City Council 
Meeting Webcasts on the Website 

tson v. 
 
J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Norma J. Rober

City of Troy  

-9  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding Hookah Cafes 
 
J
 
J-10  Communication Regarding Water Billing Issues – June, 2007  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  

-1 Discussion of the Futures Report 
 
K
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 

henever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
 it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 

satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

LOSED SESSION: 

:   

w
are encouraged to bring

 
C

L-1 Closed Session
 
Suggested Resolution 

esolution #2007-06- 

E IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
5.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of 

, et. al.        

es: 

R
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
B
MCL 1
Troy
 
Y



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  June 18, 2007 
 

- 20 - 

No: 
 
 

ECESSEDR  
 

ECONVENEDR  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, July 23, 2007 
LMS, 5755 New King - Request for Industrial Development District (IDD)  

2. LMS, 5755 New King - Issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC)  

 
 

1. 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, July 9, 2007 ................................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, July 23, 2007 .............................................................. Regular City Council 
Wednesday, August 1, 2007 ....... Special Joint City Council-Chamber of Commerce 
Monday, August 6, 2007............................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, August 20, 2007.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 10, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 17, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 1, 2007 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 15, 2007 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, November 12, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 19, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 3, 2007 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 17, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



Service Commendation 
BRIAN STOUTENBURG 

 
WHEREAS, Brian Stoutenburg began his career with the City of Troy Public Library in 1997 when he was hired as 
Library Director, building upon an already extensive career in Library Administration including libraries in New York, 
Ohio, North Carolina, and Georgia.  His dedication to the City has been extensive and his accomplishments many; and 
 
WHEREAS, Brian’s leadership enabled the Library to embrace technological advances with the creation of 
Technology Centers with a specialized staff.  E-books, online audio books and video were also introduced and the 
Library Academy was developed for staff continuing education and public classes in computer use.  In addition, Library 
programs were greatly expanded to include the arts and cultural diversity; the International Language Collection was 
started, a café was added and Teen Services were established; and 
 
WHEREAS, During his tenure, the Library won two awards for excellence in customer service delivery and items 
checked out per year increased by 91 percent, (from 776,00 to 1,478,000).  Under his leadership, the Library became 
second best in the state and 13th in the nation based on size; and 
 
WHEREAS, Brian’s efforts extended to the Troy Museum, working to increase the variety of public programs.  He also 
helped in the move of the Historic Church and Parsonage to the Village Green; and 
 
WHEREAS, Brian retired from the City of Troy on April 12, 2007 after 30 years of Library Administration, including 10 
years of dedicated service to the City of Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, In his retirement, Brian plans to travel to Traverse City, Charlevoix, Vermont and Washington D.C.  He 
will also find time to visit his Dad and his two sisters in North Carolina; and 
 
WHEREAS, Brian will also find time to write, compose music and spend time with friends; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this opportunity to express its 
appreciation to Brian Stoutenburg for his many contributions to the betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, City management, and 
the citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health and happiness to Brian during his retirement 
years. 
 
Presented the 18th day of June 2007. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



 
Service Commendation 

NEALL SCHROEDER 
 
 
WHEREAS, Neall started his career with the City of Troy on July 6, 1987 when he was hired as 
City Engineer with the Engineering Department; and  
 
WHEREAS, In December 2000, Neall retired as the City Engineer, but on January 1, 2001 he 
assumed new duties as a City of Troy Civil Engineer with the Engineering Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, Though very quiet and unassuming in his day-to-day work, Neall’s dedication to 
the City and our residents and his reputation for great customer service is well recognized; and 
 
WHEREAS, Neall retired from the City on June 11, 2007 after 20 years of dedicated service 
with the City of Troy and over 30 additional years prior to Troy with MDOT, AJAX Paving and  
other municipalities including the cities of Rochester Hills and Detroit; and 
 
WHEREAS, In his retirement, Neall will have more time to spend with his wife Dorothy, his 
daughter Amy, son Steven, daughter-in-law Nikki and grandchildren Michael and Emma and   
now organize his home & belongings before downsizing to a condo and find some new hobbies 
other than working since he has always loved his jobs; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, That the City Council of the City of Troy takes this 
opportunity to express its appreciation to Neall Schroeder for his many contributions to the 
betterment of the City; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, 
City Management, and the citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good health 
and happiness to Neall during his retirement years. 
 
Presented the 18th day of June 2007. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



PROCLAMATION 
IN RECOGNITION OF JACK AND PEARL KOTTER 

ON THE OCCASION OF THEIR 50TH ANNIVERSARY 
 
WHEREAS, Jack and Pearl (Buck) Kotter were united in marriage on June 22, 1957 at Duns Scotus College 
in Southfield after meeting at Detroit Edison in 1955 and are now celebrating their 50th Wedding Anniversary 
surrounded by family and friends; and   
 
WHEREAS, This marriage has been blessed with two daughters and one son: Laurie, Kathy, and Mike who 
received from their parents the kind of loving and happy life that develops good citizens and worthy adults; and 
 
WHEREAS, Son Mike and daughter-in-law Kim reside in Akron, Ohio with their two children Olivia and Jonny; 
daughter Laurie and son-in-law Gary reside in Glen Rock, Pennsylvania with their children Matthew and Julia; 
and daughter Kathy lives in Clinton Township; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jack worked for many years as an engineer with Detroit Edison and then switched to the 
automotive business as a manufacturer’s rep and Pearl was employed at Detroit Edison until her recent 
retirement after 28 years; and  
 
WHEREAS, In addition to providing for their family a legacy of wit, wisdom, and love throughout the years, 
Jack and Pearl have found time to participate in social, church, and civic organizations.  Jack has been a 
musician since the age of 14 and currently performs with One Beat Back, a local Big Band Orchestra and 
works part-time as a starter at Stoney Creek Golf Course and Pearl sings with the Edison Glee Club and their 
Church Choir and works part-time at Kohl’s jewelry department; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jack and Pearl Kotter have earned the respect of all with whom they have come into contact, 
and the love and affection of their children, grandchildren and a host of wonderful friends; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Jack and Pearl Kotter are worthy of this expression of our 
sincere congratulations on this happy occasion of their 50th wedding anniversary; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council and all of Troy’s residents extend best wishes to 
Jack and Pearl for many more years of good health and happiness together.  
 
Presented this 18th day of June 2007. 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01c



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING 30 YEARS   

BEAUMONT HOSPITAL TROY 
 
 

WHEREAS, The dedicated medical professionals at Beaumont Troy have met the health care needs of the 
community 24 hours a day, seven days a week since first opening their doors on May 1, 1977; and 
 
WHEREAS, In that first year of service to the community, the 200-bed hospital admitted 2,508 patients, performed 
2,030 surgeries and treated 9,942 emergency patients.  On Beaumont Troy’s 30th Anniversary, the 296-bed 
hospital’s most recent yearly statistics include 22,604 inpatients, 21,187 operations and 66,603 emergency visits.  
Beaumont Troy ranks third in the nation for admissions and fourth nationwide for surgeries, for hospitals its size; and 
 
WHEREAS, The good work at Beaumont, Troy is well recognized.  Health care consultant Solucient has honored 
Beaumont Troy seven times since 1998, ranking it on its list of “100 Top Hospitals” in the nation for high-quality care 
and efficiency of operations in the “Teaching Hospital” category.  In 2006, U.S. News & World Report named the 
hospital to its “America’s Best Hospitals” list in two medical specialty categories:  Neurology/Neurosurgery and 
Respiratory Disorders; and 
 
WHEREAS, Through the years Beaumont Troy has achieved many milestones, including seeing their first patient in 
the Family Medicine Center in September 1979, opening the obstetrics unit in December 1992, acquiring Arcadia 
Hospice and renaming it Beaumont Hospice in July 1997, establishing the Roncelli Family Orthopedic Center in June 
2003, cardiovascular surgeons performing the hospital’s first open-heart surgery in December 1993, and the Beaumont 
Board of Directors approving funding for a major expansion to meet the future health care needs of the community; and  
 
WHEREAS, Through it all, Beaumont Troy has maintained a fine reputation for delivering tremendous health care with 
a warmth and friendliness valued throughout the community.  The hospital’s impressive rankings include fourth in the 
U.S. in 2004 and first in Metropolitan Detroit in 2005 for inpatient admissions, seventh in the U.S. in 2004 for outpatient 
surgeries, fourth in the U.S. in 2004 for total surgeries performed, second in Metropolitan Detroit for births in 2005 and 
fourth in Metropolitan Detroit for Emergency Center visits in 2005; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate Beaumont Hospital 
Troy on its 30th Anniversary and recognizes its impact upon thousands and thousands of lives, not just in our local 
community of Troy, but across the world. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community in appreciation and celebration 
of Beaumont Hospital’s 30th Anniversary. 
 
Presented this 18th day of June 2007. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01d



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

A-1 
e) Presentation of Check by the Historical Society 

Regarding Purchase of 100 W. Wattles  

campbellld
Text Box
A-01e



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
A-1 
f) Presentation of Loss Control Award from the Michigan 

Municipal League Workers’ Compensation Fund  

campbellld
Text Box
A-01f



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  
B-1 No Carryover Items  

campbellld
Text Box
B-01



 

 
 
June 18, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Standard Resolution #4 – Asphalt paving on Eckford 

Street in Section 15 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 On May 21, 2007, City Council approved Standard Resolutions 1, 2, and 3, for asphalt paving of 

the easterly portion of Eckford Street, in Section 15.  Standard Resolution #3 set a Public Hearing 
for June 18, 2007, to allow for public input, and to give City Council the opportunity to approve the 
Special Assessment Roll for this project (#06.202.1). 

 
Sixty-eight point one-eight percent (68.18) of the owners (15 of 22) and sixty point eight-four 
percent (60.84) of the frontage of this portion of the street are in favor of the project. 
 
Community Block Grant Development funds are available to pay the Special Assessment for any 
qualifying residents.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Property owners are assessed on a front foot basis for their portion of the cost, as the lots widths 

are not uniform in the project area.  The Special Assessment payment plan is over the standard 
ten (10) years. 

 
The City portion of the project cost will be funded from the Local Road Fund 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations with this item. 

 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



Policy Considerations: 
 

This paving project is in keeping with City Council Goal I; ‘Enhance the livability and safety of the 
community’ by helping to protect residents vehicles, cutting down on air-born dust and dirt, 
providing a safer walking surface, and updating the drainage in the area. 
 
This paving project is in keeping with City Council Goal II; ‘Minimize the cost and increase the 
efficiency and effectiveness of City government’ by reducing the costs of repeated maintenance of 
gravel and dirt roads. 

 
This paving project is in keeping with City Council Goal V; ‘Maintain relevance of public 
infrastructure to meet changing public needs’ in that three (3) other requests for paving this area 
have failed for lack of owner support.  At this time there is a changed public need meeting the 
requirements for a Special Assessment District in this area. 

 
 
Options: 
 
 City Council may move forward with the Special Assessment project by approving Standard 

Resolution #4.  Failure to pass the resolution will end the project at this time, unless another set of 
petitions is submitted, and Standard Resolutions 1, 2, 3, and 4 are then passed,  

 
 
NL/nl H:\SpecialAssess\Eckford\CouncilPak Res 4.06.18.07.doc 



CITY OF TROY

Special Assessment Roll Number: 06.202.1 For defraying the expense of construction for:
Eastery 1/2 Eckford Street Bituminous (Asphalt) Paving

CITY OF TROY
COUNTY OF OAKLAND
STATE OF MICHIGAN

I hereby certify and report that the foregoing is a special assessment roll, and the assessment made by me
pursuant to a resolution of the City Council adopted on the 18 day of June A.D.

2007 , for the purpose of paying that part of the cost which the Council decided should be  paid and borne by
special assessmentfor the purpose of Asphalt Paving of Easterly 1/2 Eckford Street

That in making such assessment I have, as near as may be and according to my judgement, conformed in
all things to the direction contained in the resolution of the Council herinbefore referred to, and the Charter of the City
relating to such assessments.

Dated at the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan on this 18 day of June
A.D., 2007 .

Leger A. (Nino) Licari,          City Assessor

Advertised:

CITY OF TROY
COUNTY OF OAKLAND
STATE OF MICHIGAN

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing assesment roll was filed on the 18 day of
June A.D., 2007 , and approved and confirmed by the Council of the City of Troy on the

18 day of June A.D., 2007 .

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk

In the name of the People of the State of Michigan
To the Treasurer of the City of Troy, in the County of Oakland, Michigan.

You are hereby commanded to collect from each of the several persons assessed in the Special Assessment
Roll hereunto annexed, the amount of money assessed to and set opposite his name therein, said amount being payable in
10 annual installments due August 1, 2008
respectively, with interest at the rate of six percent (6%) per annum or such other rate of interest per annum which is not
in excess of 1% of the rate borne by bonds issued in anticipation of the collection of said special assessment roll from and
after August 1, 2008 .

And in case any named in said Roll shall neglect or refuse to pay his assessment upon demand, after the same
becomes due, you are hereby authorized to levy and collect the same by distress and sale of the goods and chattels of
such person, and return said Roll and Warrant, together with your doing thereon within sixty (60) days;  for so doing this
shall be your sufficient Warrant.

Given under my hand and Seal of the City of Troy, Michigan, this 18 day of June
A.D., 2007 .

Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk



Parcel ID # Street Frontage % Total SAD Cost Match
88-20-15-251-008 785 Eckford 225.00 9.74 7,900.00 8
88-20-15-251-018 873 Eckford 90.00 3.90 3,160.00 2
88-20-15-251-019 901 Eckford 90.00 3.90 3,160.00 2
88-20-15-251-020 927 Eckford 90.00 3.90 3,160.00 2
88-20-15-251-021 955 Eckford 90.00 3.90 3,160.00 2
88-20-15-251-022 959 Eckford 90.00 3.90 3,160.00 2
88-20-15-251-023 841 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 5
88-20-15-251-024 845 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 5
88-20-15-251-033 971 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-251-034 983 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-251-035 995 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-252-010 870 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 5
88-20-15-252-011 876 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 5
88-20-15-252-019 882 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 5
88-20-15-252-020 914 Eckford 112.50 4.87 3,950.00 5
88-20-15-252-022 810 Eckford 95.00 4.11 3,335.56 3
88-20-15-252-023 850 Eckford 130.00 5.63 4,564.44 7
88-20-15-252-024 944 Eckford 98.00 4.24 3,440.89 4
88-20-15-252-025 960 Eckford 127.00 5.50 4,459.11 6
88-20-15-252-043 972 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-252-044 984 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 1
88-20-15-252-045 996 Eckford 85.00 3.68 2,100.00 1

SAD Cost 75,800.00 2,310.00 100.00 75,800.00

971 1-033 2,100.00 1
983 1-034
995 1-035
972 2-043
984 2-044
996 2-045
873 1-018 3,160.00 2
901 1-019
927 1-020
955 1-021
959 1-022
810 2-022 3,335.56 3
944 2-024 3,440.89 4
841 1-023 3,950.00 5
845 1-024
870 2-010
876 2-011
882 2-019
914 2-020
960 2-025 4,459.11 6
850 2-023 4,564.44 7
785 1-008 7,900.00 8

Option "B" - 785 - 996 Eckford

City of Troy - Assessing Department
SAD #06.202.1 Eckford Street Paving





CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
MEETING TO REVIEW THE NECESSITY FOR THE INSTALLATION OF ASPHALT 
PAVING ON THE EASTERLY ½ OF ECKFORD STREET IN SECTION 15, AND TO 
HEAR ANY AND ALL OBJECTIONS TO THE NECESSITY OF THE PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENT AND SAID SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ASSESSED AGAINST SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 06.202.1 IN THE CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN: 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Council will meet at City Hall on the 18th day of June, 
2007 at 7:30 o'clock p.m., for the purpose of reviewing the necessity for the installation of 
Asphalt Paving on the easterly ½  of Eckford Street in Section 15, Project No. 06.202.1, 
and of hearing any and all objections to the necessity of the public improvement and 
Special Assessment made in the matter of construction of the following described 
improvement: 
 
Installation of Asphalt Paving on the easterly ½ of Eckford Street. 
 
The Assessment Roll is on file in the office of the City Clerk for public examination.  The 
Special Assessments therein contained have been assessed according to law against the 
parcels of land constituting Special Assessment District No. 06.202.1, which District is 
described as follows: 
 
T2N, RllE, Section 15 
 
88-20-15-251-033  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-251-034  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-251-035  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-252-043  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-252-044  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-252-045  The special assessment for your property is $ 2,100.00, 
88-20-15-251-018  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,160.00, 
88-20-15-251-019  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,160.00, 
88-20-15-251-020  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,160.00, 
88-20-15-251-021  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,160.00, 
88-20-15-251-022  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,160.00, 
88-20-15-252-022  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,335.56, 
88-20-15-252-024  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,440.89, 
88-20-15-251-023  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00, 
88-20-15-251-024  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00, 
88-20-15-252-010  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00, 
88-20-15-252-011  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00, 
88-20-15-252-019  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00, 
88-20-15-252-020  The special assessment for your property is $ 3,950.00. 
88-20-15-252-025  The special assessment for your property is $ 4,459.11, 
88-20-15-252-023  The special assessment for your property is $ 4,564.44, 
88-20-15-251-008  The special assessment for your property is $ 7,900.00. 
 
The above assessments and all proceedings upon which they are based shall not be 
contestable, unless suit to contest the validity thereof is instituted within thirty (30) days 
after the date of confirmation of said Special Assessment Roll No. 05.202.1 



 
The owner or any person having an interest in the real property may file a written appeal of 
the special assessment with the state tax tribunal within 30 days after the confirmation of 
the special assessment roll if that special assessment was protested at the hearing held for 
the purpose of confirming the roll. 
 

 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
 City Clerk 
 

NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3317 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 



RAYES, YOUKHANNA & MARIAM

785 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4860

HUBER, JOHN & JANICE

810 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4848

FELICIDARIO, CHARITO & IRENIO

841 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4847

FOBAR, JAMES & KAREN

845 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4847

KOWALAK, MARJORIE L

850 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4848

DOEPKE, MITCHELL & LORI

870 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4848

DUDA, DAVID A & CAROL J

873 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4847

ZAWALSKI, MICHAEL & SARAH

876 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4848

MUDALIGE, UPALI PRYANTHA
MUDALIGE, MANORI PRIYANKA
882 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4848

BUTCHKO, BARBARA

901 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4858

PEEPLES, RAYMOND & GEORGIA

914 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4859

KOEHLER, ROBERT & LINDA

927 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4858

JALON, BONITA S

944 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4859

BATTISTI, DENNIS & LINDA

955 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4858

RIFFENBURG, ALAN & JANET

959 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4858

DAVIS, JONATHAN & TAMMY

960 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085-4859

VIJAYASEGAR, VIJAYARATNAM

971 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085

YOUSEF, HELPIS M

972 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085

KAKOS, KAMAL & TALAL

983 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085

REDDI, VELAMPUDI A
VELAMPUDIA, JYOTHIRMAI
984 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085

MEMON, ASHRAF H & SHAHZADI A

995 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085

MANSOUR, ALEXANDER & TANYA

996 ECKFORD
TROY MI 48085



 1

 
 
 
DATE: June 12, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – 

Articles IV and XXII – Adult Business Uses 
 
 
Background: 
 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the May 1, 2007 Regular 

meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 207.   
 
• Presently, adult use businesses are not regulated by the Zoning Ordinance.  The attached 

map indicates all property currently zoned B-1, B-2, B-3, H-S, O-1, O-M and O-S-C that 
could be used for adult business uses under current Zoning Ordinance provisions. 

     
• Regulating adult use businesses is complicated by the fact that courts have consistently 

held that such businesses are engaged in expressive conduct and therefore protected by 
the First Amendment.  Court decisions have determined that communities can regulate 
these uses based on the secondary effects associated with a concentration of these uses.  
Specifically, secondary effects include higher crime rates and lower property values. 

 
• A number of communities in the United States have completed studies that document the 

secondary effects of sexually oriented businesses.  The National Law Center for Children 
and Families prepared summaries of reports prepared by eleven communities in the 
United States (see attached). 

 
• The draft text amendment defines the types of uses and activities that are considered adult 

use businesses.  These uses would be permitted subject to special use approval in the B-3 
district.  The standards limit potential sites to those parcels located at least 1000 feet to 
another adult use business and at least 500 feet from a church, school or childcare facility, 
public park or any residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes.  
There are 28 parcels totaling approximately 118.49 acres available to be used for adult 
business uses. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 2

• This item is tie-barred with the proposed new Chapter 76, Adult Use Business License, of 
the Code of the City of Troy. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The proposed amendment is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and 

safety of the community). 
 
 
Options: 
 
• City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Draft ZOTA 207. 
2. Letter prepared by L. Brooks Patterson, Oakland County Executive, February 18, 2003. 
3. Memo prepared by City Attorneys Office. 
4. Summary of reports prepared by the National Law Center for Children and Families. 
5. Map: All parcels currently zoned B-1, B-2, B-3, H-S, O-1, O-M & O-S-C. 
6. Map: All B-3 zoned parcels in Troy. 
7. Map: B-3 zoned parcels not excluded by the proposed ordinance. 
8. Minutes from May 1, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 207 Sexually Oriented Businesses\CC Public Hearing 06 18 07.doc 



 1

CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the Code of the 
City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article IV and Article XXII of Chapter 39 
Article IV – “Definitions” and Article XXII – “B-3 General Business District” of Chapter 39 of the Code 
of the City of Troy are hereby amended to provide definitions and to regulate adult use businesses by 
special use approval in the B-3 General Business subject to specific conditions and requirements. 
 
Article IV is amended by the addition of the following new sections: 

 
ARTICLE IV – DEFINITIONS 

 
04.20.04A ADULT ARCADE:  An establishment where, for any form of consideration, one or more 

still or motion picture projectors, slide projectors, compact discs or similar machines, or 
other image producing machines, (whether coin-operated, slug-operated or 
electronically, electrically, internet or mechanically controlled), for viewing by five (5) or 
fewer persons each, are used to show films, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact 
discs, slides or other photographic reproductions which are characterized by the 
depiction or description of “specified sexual activities” or “ specified anatomical areas”. 

 
04.20.04B  ADULT BOOK STORE, ADULT NOVELTY OR RETAIL STORE OR ADULT VIDEO 

STORE:  
 

1. An establishment which, as one of its principal business purposes, offers any one 
or more of the following for sale, rental, or viewing at the site, for any form of 
consideration: 

 
a. Books, computer diskettes, tapes or hard drives, magazines, periodicals or 

other printed material, films, motion picture, video cassettes or video 
reproduction, slides or other visual representations which depict or describe 
“specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”; and/or 

 



 2

b. Instruments, devices, or paraphernalia which are designed for use in 
connection with “specified sexual activities”; and/or 

 
c. Items, materials, gimmicks, or paraphernalia depicting, displaying, advertising 

or packaged as “specified sexual activities” or depicting or describing  
“specified anatomical areas”. 

 
2. For purposes of this section, “principal business purpose” means: 
 

a. The devotion of a significant or substantial portion of its stock-in-trade or 
interior floor space; or 

 
b. The receipt of a significant or substantial portion of its revenues from; or 

 
c. The devotion of a significant or substantial portion of its advertising 

expenditures to the promotion of the sale, rental or viewing, of books, 
magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, or photographs, film, motion 
pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides or other visual 
representations, items, materials, gimmicks, or paraphernalia which are 
characterized by the depiction, description display, advertising or packaging 
of “specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”.  

 
3. An establishment may have other principal business purposes that do not involve 

the offering for sale, rental or viewing of materials depicting or describing 
“specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”, and still be 
categorized as an adult bookstore, adult novelty or retail store or adult video 
store.  Such other business purposes will not serve to exempt such 
establishment from being categorized as an adult bookstore, adult novelty store 
or adult video store, so long as the establishment falls within the definition of an 
adult bookstore, adult novelty store or adult video store as set forth above. 

 
04.20.04C ADULT CABARET:  A nightclub, club, bar, restaurant or similar commercial 

establishment which features one or more of the following:  
 

1. Person(s) who appears nude or in a state of nudity or semi-nudity; 
 

2. Live performances which are characterized by the exposure of “specified 
anatomical areas” or by “specified sexual activities”; 

 
3. Films, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides or other 

photographic reproductions which are characterized by the depiction or 
description of “specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas”. 

 
04.20.04D ADULT MOTEL:  A motel, hotel or similar commercial establishment which:  

 
1. Offers accommodations to the public for any form of consideration and provides 

patrons with closed-circuit television transmissions, films, motion pictures, video 
cassettes, compact discs, slides or other photographic reproductions which are 
characterized by the depiction or description of “specified sexual activities” or 



 3

“specified anatomical areas” and which advertises the availability of this adult 
type of material by means of a sign, visible from the public right of way, or by 
means of any off-premises advertising, including but not limited to newspapers, 
magazines, pamphlets or leaflets, radio or television; and/or 

 
2. Permits patrons to be filmed or photographed performing sexually explicit 

activities or displaying “specified anatomical areas”, including transmission over 
the World Wide Web; and/or 

 
3. Offers a sleeping room for rent for intervals of time less than ten (10) hours; 

and/or 
 

4. Allows a tenant or occupant to subrent a sleeping room for intervals of less than 
ten (10) hours. 

 
04.20.04E ADULT MOTION PICTURE THEATER:  A commercial establishment where films, 

motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides of  “specified sexual activities” or 
depictions or descriptions of “specified anatomical areas” are regularly shown for any 
form of consideration. 

 
04.20.04F ADULT THEATER:  A theater, concert hall, auditorium or similar commercial 

establishment which, for any form or consideration, regularly features persons who 
appear in a state of nudity or live performances which are characterized by exposure of 
“specified anatomical areas” or by “specified sexual activities.”  This definition does not 
include a theater which features occasional live nude performances with serious literary, 
artistic, or political value and that have no adverse secondary effects. 

 
04.20.04G ADULT USE BUSINESS:  An adult arcade, adult bookstore, adult novelty or retail store, 

adult video store, adult cabaret, adult motel, adult motion picture theater, adult theater, 
escort agency, nude modeling studio and/or a sexual encounter establishments and any 
business determined by the Planning Director to be an adult use, due to the activities of 
the business which involve characteristics of adult uses, such as nudity, semi-nudity, 
exposure of “specified anatomical areas” and/or “specified sexual activities”.  The 
definition of “adult use business” shall not include an establishment where a medical 
practitioner, psychologist, psychiatrist or similar professional person licensed by the 
State engages in medically approved and recognized sexual therapy. 

 
04.20.46A EMPLOYEE:  A person who works or performs in and/or for an adult use business, 

regardless of whether or not said person is paid a salary, wage or other compensation 
by the operator of said business. 

 
04.20.46B ENTERTAINER:  A person who performs some type of activity or pose with the intent of 

allowing others to witness that activity or pose. 
 
04.20.46C ENTERTAINMENT:  A performance of some type of activity, including, but not limited 

to, singing, dancing, acting, mime, comedy, recitations, demonstrations, magic tricks, 
modeling, posing, exhibition, with or without inanimate objects or animals, with the intent 
of allowing others to witness that activity in live or reproduced format. 



 4

04.20.50 ESCORT:  A person who, for consideration in any form, agrees or offers to act as a 
companion, guide, or date for another person, (or who agrees to privately perform as an 
entertainer, including but not limited to, the modeling of lingerie, the removal of clothing, 
and the performance of a dance or skit.   Under this definition, “privately” shall mean a 
performance for an individual and, that individuals guests. 

 
04.20.50A ESCORT AGENCY:  A person or business that furnishes, offers to furnish or advertises 

the furnishing of escorts as one of its primary business purposes, for a fee, tip or any 
other form of consideration. 

 
04.20.54 ESTABLISHMENT:  In regard to an adult use business, means and includes any of the 

following: 
 

1. The opening or commencement of any such business as a new business; 
 

2. The conversion of an existing business, whether or not an adult use business, to 
any adult use business; 

 
3. The addition of any adult use business activities to any other existing adult use 

business; or 
 

4. The relocation of an adult use business. 
 

04.20.76 LICENSEE: The individual listed as an applicant on the application for an adult use 
business license, or a person in whose name a license to operate an adult use business 
has been issued.  

 
04.20.76A LICENSING OFFICER: The Clerk of the City of Troy or his/her designee. 
 
04.20.104 MANAGER:  An operator, other than a licensee, who is employed by an adult use 

business to act as a manager or supervisor of employees, or is otherwise responsible 
for the operation of the adult use business. 

 
04.20.114A NUDE MODELING STUDIO:  Any place where a person appears in a state of nudity or 

displays “specified anatomical areas”, and is provided money or any form of 
consideration to be observed, sketched, drawn, painted, sculpted, photographed or 
similarly depicted by other persons. This includes modeling studios that provide for 
nude modeling on an occasional basis, but it does not include modeling studio whose 
primary function is to provide art classes as part of a college, university or educational 
institution and which is certified by the State of Michigan. 

 
04.20.114B NUDITY OR STATE OF NUDITY:  
 

1. The exposure of human male or female genitals, pubic area, buttocks, anus or 
the areola or nipple of the female breast; and/or 

 
2. A state of dress which fails to opaquely and fully cover human male or female 

genitals, pubic area, buttocks, anus or the areola or nipple of the female breast. 



 5

04.20.121A OPERATOR:  Includes the owner, licensee, manager, or person in charge of any 
premises. 

 
04.20.122A PEEP BOOTH:  An adult motion picture theater with a viewing room or cubical of less 

than one hundred fifty (150) square feet of floor space. 
 
04.20.124A PERSON:  An individual, proprietorship, partnership, corporation, limited liability 

company, association or other entity. 
 
04.20.127A PREMISES OR LICENSED PREMISES:  Any premises that requires an adult use 

license and that is classified as an adult use business. 
 
04.20.127B PRINCIPAL OWNER:  Any person owning, directly or beneficially: a) ten percent (10%) 

or more of a corporation’s equity securities; b) ten percent (10%) or more of the 
membership interests in a limited liability company; or c) in the case of any other entity, 
ten percent (10%) or more of the ownership interests in the entity. 

 
04.20.127C PRIVATE ROOM:  A room in a hotel/motel that is not a peep booth, has a bed, a 

bathtub, a shower, a toilet and/or a sink in the room or adjacent room, and is used 
primarily for lodging. 

 
04.20.128A SEMI-NUDE:  A state of dress in which clothing covers no more than the genitals, pubic 

region, and areola of the female breast, as well as portions of the body covered by 
supporting straps or devices. 

 
04.20.130A SEXUAL ENCOUNTER ESTABLISHMENT:  A business or commercial establishment 

that as one of its primary business purposes, offers a place where two (2) or more 
persons may congregate, associate, or consort for the purpose of “specified sexual 
activities” or the exposure of “specified anatomical areas” or any activities when one or 
more or the persons is in a state of nudity or semi-nudity and/or permits patrons to 
display or be filmed or photographed performing “sexually explicit activities” or 
displaying “specified anatomical areas” for recording or transmission over the World 
Wide Web or any other media, for any form of consideration.  A hotel/motel will not be 
classified as a sexual encounter establishment, by virtue of the fact that it offers private 
rooms for rent. 

 
04.20.132A SPECIFIED ANATOMICAL AREAS: 
 

1. Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic region, 
buttocks, anus or female breasts below a point immediately above the top of the 
areola; and/or 

 
2. Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and 

opaquely covered. 
 
04.20.132B SPECIFIED CRIMINAL ACTS:  Sexual crimes against children, sexual abuse, criminal 

sexual conduct, rape, crimes classified as sexual crimes by the State of Michigan or any 
other state, or crimes connected with another adult use business, including but not 
limited to, the distribution of obscenity, prostitution and/or pandering. 



 6

04.20.132C SIGNIFICANT OR SUBSTANTIAL PORTION:  Means thirty (30) percent or more of the 
term modified by such phrase.  

 
04.20.133C SPECIFIED SEXUAL ACTIVITIES: 
 

1. The fondling or other intentional touching of human genitals, pubic region, 
buttocks, anus or female breasts: and/or 

 
2. Sex acts, actual or simulated, including but not limited to, intercourse, oral 

copulation or sodomy; and/or 
 

3. Masturbation, actual or simulated; and/or 
 

4. Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation, arousal or tumescence; and/or 
 

5. Excretory functions as part of or in connection with any of the activities set forth 
in subsections (1) through (4) of this definition. 

 
04.20.146 TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OR CONTROL OF AN ADULT USE BUSINESS:   

 
1. The sale, lease or sublease of the business; and/or 

 
2. The transfer of securities which constitute a controlling interest in the business, 

whether by sale, exchange or similar means; and/or 
 

3. The establishment of a trust, management arrangement, gift or other similar legal 
device which transfers ownership or control of the business, except for transfer 
by bequest or other operation of law upon the death of a person possessing the 
ownership or control. 

 
 
Article XXII is amended by the addition of the following new section: 
 
 

ARTICLE XXII – GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 
 

22.30.08 Adult use business, as defined in this section, shall be permitted subject to the 
conditions set out herein: 

 
A) The purpose and intent of this section is to regulate adult use businesses, to 

promote the health, safety, morals and general welfare of the citizens of the City, 
and to establish reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious 
location and concentration of adult use businesses within the City, thereby 
reducing or eliminating the adverse secondary effects from such adult use 
businesses.  The provisions of this section have neither the purpose nor effect of 
imposing a limitation or restriction on the content of any communicative 
materials, including adult materials.  Similarly, it is not the intent nor effect of this 
section to restrict or deny access by adults to adult materials protected by the 
Constitution of the United States or the Michigan Constitution, or to deny access 



 7

by the distributors and exhibitors of adult entertainment or adult use businesses 
to their intended market.  It is also not the intent nor effect of this section to 
condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material. 

 
B) It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated an adult use business in 

any location in the City, except as provided in Troy’s Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 
39, Article XXII, Section 22.30.08 of the Code of Ordinances. 

 
C) It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated an adult use business 

within five hundred feet (500’), measured from the nearest lot line to the nearest 
lot line on a straight-line basis, of any of the following: 

 
1. A church; 

 
2. A school or childcare facility; 

 
3. A public park (not including public trails); 

 
4. Any residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes. 

 
D) It shall be unlawful to cause or permit the operation of an adult use business 

within one thousand feet (1,000’) of another adult use business.  The distance 
between any such businesses shall be measured from the nearest lot line to the 
nearest lot line on a straight-line basis. 

 
E) It shall be unlawful to cause or permit the operation or maintenance of more than 

one adult use business in the same building, structure or portion thereof. 
 

F) All off street parking areas and entry door areas of adult use businesses shall be 
illuminated from dusk until the closing time of the business with a lighting system 
which provides an average maintained horizontal illumination of one foot-candle 
of light on all parking surfaces and/or walkways.  This requirement level is to help 
ensure the personal safety of patrons and employees and to reduce the 
incidence of vandalism and other criminal conduct. 

G) The premises of all adult use businesses, except adult motion picture theaters, 
shall be equipped with overhead lighting fixtures of sufficient intensity to 
illuminate every place where patrons are permitted, at an illumination level of not 
less than two (2) foot-candles of light, as measured at the floor level. 

H) Adult motion picture theaters shall be equipped with overhead lighting fixtures of 
sufficient intensity to illuminate every place where patrons are permitted at an 
illumination level of not less than one foot-candle of light, as measure at the floor 
level. 

 
I) No person shall conduct an adult use business without first having obtained an 

annual adult use business license from the City. 



 8

J) No person(s) shall reside on or permit any other persons to reside on the 
premises of an adult use business. 

 
K) All adult use businesses shall be subject to the same requirements of the Zoning 

Ordinance. 
 

L) An adult use business lawfully operating is not rendered a nonconforming use by 
the subsequent location of a church, school, childcare facility, public park, 
residential district, or a residential lot within five hundred feet (500’) of the adult 
use business.  However, if the adult use business ceases operation for a period 
of one hundred eighty (180) days or more, regardless of any intent to resume 
operation, it may not recommence operation in that location, unless it achieves 
conformity with the City of Troy Ordinances.  

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this 
Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be consummated under and 
according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance 
shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter 
instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting 
this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may 
be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or 
unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon the adoption, publication and effective date of amendments 
to Chapters 3, 60, and the enactment of Chapter 76 relating to Adult Business Uses. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of 
_____________, ____. 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 207 Sexually Oriented Businesses\CC Public Hearing Draft 05 09 07.doc 

















































JO
H

N
R

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S R

O
C

H
E

S
TE

R

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

BIG BEAVER

I75

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207)
PROPERTY POTENTIALLY
AVAILABLE FOR ADULT USE BUSINESSES 
UNDER EXISTING ORDINANCE

³ 0 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,0001,000
Feet

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.
REVISION DATE:  04-24-2007

KEY
PARCELS CURRENTLY ZONED
B-1, B-2, B-3, H-S, O-1, O-M, & O-S-C



JO
H

N
R

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

C
R

O
O

K
S

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

BIG BEAVER

I75

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S
SOUTH BLVD ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207)

ALL PROPERTY CURRENTLY ZONED B-3

³ 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,0002,500
Feet

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.
REVISION DATE:  04-24-2007

KEY
PROPERTY CURRENTLY B-3 ZONED 



C
R

O
O

K
S

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

JO
H

N
R

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

I75

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

FOURTEEN MILE

MAPLE

BIG BEAVER

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207)
PARCELS CURRENTLY ZONED B-3
AVAILABLE FOR ADULT USE BUSINESSES 
UNDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE - 500 FT.

³ 0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

PROPOSED STANDARDS:
THE PROPERTY IS ZONED B-3 AND
A MIN. OF 500 FT FROM:
  1) CHURCHES
  2) SCHOOLS AND CHILDCARE FACILITIES
  3) PUBLIC PARKS
  4) RESIDENTIALLY ZONED OR USED PARCELS
IN TROY OR ABUTTING COMMUNITY

NOTE:
PARCELS CONTAINING ANY PORTION OF B-3 ZONING 
ARE CONSIDERED TO BE B-3 PARCELS FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS MAP
  

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.
REVISION DATE:  04-26-2007

KEY
B-3 ZONED PARCELSPARCELS AVAILABLE UNDER
PROPOSED ORDINANCE



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 207) – 
Proposed Article 22.30.08  Adult Business Uses 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
relating to adult business uses.  He summarized the impacts of distance 
requirements of adult business uses from a church, school, childcare facility, 
public park or any residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential 
purposes, ranging from 500 feet to 1,000 feet.   
 
Ms. Lancaster detailed the legal aspects of an adult business use text 
amendment in relation to the First Amendment.  She addressed court decisions 
based on the secondary effects associated with a concentration of adult business 
uses, and what the courts look for when an ordinance is challenged.  Ms. 
Lancaster said courts recognize the need for a balance between the First 
Amendment and deleterious affects of an adult business use.  She said the 
bottom line is the Zoning Ordinance must be content-neutral, and the City cannot 
deny the First Amendment use or access to our City to have these uses.  The 
Legal Department recommends a distance requirement of 500 feet of adult 
business uses from a church, school, childcare facility, public park or any 
residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Ms. Kerwin said the Legal Department and Planning Department served the City 
very well in their recommendations on adult business uses, and the need to have 
an ordinance in place.  It is recognized that adult business uses have a 
deleterious effect on surrounding properties.  Ms. Kerwin said that personally, as 
an advocate for youth, she could not support the 500-foot distance requirement 
from a church, school, childcare facility, public park or residential zoning. 
 
Mr. Vleck indicated he would favor a minimal of 600 feet from a church, school, 
childcare facility, public park or residential zoning.   
 
Mr. Hutson addressed the viewpoint of a judge, and questioned if anything in 
excess of 600 feet from a church, school, childcare facility, public park, or 
residential zoning would stand up to a test in court.  He indicated the safest 
course to take would be to adopt an ordinance with the 500-foot distance, as 
recommended by the Legal Department.  Mr. Hutson said he would not support 
anything over 600 feet.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

Ms. Troshynski said her concern is with the concentrations of adult business 
uses along Big Beaver, Maple and 14 Mile Roads.  She asked if there were other 
options that could be considered in that respect.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said the uses cannot be zoned out of business, and the court 
wants an ordinance that is content-neutral.  She said the City could amend the 
ordinance to allow adult business uses in other zoning districts, but she is not 
sure that would help with the concentration aspect.  Ms. Lancaster said an open 
mind must be kept in terms of providing access for such a use.   
 
Chair Schultz said he would support the recommendation of the City Attorney’s 
office.  He said it is understood that the majority of residents do not want any 
adult business use in our City, but they cannot be prohibited.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-089 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To move the adoption of Proposed Resolution # PC-2007-05 
relating to Article 22.30.08, and that the motion should recognize when it is voted 
upon, that the written resolution is the one moved.   
 

WHEREAS, it is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their 
very nature, have serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly 
when several of them are concentrated under certain circumstances or when 
one (1) or more of them are located in near proximity to a residential zone, 
thereby having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. Special 
regulation of these uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will 
not contribute to the blighting or downgrading of the surrounding 
neighborhood.  These controls are for the purpose of preventing a 
concentration of these uses within any one (1) area, or to prevent deterioration 
or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. These controls do not 
legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other applicable laws.  
 
AND WHEREAS, in regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this 
ordinance to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of 
the City of Troy, and to establish reasonable and uniform regulations to 
prevent the deleterious secondary effects of adult business uses within the 
City of Troy. The provisions of this ordinance have neither the purpose nor 
effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable 
access to any communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. 
Similarly, it is neither the intent nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny 
access by adults to sexually oriented materials protected by the First 
Amendment, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of sexually 
oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MAY 1, 2007 
  
 
 

effect of this ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene 
material.  
 
AND WHEREAS, based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult 
business uses presented in reports made available to the Planning 
Commission, and on findings incorporated in the cases of City of Renton v. 
Playtime Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini 
Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), and other cases; and reports of secondary 
effects occurring in and around adult business uses, including, but not limited 
to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times 
Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City OK, Cleburne TX, Dallas TX, 
Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix County WI, the Planning 
Commission finds that adult business uses as a category of establishments 
are correlated with harmful secondary effects, and that the foregoing reports 
are reasonably believed to be relevant to the problems that the City of Troy is 
seeking to abate and prevent in the future. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby 
recommends to the City Council that Articles IV DEFINITIONS and XXII B-3 
GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, pertaining to permitting Adult Business 
Uses subject to Special Use Approval in the B-3 District, be approved as 
printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning 
Commission Public Hearing Draft.  

 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski, Wright 
No: Kerwin, Vleck 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is in agreement with the motion with the exception that he 
would like to see a distance of 600 feet from a church, school, childcare facility, 
public park or any residential zoning district, or any parcel used for residential 
purposes. 
 

 



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: May 29, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. 
 

 

Enclosed please find a copy of a re-plat lawsuit that was recently served on the City of 
Troy.  The Plaintiffs, Nick and Leslie Karagiannakis, are the owners of property that is 
designated as “Outlot B” in the Troy Villas Subdivision No. 1 (north of Square Lake Road, 
west of Rochester Road).  The Co-Plaintiffs, Garrett Family Limited Partnership (hereinafter 
“Garrett”) has a purchase agreement with the Karagiannakis family for a portion of this 
property, which has or will be combined with the rear portions of other parcels that front on 
Square Lake Road. Garrett proposes to build a 12-unit site condominium on this 
approximately 6.04 acre parcel, which is currently landlocked and is located behind several 
homes that front on Ottawa and Donaldson. 

The plat for the property, Troy Villas Subdivision No. 1, does not expressly designate 
a public roadway easement that would allow for a roadway to be constructed over the 
property owned by co-defendants Arthur and Delphine Lubiarz (480 Ottawa).  The plat 
instead grants only a 43-foot private easement over that property.  In 1981, a private 
driveway agreement over this 43-foot private easement allowed for the construction of the 
Karagiannakis’ residence (500 Ottawa).  However, this agreement is extremely limited, and 
authorizes only a private driveway to a single-family residence.   It could not be used to 
service a 12-unit condominium site.  The only way to convert the private easement over the 
Lubiarz property to a public road is to amend the plat and obtain a 43-foot wide public road 
easement, which could then be combined with the 17-foot wide public road easement for the 
recently re-platted Golf Estates Subdivision to provide the required 60 feet, for a public road. 
This adjoining property is currently owned by other co-defendants, James and Cynthia Smith 
(536 Ottawa). 

The Plaintiffs had previously filed an action for Declaratory Judgment. In response, the 
City filed a Motion for Summary Disposition arguing that the requested relief could only be 
granted through a lawsuit under the Michigan Subdivision Control Act, which would be filed 
against all persons having an interest that could be impacted by revisions to the plat.  
Plaintiffs agreed to voluntarily dismiss their Declaratory Judgment action lawsuit, and have 
now filed this plat revision lawsuit.   

Our office will assume defense of this lawsuit absent objection from City Council.  
Please let us know if we can provide additional information.   

  
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01

















































































































       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
D-2 Appointment to Boards and Committees: City 

Council Appointment: Board of Zoning Appeals 

campbellld
Text Box
D-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, June 4, 2007, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:33 PM. 
 
Father Joseph Cuic of St. Lucy Croatian Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini  
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Senator John Pappageorge introduced members of St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church 

and provided a brief presentation regarding the upcoming Annual Opa! Fest scheduled 
for Friday, June 22nd through Sunday, June 24th.  

b) Michelle Hodges introduced students from the University of Michigan and Ross A. 
Davison, Team Leader, who gave a presentation about the UM/ULI Walkable Urbanism 
Strategic and Implementation project. 

c) County Commissioners Robert Gosselin and David Potts discussed various topics of 
interest relative to Oakland County to City Council and members of the audience. 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Kostal of America, 
Inc. – 350 Stephenson 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner and no 
comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2007-06-168 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for Kostal of America, Inc., for property known as 350 Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1103, 
Parcel # 88-20-35-327-026, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-06-238; 
and 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD a copy of this resolution to 
the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to 

Kostal of America, Inc. – 350 Stephenson  
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the petitioner and the 
public. 
 
Resolution #2007-06-169 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on June 4, 
2007, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 350 
Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1103, Parcel # 88-20-35-327-026;  
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Kostal of America, Inc., for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 350 Stephenson, Troy, MI. 
48083-1103, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on June 4, 2007, 
held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility that 
the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Kostal of America, Inc., 
at 350 Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1103 may have the effect of substantially impeding the 
operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Kostal of America, Inc., at 350 
Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1103, shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 
Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City 
of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Kostal of America, Inc., at 350 
Stephenson, Troy, MI. 48083-1103, Parcel #88-20-35-327-026, for personal property for a term 
of twelve (12) years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the 
City of Troy and Kostal of America, Inc., in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as 
amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Kostal of America, Inc., a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-3 Rezoning Application (File Number Z-722) – Northwest Corner of Maple and 

Thorncroft, East of Maplelawn, Section 29 – R-C to B-3 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the petitioner and the 
public. 
 
Resolution #2007-06-170 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-C to B-3 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of Maple 
and Thorncroft, east of Maplelawn, in Section 29, part of parcel 88-20-29-426-033, being 3.18 
acres in size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the ATTACHED 
sketch of survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 29 
 

The south 540 ft. of Lot 12 of Maplelawn Industrial Park No. 2 (Liber 119, 
page 35, of Oakland County Plats).  Containing ±3.18 ac. more or less, and 
subject to restrictions and easements of record; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The rezoning is RECOMMENDED by the Planning Commission; 
and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the City of Troy Zoning 
District Map from R-C to B-3, as requested. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
C-4 Troy Downtown Development Authority’s (TDDA’s) Development Plan #6 and the 

Big Beaver Corridor Study 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the petitioner and 
comment from the following members of the public: 
 
Victor Lenivov – Oppose 
Mary Ann Bernardi – Oppose 
James Savage - Oppose 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

Resolution #2007-06-171 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy (the "City") as authorized by the provisions of Act 197, Public Acts 
of Michigan, 1975, as amended, has created a Downtown Development Authority;  
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary, for the best interests of the public, to halt property value 
deterioration and increase property tax valuation where possible in the business district of the 
City of Troy, to eliminate the causes of such deterioration, and to promote economic growth;  
 
WHEREAS, City of Troy Ordinance 78, designated a Downtown Development Authority, and 
Ordinance 80 created Development and Tax Increment Financing Plans pursuant to Public Act 
197, as amended, has been adopted by the Troy City Council;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority wishes to modify the Development 
Plan to include the implementation of the key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Plan;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority has prepared Downtown Development 
Plan #6 and Tax Increment Financing Plan #6 incorporating the previous development plans 
and tax increment financing plans;  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority has requested the Troy City Council 
consider Development Plan #6 and Tax Increment Plan #6; and 
 
WHEREAS, A public hearing has been published and posted in accordance with applicable 
local and state law as required by Act 197, as amended; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council DETERMINES that it is necessary 
and in the best interest of the public to maintain a Downtown Development Authority pursuant 
to Act 197, as amended, in order to halt property value deterioration and increase property tax 
valuation where possible in the business district of the City of Troy, to eliminate the causes of 
such deterioration, and to promote economic growth, and that Downtown Development Plan #6 
and Tax Increment Financing Plan #6 constitute a public purpose, since they provide for the 
implementation of the key concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Plan; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Downtown 
Development Plan #6 and AMENDS City of Troy Ordinance 80; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Tax Increment 
Financing Plan #6 and AMENDS City of Troy Ordinance 80; and 
  
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management to 
bind and incorporate Exhibit #2-Big Beaver Corridor Study and Exhibit #3–Chesapeake Group 
Report as part of the bound project document. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield   
No:  Howrylak 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-06-172 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-9, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2007-06-172-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of May 21, 2007 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamation:   
 
Resolution #2007-06-172-E-3a 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation be APPROVED: 
 
a) Boy Scout Troop 1702 – Celebrating 25 Years   
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Pool Maintenance and 

Repair Services                    
 
Resolution #2007-06-172-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish two-year 
requirements of pool maintenance and repairs for both indoor and outdoor pools at the Troy 
Family Aquatic Center and Community Center with two (2) one-year options to renew to the low 
bidder, B and B Pools and Spas of Livonia, MI, at rates contained in the bid tabulation opened 
March 27, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, 
with a contract expiration of June 30, 2009; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Type ‘K’ Copper Tubing                 
 
Resolution #2007-06-172-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS the contract to purchase Type “K” 
Copper Tubing to the low bidder SLC Meter Service, Inc. of Davisburg, MI, for an estimated 
total cost of $79,170.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened May 24, 2007, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Major Street 

Pavement Marking Program                    
 
Resolution #2007-06-172-E-4c 
 
WHEREAS, On August 1, 2005 two-year requirements of major street pavement marking with 
an option to renew for one additional year was awarded to the low bidder, P.K. Contracting, Inc. 
of Troy, MI (Resolution #2005-08-375-E-4b), and  
 
WHEREAS, P.K. Contracting, Inc. has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew under 
the same prices, terms, and conditions;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contract for one additional year to provide major street pavement marking with 
amended construction quantities with P.K. Contracting, Inc. of Troy, MI, under the same 
contract prices as the 2006/07 season to expire June 30, 2008.   
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Concrete Pavement 

Repair 
 
Resolution #2007-06-172-E-4d 
 
WHEREAS, On October 23, 2006 contracts to complete the concrete pavement repair program 
for 2006/07 with an option to renew for one (1) additional year was awarded to the three lowest 
bidders, Hard Rock Concrete, Inc. of Westland, Michigan for proposal A, A-1, Local Roads; Six-
S, Inc. of Waterford, Michigan for proposal B – Major Roads; and Major Cement Company of 
Detroit, Michigan for proposal C – Industrial Roads at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened on October 10, 2006 (Resolution #2006-10-320-E4e); and 
 
WHEREAS, All three contractors have agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew under 
the same prices, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contracts for one additional year to provide concrete pavement repair for 2007/08 
with amended construction quantities with Hard Rock Concrete, Inc., Six-S, Inc. and Major 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

Cement Company under the same contract prices, terms and conditions to expire on June 30, 
2008, not to exceed budgetary limitations. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Council Members’ Travel Expenses – 109th Michigan Municipal League 
Convention 

 
Resolution #2007-06-172-E-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Council members to attend the 
109th Michigan Municipal League Convention at the Grand Traverse Resort in Traverse City, 
Michigan from September 18-20, 2007 in accordance with the accounting procedures of the 
City of Troy. 
 
E-5 Acceptance of Permanent Easements and Private Road Agreement from 

Alexander Homes, Inc., Fountain Park Troy Condominium Development –Section 
14  

 
Resolution #2007-06-172-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS three (3) permanent easements for 
sanitary sewer, water main, and emergency ingress/egress from property owner Alexander 
Homes, Inc., having Sidwell #88-20-14-351-084; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
private road agreement on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the three (3) 
permanent easements and private road agreement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Private Agreement for Walco Properties – Project No. 06.928.03  
 
Resolution #2007-06-172-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and WALCO Properties, 
LLC, for the installation of bituminous pavement, concrete approaches and concrete sidewalk 
on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-7 Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way – William Beaumont Hospital, 

Section 1, Sidwell #88-20-01-427-001  
 
Resolution #2007-06-172-E-7 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed from property owner 
William Beaumont Hospital, having Sidwell #88-20-01-427-001; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way – Caswell Town Center PUD 5, 

Section 2, Sidwell #88-20-02-101-001  
 
Resolution #2007-06-172-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed from property owner 
Joseph Petruzzello, as Trustee or his Successor Trustee(s) under Agreement dated October 
27, 1999, having Sidwell #88-20-02-101-001; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty Deed with 
the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-9 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Nick 
Karagiannakis and Leslie Karagiannakis, husband and wife, and Garrett Family Limited 
Partnership, a Michigan Limited Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al., (Oakland County Circuit 
Court Case No. 07-083014-CZ) and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately 
represent the City. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2007-06-173 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES agenda item E-9 Karagiannakis and 
Garrett Family Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al until the Regular City Council Meeting 
scheduled for Monday, June 18, 2007. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointment: 
Board of Zoning Appeals 

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointment
 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the following person is hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular; 1-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Michael W. Bartnik  Unexpired Term 04/30/09 
 
Resolution to Amend City Council Appointment: Board of Zoning Appeals 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Proposed Resolution – City Council 
Appointments to the Board of Zoning Appeals to include the name of Tom Krent in the 
nominations for Board of Zoning Appeals member for the unexpired term of April 30, 2009. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2007-06-174 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Broomfield    
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the resolution and resolution to 
amend (b) City Council Appointments-Board of Zoning Appeals until the Regular City Council 
meeting scheduled for Monday, June 18, 2007. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

F-2 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, 
South Side of Big Beaver, East of Adams, Section 30 – R-1C 

  
Resolution #2007-06-175 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the preliminary site condominium 
plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium 
known as Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, located on the south side of Big Beaver, east of 
Adams, in Section 30, including 11 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 5.1 acres 
in size. 
 
Yes: All-7   
 
F-3 Request from Walsh College to Use City of Troy 2007 Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) Funds 
  
Resolution #2007-06-176 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, Walsh College has requested a portion of Community Development Block Grant 
funding allocated to the City of Troy for use in improving private facilities and, consequently, 
public drainage ways; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City’s allocation of Community Development Block Grant funds has been 
committed to programs and projects that meet the purposes and guidelines of the CDBG 
program as promulgated by the Department of Housing and Urban Development; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DENIES the allocation of 
$25,000 of Community Development Block Grant funds to Walsh College, but REQUESTS that 
the City Manager and staff ASSIST Walsh College in other possible and relevant ways to 
ensure that the project is completed as proposed. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-4 Scheduling a Special Meeting to Discuss Strategic Planning Initiatives 
 
Resolution #2007-06-177 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Special Meeting for the purpose of 
discussing strategic planning initiatives:  
 

Monday, June 11, 2007 at 7:30 PM



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan 48084. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-5 Bid Waiver – Digital Recording of Sanitary Sewer Inspections 
 
Resolution #2007-06-178 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, On Monday, May 21, 2007, Troy City Council approved the upgrade of the sanitary 
sewer televising inspection equipment to Pearpoint, Inc. of Thousand Palms, CA, the 
manufacturer, at an estimated cost of $45,866.00 (Resolution #2007-05-165); and 
 
WHEREAS, Due to changes in video technology, the VHS based system has become obsolete 
and the City is seeking to capture inspections using digital video technology; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal 
bidding procedures and hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase proprietary sanitary sewer 
televising inspection software from Pearpoint, Inc. of Thousand Palms, CA for an estimated 
total cost of $19,700.00, with a yearly software maintenance fee of $1,900.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the contracts to 
purchase necessary hardware from Hewlett Packard and GTSI for an estimated total cost of 
$8,466.00 as detailed in Appendix A, utilizing approved purchasing procedures. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-6 Bid Waiver – Initial Issue Police Uniforms and Equipment 
 
Resolution #2007-06-179 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, On March 21, 2005, the City of Troy awarded a two-year contract to supply initial 
issue police uniforms and equipment for newly hired Police Department uniformed employees, 
with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods to the lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, Metropolitan Uniform Company at an estimated cost of $1,620.00 per employee, 
at unit prices contained on the bid tabulation dated February 25, 2005 (Resolution #2005-03-
123-E11); and 
 
WHEREAS, Metropolitan Uniform Company has agreed to keep costs for initial issue police 
uniforms and equipment at original bid prices from 2005; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase initial issue police uniforms and 
equipment for newly hired Police Department uniformed employees to Metropolitan Uniform 
Company at an estimated total cost of $1,620.00 per employee, at unit prices detailed on the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

bid tabulation for ITB-COT 05-02 to expire June 30, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-7 Requested Salary Increase – City Attorney 
  
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak    
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the annual compensation of Council appointee Lori Grigg Bluhm, City 
Attorney, is INCREASED by 3%, EFFECTIVE January 1, 2007. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2007-06-180 
Moved by Beltramini     
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution for agenda item F-7 
Requested Salary Increase – City Attorney by INSERTING “RESOLVED, That Troy City 
Council hereby APPROVES the scheduling of a salary review for the City Attorney for the 2007-
08 budget year after July 1, 2007.” 
 
Yes:  Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming  
No:  Lambert, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Separate Vote on Amendment and Main Motion 
 
Resolution #2007-06-181 
Moved by Howrylak      
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SEPARATES the vote for the Amendment and the 
Main Motion for agenda item F-7 Requested Salary Increase – City Attorney. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert   
No:  Stine, Schilling, Beltramini 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Amendment  
 
Resolution #2007-06-182 
Moved by Beltramini     
Seconded by Stine  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the scheduling of a salary review for 
the City Attorney for the 2007-08 budget year after July 1, 2007. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Lambert, Stine 
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Main Resolution 
 
Resolution #2007-06-183 
Moved by Howrylak    
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the annual compensation of Council appointee Lori Grigg Bluhm, City 
Attorney, is INCREASED by 3%, EFFECTIVE January 1, 2007. 
  
Yes: All-7  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Articles IV and XXII – 

Adult Business Uses – June 18, 2007 
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities – Revision of Membership 

Requirements  
b) Replacement of City Code Chapter 86 – Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 

Noted and Filed 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 No Council Comments   
Council Member Stine discussed the issue of how to avoid and rectify blight. She indicated that 
she has received three phone calls over the weekend and one resident advised that he has 
lived in Troy since 1972 and has never seen the city look so shoddy. Council Member Stine 
believes that the city mowing of absentee homeowners, right-of-ways and detention ponds four 
times a summer is inadequate and the burden of the cost is on the taxpayers. Council Member 
Stine believes absentee homeowners, individual homeowners and homeowner associations 
must take on the responsibility of maintaining their properties and right-of-ways. She continued 
by stating that many of the homes are vacant and the lots are being neglected and subjecting 
the city to blight. She referred to the homes on Livernois and she believes they are a disgrace 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

and that the city has a responsibility to the community to address this issue and come up with a 
solution. 
 
Mayor Schilling believes it is the responsibility of the city to be proactive and create a program 
contacting the homeowners and inform them that it is their responsibility to maintain their own 
rights-of-way and property. 
 
Council Member Broomfield asked what steps are taken if the grass exceeds ten inches for 
properties where a home is vacant.  
 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager-Economic Development Services, explained that the city 
currently sends a notice and the property owner is given more than enough time to mow the 
property. If the property owner does not mow the property, then the city will mow the property at 
a cost to the homeowner. Mr. Murphy reminded Council that a blight presentation was brought 
forward before Council in February of 2006 and no changes were made to the ordinance at that 
time. He continued by stating that due to the change in the economic climate, the situation is 
escalating. He added that Oakland County is responsible for some areas, but they only mow 
two times per season and that the City then mows those areas also. 
 
Council Member Lambert believes there is a lack of communication between the city and 
homeowners since the demise of COTHA. Council Member Lambert wondered if there is a way 
to create a new mechanism to create an organization similar to COTHA to help with some of 
these issues. 
 
Mr. Murphy believes that if a group of residents were open to creating such an organization, 
that the city would be supportive. 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Personnel Board/Final – June 5, 2006 
b) Historic Commission/Final – January 23, 2007 
c) Downtown Development Authority/Draft – April 18, 2007  
d) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – April 24, 2007  
e) Youth Council/Final – April 25, 2007  
f) Planning Commission/Draft – May 1, 2007  
g) Planning Commission/Final – May 1, 2007  
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – May 2, 2007  
i) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – May 15, 2007  
j) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Draft – May 22, 2007  
k) Youth Council/Draft – May 23, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  None Submitted 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation from Mark A. Hackel – Office of the Sheriff – Macomb County to 

Chief Craft in Appreciation of Officer Fitzpatrick for Providing Them with Information for a 
SWAT Training Location 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 4, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
J-6  Communication from City Assessor Nino Licari Regarding Council Comments 

from May 21, 2007 – Additional Panel and Security Concerns for Board of Review 
Noted and Filed 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
L-1 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. 
 
Resolution #2007-06-184 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership 
v. City of Troy, et. al. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 10:26 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:38 PM. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:47 PM. 
. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  June 11, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, June 11, 2007, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini  
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield (Absent) 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine  
 
1. Strategic Planning Initiatives  
 
Phil Nelson, City Manger, completed the review of the second half of the proposed Strategic 
Planning Initiatives and sought input and direction from City Council on Critical Policy Points.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:19 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



 

 
 
June 6, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Parks and Recreation Month Proclamation 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The month of July is designated as Parks and Recreation month by the National Parks and 

Recreation Association.   
 

 The purpose of this designation is to bring awareness to the benefits of Parks and Recreation.   
 

 Parks and Recreation activities and experiences impact and benefit individuals, the community, 
environment and economy.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations.   

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations.   

 
Options: 
 
 Staff requests acknowledgement by Council recognizing July as Parks and Recreation Month in 

2007.   
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Carol K. Anderson 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



PROCLAMATION 
PARKS AND RECREATION MONTH 

July 2007 
 
WHEREAS, Troy Parks and Recreation officially recognizes Parks and Recreation 
Month in July with a variety of programs and activities that reflect the spirit of 
outstanding leisure programming that benefit the citizens of Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy Parks and Recreation invites all citizens to celebrate Parks and 
Recreation Month by participating in a variety of fun summer programs for the entire 
family; and 
 
WHEREAS, Our belief in enhancing the quality of life is the central purpose of this 
organization and the driving force behind Troy Parks and Recreation philosophy and 
in recognizing this special occasion; and 
 
WHEREAS, We are committed to providing opportunities for people to come together 
and experience a sense of community through rewarding recreational pursuits with high 
quality comprehensive programs, parks, facilities and open space; and 
 
WHEREAS, Our 14 developed and 12 undeveloped parks and six special facilities 
serve to offer exercise, sports and special event activities, relaxation and leisure 
pursuits for all interests; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parks and open spaces provide a welcome respite from our fast paced, 
high-tech lifestyles while simultaneously protecting and preserving our natural 
environment; and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy Parks and Recreation special programs and sports opportunities 
give young people better chances to live, grow and develop into contributing members 
of society; and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy Parks and Recreation creates lifelines and continued life 
experiences for older members of our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parks, playgrounds, nature trails, open spaces and neighborhood sites 
make our community an attractive and desirable place to live, work, play and visit in a 
manner that contributes to our ongoing economic vitality; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy Parks and Recreation touches the lives of individuals, families, 
groups and the entire community, which positively impacts upon the social, economic, 
health and environmental quality of our community; and 
 
Now, Therefore Be It Resolved, that we recognize July as Parks and Recreation 
Month and encourage all citizens to celebrate healthy, active lifestyles by participating 
in their choice of recreation and park activities.   
 
Signed this 18th day of June, 2007 



PROCLAMATION 
CELEBRATING 30 YEARS   

BEAUMONT HOSPITAL TROY 
 
 

WHEREAS, The dedicated medical professionals at Beaumont Troy have met the health care needs of the 
community 24 hours a day, seven days a week since first opening their doors on May 1, 1977; and 
 
WHEREAS, In that first year of service to the community, the 200-bed hospital admitted 2,508 patients, performed 
2,030 surgeries and treated 9,942 emergency patients.  On Beaumont Troy’s 30th Anniversary, the 296-bed 
hospital’s most recent yearly statistics include 22,604 inpatients, 21,187 operations and 66,603 emergency visits.  
Beaumont Troy ranks third in the nation for admissions and fourth nationwide for surgeries, for hospitals its size; and 
 
WHEREAS, The good work at Beaumont, Troy is well recognized.  Health care consultant Solucient has honored 
Beaumont Troy seven times since 1998, ranking it on its list of “100 Top Hospitals” in the nation for high-quality care 
and efficiency of operations in the “Teaching Hospital” category.  In 2006, U.S. News & World Report named the 
hospital to its “America’s Best Hospitals” list in two medical specialty categories:  Neurology/Neurosurgery and 
Respiratory Disorders; and 
 
WHEREAS, Through the years Beaumont Troy has achieved many milestones, including seeing their first patient in 
the Family Medicine Center in September 1979, opening the obstetrics unit in December 1992, acquiring Arcadia 
Hospice and renaming it Beaumont Hospice in July 1997, establishing the Roncelli Family Orthopedic Center in June 
2003, cardiovascular surgeons performing the hospital’s first open-heart surgery in December 1993, and the Beaumont 
Board of Directors approving funding for a major expansion to meet the future health care needs of the community; and  
 
WHEREAS, Through it all, Beaumont Troy has maintained a fine reputation for delivering tremendous health care with 
a warmth and friendliness valued throughout the community.  The hospital’s impressive rankings include fourth in the 
U.S. in 2004 and first in Metropolitan Detroit in 2005 for inpatient admissions, seventh in the U.S. in 2004 for outpatient 
surgeries, fourth in the U.S. in 2004 for total surgeries performed, second in Metropolitan Detroit for births in 2005 and 
fourth in Metropolitan Detroit for Emergency Center visits in 2005; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate Beaumont Hospital 
Troy on its 30th Anniversary and recognizes its impact upon thousands and thousands of lives, not just in our local 
community of Troy, but across the world. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community in appreciation and celebration 
of Beaumont Hospital’s 30th Anniversary. 
 
Presented this 18th day of June 2007. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03b



PROCLAMATION 
IN RECOGNITION OF JACK AND PEARL KOTTER 

ON THE OCCASION OF THEIR 50TH ANNIVERSARY 
 
WHEREAS, Jack and Pearl (Buck) Kotter were united in marriage on June 22, 1957 at Duns Scotus College 
in Southfield after meeting at Detroit Edison in 1955 and are now celebrating their 50th Wedding Anniversary 
surrounded by family and friends; and   
 
WHEREAS, This marriage has been blessed with two daughters and one son: Laurie, Kathy, and Mike who 
received from their parents the kind of loving and happy life that develops good citizens and worthy adults; and 
 
WHEREAS, Son Mike and daughter-in-law Kim reside in Akron, Ohio with their two children Olivia and Jonny; 
daughter Laurie and son-in-law Gary reside in Glen Rock, Pennsylvania with their children Matthew and Julia; 
and daughter Kathy lives in Clinton Township; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jack worked for many years as an engineer with Detroit Edison and then switched to the 
automotive business as a manufacturer’s rep and Pearl was employed at Detroit Edison until her recent 
retirement after 28 years; and  
 
WHEREAS, In addition to providing for their family a legacy of wit, wisdom, and love throughout the years, 
Jack and Pearl have found time to participate in social, church, and civic organizations.  Jack has been a 
musician since the age of 14 and currently performs with One Beat Back, a local Big Band Orchestra and 
works part-time as a starter at Stoney Creek Golf Course and Pearl sings with the Edison Glee Club and their 
Church Choir and works part-time at Kohl’s jewelry department; and 
 
WHEREAS, Jack and Pearl Kotter have earned the respect of all with whom they have come into contact, 
and the love and affection of their children, grandchildren and a host of wonderful friends; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Jack and Pearl Kotter are worthy of this expression of our 
sincere congratulations on this happy occasion of their 50th wedding anniversary; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council and all of Troy’s residents extend best wishes to 
Jack and Pearl for many more years of good health and happiness together.  
 
Presented this 18th day of June 2007. 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03c



 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
Date  June 8, 2007 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration  

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Steve A. Pallotta, Building Operations Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder – Library Bathroom Renovations  
 
Background: 

• On May 30, 2007, bid proposals were received to provide labor and materials to complete the Troy 
Public Library Bathroom Renovations.  

• The Troy Public Library bathrooms are the original restrooms that were constructed with the building in 
1968 with an addition added in 1983.  The bathroom’s consist of one boy’s and girl’s restroom, two staff 
restroom’s, and one public men’s and woman’s restrooms. 

• These bathrooms have not had any updated modifications done to them since the original building was 
built.  These bathrooms are very dark in color, lighting is very poor, all plumbing fixtures are old, and 
the toilet partitions require maintenance parts that are no longer available.   

• 97 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with (5) five-bidders responding. 
 

Financial Considerations: 
• Funds are budgeted and available in the Library capital account # 401790.7975.900. 

  
Legal Considerations:  

• ITB-COT 07-17, Library Bathroom Renovations was competitively bid and opened with (5) five bidders 
responding. 

• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the renovations of the 
Library bathrooms.  

• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  

 

Policy Considerations: 
• Bidding services of this type help minimize cost and increase efficiently of City government. (Goal II) 
• Provides the public with clean, up to date, and properly lighted bathrooms in accordance with the City’s 

higher standards.  (Goals V). 
• Moving this work forward will improve the bathrooms making them more modern and reduce liability for 

the City. (Goal I & V) 
 

Options: 
• City management and the Building Operations Department recommends awarding the contract for the 

Troy Library bathroom renovations to the lowest bidder, D & S Contractors, Inc. of Berkley, MI for an 
estimated total cost of $76,891.00 to renovate (6) six bathrooms at the Troy City Library, at prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened May 30, 2007.  

 
Mbf  G:\Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Bathroom Renovations 05.07 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a







 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

June 11, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to the City Manager   
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 

Expend Funds on Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expenses - 
Michigan Municipal League (MML) Board of Trustees Meetings 

 
Background: 
 
 Last year Council Member Robin Beltramini was appointed to the MML Board of Trustees.  This 

appointment requires attendance of several out-of-town meetings.  
 On June 5, 2006 City Council authorized approval to expend funds on travel expenses for Council 

Member Beltramini’s attendance of 3 specific meetings in 2006. 
 Since Council Member Beltramini serves on the MML Board of Trustees until September of 2008, 

and there will be several more meetings she is required to attend in this capacity, it is suggested 
that Council pass a resolution authorizing approval to expend funds for Council Member Beltramini 
to attend all necessary out-of-town meetings for the balance of her term with the MML Board of 
Trustees. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds are available in City Council’s Education and Training account, number 102.7960. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Council Member Beltramini’s participation on the MML Board of Trustees affects potentially all 

established goals for Troy. 
 
Options: 
 
 Staff requests that Council pass a resolution that would authorize approval to expend funds on 

any travel necessary relating to Council Member Beltramini’s attendance of MML Board of Trustee 
meetings. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



campbellld
Text Box
E-04c







 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

Date  June 11, 2007 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Macomb County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 
  
Background: 

• Signature Ford is the low total bidder in the Macomb County cooperative bid. 
• Vehicles are sold at auction once they reach 90,000 miles.  
• The vehicles being purchased are replacement vehicles for those sold at auction. 
• By purchasing patrol vehicles before July 31st the City of Troy will save approximately 

$1,000.00 per vehicle. 
 
Financial Considerations: 

• Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account # 565.7981. 
 

ESTIMATED 
     BUDGET           UNIT COST      TOTAL 

 
    (7) Ford Crown Victoria (blue & white)  $168,000.00  $21,011.00  $147,077.00
           $168,000.00     $147,077.00  
 
Legal Considerations:  

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 
Policy Considerations: 

• Four shifts of patrol cars are used on a daily basis to assure proper and proactive Police 
protection. (Goal I & V). 

• The purchase of the patrol cars would assure the safety and welfare of citizens and 
businesses and also reduce the liability for the City. (Goal I & V). 

 
Options: 

• City management and the Public Works Fleet Division recommend awarding to the low total 
bidder, Signature Ford of Owosso, MI (7) seven 2008 Ford Crown Victoria (blue & white) 
Police patrol cars for an estimated total cost of $147,077.00.   

 
SPL\  S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 06.18.07 SR4 - Vehicles MC  

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
June 8, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
   

SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award  – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications  – One (1) Trailer Mounted Sewer Jet 

 
Background: 
 The Fleet Division of Public Works requests authorization to purchase one trailer mounted sewer 

jet, less optional trade-in.  This will replace a trailer jet that is 13 years old. The Fleet Division 
recommends the purchase be made from Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc., bidding a Model 747-
FR2000 Series II, manufactured by Sewer Equipment Company Of America.  

 
 The Fleet Division does not recommend awarding to the low bidder, Sreco Flexible.  They bid a 

HV2060TR/L/P/D/R manufactured by Sreco Flexible.  The sewer jet did not meet specifications for 
the following reasons: the closest repair and parts facility is 160 miles away in Lima, Ohio, a 
loaner trailer jet is not available when warranty repairs are being performed, and the water tanks 
are not baffled. Repair parts are not stocked locally for the jet portion and parts must be shipped 
from Lima, Ohio as needed. The City only owns one trailer-mounted sewer jet and with the repair 
and parts facility approximately 160 miles away, a warranty repair and/or parts needed for repairs 
after warranty would leave the city without a trailer jet for approximately three days.  During which 
time the scheduled proactive sewer cleaning and root cutting maintenance would be suspended.  

 
 Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc. trade-in allowance is $7,500.00. The City may be able to benefit by 

marketing this sewer jet through trade publications and websites, thereby increasing the trade-in 
value of this piece of equipment.  If that fails, the low bidder, Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc., would 
extend their offer to trade-in the equipment at $7,500.00 at the time of delivery of the new unit. 

 
 52 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with two bids received.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 The department has funds budget in the Fleet Equipment Capital account # 565.7981.  

  
 
 

Page 1 of 2 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04e



Page 2 of 2 

June 8, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications –Trailer Mounted Sewer Jet  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 ITB-COT 07-16, to furnish one (1) Trailer Mounted Sewer-Jet for the Fleet Division of Public 

Works was competitively bid and opened with two (2) bids received.   
 
Policy Considerations:
 The trailer mounted sewer jet is used by City crews on a daily basis to assure proper and 

proactive sewer maintenance. (Goal V) 
 The purchase of this machine would assure the health and welfare of citizens and businesses and 

also reduce the liability for the City. (Goal I & V) 
 
Options: 
 City management recommends awarding one (1) Trailer Mounted Sewer Jet to the lowest bidder 

meeting specifications, Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc. of Northville, MI for an estimated total cost of 
$59,820.00.  In addition, City management requests approval to accept or reject the trade-in offer 
of $7,500.00 for the sewer jet, pending the results to offer the equipment for sale on the open 
market at an amount greater than $7,500.00.  

 
 
 
SPL\G:\\Bid Award 06-07 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – SewerJet06.07 

 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-16
Opening Date -- 05/02/07 BID TABULATION Pg 1of 1
Date Prepared -- 06/08/07 SEWER JET W/TRAILER

VENDOR NAME: ** Jack Doheny 
Supplies, Inc.

PROPOSAL:  TO FURNISH ONE (1) TRAILER MOUNTED SEWER JET, LESS OPTIONAL TRADE-IN
PROPOSAL A:

TRAILER MOUNTED SEWER JET
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS
            COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: ** 59,820$            

Series II
Quoting On: 747-FR2000
Manufactured by: Sewer Eqmt Co.

of America
PROPOSAL B:

LESS - OPTIONAL TRADE-IN:
1994 SRECO TRAILER MOUNTED SEWER (7,500)$             
JET MODEL HV2060 TR/L/D/P

                         NET TOTAL: 52,320$             
Marked - 747-FR2000

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Y or N Yes

SERVICE FACILITY: Location Northville, MI

# of Miles 23 Miles

LONER: Can XX
Cannot

TERMS: Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: AS Specified

DELIVERY DATE: 90 - 120 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N Yes

DMS: 
Sreco Flexible:  ($49,300) Re:  Water tanks are not baffled.  No loaner available during repairs 

ATTEST: ** DENOTES LOW BIDDER MEETING SPECIFICATIONS
Debra Painter
Sam Lamerato ____________________________
Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein

Purchasing Director
G: ITB-COT 07-16 Trailer Mounted Sewer Jet



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
June 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
   Mark S. Stimac, Building & Zoning Director 
  
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award - Development 

Approval/Permit Process Consultant 
 
Background 
 On April 24, 2007, Request for Proposals (RFP) were received and opened to provide a review 

and analysis of the City’s permitting processes and recommendations to improve and streamline 
the process.   

 One Hundred Forty-Five (145) vendors were notified via the MITN system with six (6) bidders 
responding of which two (2) companies did not meet minimum pass/fail requirements.   

 Four (4) firms were interviewed on June 4, 2007.  Following the interviews and scoring, city staff 
felt it necessary to hold a second interview with the low bidder out of concerns of the ability to 
complete the work at the bid price. 

 The low bidder, McKenna Associates, indicated in the affirmative that they are able to conduct the 
study as submitted, and offered to share samples of their work product. 

 Staff subsequently reviewed the samples, and does not recommend awarding to the low bidder.  
The samples provided were more of a cursory review of the current practices and process 
mapping output for non-comparable communities.  The samples contained no written survey data 
or analyses as required in the City’s Request for Proposal.  Some of the samples touched on 
existing software packages being used by the entity but each lacked advice on new proposed 
technological tools.  Although one sample mentioned computerizing a task no suggested solution 
was proposed.  In addition, the samples lacked detailed directions and recommendations and 
none of the samples included a comprehensive permit process review.  Since the goal of the 
study is to review the City’s current processes and make in-depth suggestions with a goal to 
reduce permitting turnaround times, it is not recommended that the contract be awarded to the low 
bidder.  

 City staff recommends awarding the contract to Zucker Systems.  A City staff review of Zucker 
Systems work, product and methodology was found to be robust, comprehensive and will provide 
added value towards the City’s goal to reduce permit turnaround times and streamline 
organizational processes. 

Page 1 of 2 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04f



June 12, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Development Approval/Permit Process Consultant 
 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds for the project are available in Real Estate and Development’s account, #740.7816.010. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 RFP-COT 07-10 for Development Approval / Permit Process Consultant was competitively bid and 

opened with six (6) bidders responding.  
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in providing consulting 

services regarding the City’s development approval and permit processes.   
 The contract award is contingent on the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and 

supplemental documents, including insurance certificates, and all other specified requirements.   
 
Policy Considerations 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of city government.  (Goal II) 
 Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. (Goal III) 
 Effectively and professional communicate internally and externally.  (Goal IV) 

 
Options 
 City management recommends awarding a contract for development approval/permit process 

consulting services to the highest scoring respondent as a result of a best value process, Zucker 
Systems of San Diego, CA, for an estimated total cost of $58,700.00.  

 
 

Page 2 of 2 



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Development Approval / Permit Process Consultant  
 

STATISTICS: 
 
 One-Hundred Twelve (112) Firms were notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 American Planning Association posted a notice on their website, which offers the service 

free to its members and the public 
 
 Six (6) proposals were received 

 
 Four (4) firms met the pass/fail criteria and were interviewed 

 
 One (1) firm was eliminated after interview was conducted 

 
 Zucker Systems received the highest score as a result of a best value process  

 
The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final scores: 
 
Firm SCORE 
Zucker Systems 75.4 
D.B. Hartt Inc. 73.4 
Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP 72.2 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – FIRMS ELIMINATED FROM FURTHER CONSIDERATION  
(BASED ON PASS/FAIL MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS AND COMPARABLE PROJECT 
EXAMPLES) 
 

 Management Partners, Inc.  
 Sikich LLP 
 McKenna Associates 

 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring Including Proposal, Interview and Price Scoring 
 Evaluation Process 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING  

Development Approval / Permit Process Consultant  
Final Score Calculation: 

 
20% x Proposal Score 
40% x Interview Score 
40% x Price Score                     
100%              = Final Weighted Score 

 
In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted 
into a score with the base of 100.  NOTE:  Vendors are listed in interview order.   

 

Weighted Average Score for Proposals: 20% 
RATERS 1 2 3 4 AVERAGE 
Vendors:      
Zucker Systems  100 92 96 100 97 
D.B. Hartt Inc.  79 69 88 65 75 
Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP 93 75 85 78 83 
 
Interview Score:  40%  
Raters: 1 2 3 4 AVERAGE 
Vendors:      
Zucker Systems 94 92 83 97 92 
D.B. Hartt Inc. 72 74 79 63 72 
Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP 90 92 89 75 87 
 
Weighted Average Score for Price: 40% -  
RATERS Weighted Criteria – Difference in Costs 

  (1-(Proposal price - lowest price)/low price) x available points 
Vendors:  
Zucker Systems (1-(58,700.00–38,500.00)/38,500.00) x 100    =      48            
D.B. Hartt Inc. (1-(48,700.00–38,500.00)/38,500.00) x 100    =      74                
Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP (1-(56,950.00–38,500.00)/38,500.00) x 100    =      52                    
 
FINAL WEIGHTED SCORE:        
VENDORS: Zucker Systems D.B. Hartt Inc. Virchow, Krause & 

Company, LLP 
Score    
Proposal Score:  (x .20) = 97 x .20 = 19.4 75 x .20 = 15 83 x .20 = 16.6 
    
Interview Score:  (x  .40) = 92 x .40 = 36.8 72 x .40 = 28.8 87 x .40 = 34.8 
    
Price Score: (x .40) =  48 x .40 = 19.2 74 x .40 = 29.6 52 x .40 = 20.8 
    

Final Score:  75.4 73.4 72.2 

** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
G:/ Award 06 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP – Approval & Permit Process Consult – WeightedRatingSummary 06.07.doc 



 
  

SELECTION PROCESS 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The identified City Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to 
award this proposal to the consultant considered the most qualified based upon a combination of 
factors including but not limited to the following: 
 

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C.  Financial strength and capacity of the consultant 
D.  Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E.  Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F.  Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Minimum Qualifications Evaluation 
Firms will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second phase of the 
process.   

 
Phase 2: Evaluation of Proposals 
Each City Committee member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the proposals; 
each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be 
averaged into one score for each firm for this phase of the process.   

 
Phase 3:  Interview Score 
At least, the top three (3) rated firms will be invited to participate in an interview.  If less than three (3) 
candidates remain in the process, all will be interviewed.  Each City Committee Member will 
independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the Interview; each Committee Member will 
calculate a weight score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be averaged into one score for each 
firm for this phase of the process.  Those being interviewed may be supplied with further instructions and 
requests prior to the interview.  Persons representing the firm at the interview must be the personnel who 
will be assigned to this project.  

 
Phase 4:  Price 
Points for price will be calculated as follows: 

 
        FORMULA     - {1 – (Proposal Price – Low Price) / low price} x available points 

 
Phase 5:  Final Scoring and Selection  
The firm with the highest final weighted score will be recommended to the Troy City Council for Award.   
 
 20% Proposal Score (100 point base)  
 40% Interview Score (100 point base)  
 40% Price Score (100 point base)  

 
 
Note:  The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 
deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 
 
 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 07-10
Opening Date -- 4/24/07 TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 6/04/07 PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT SERVICES

PERMIT PROCESSES

FIRM NAME: ** Zucker Systems Virchow, Krause & Co DB Hartt, Inc.

PROPOSAL:    TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT SERVICES TO CONDUCT AN EVALUATION OF CITY'S
DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL AND PERMIT PROCESSES

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE(Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

FIVE (5) COPIES (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Y or N Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSAL:    Schedule of Values NOT TO EXCEED NOT TO EXCEED NOT TO EXCEED

Cost for Scope of Work as Stated: 51,500.00$                      53,550.00$                      45,200.00$                      
Reimbursable Estimated Expenses: 7,200.00$                        3,400.00$                        3,500.00$                        
      COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF:     ** 58,700.00$                      56,950.00$                      48,700.00$                      
Project should be Completed in: 90 Days 120 Calendar Days 120 Days

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: (Hourly Rates) UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
SERVICES: P.Zucker           $185/hr Quality Control  $250.00 D.Hartt        $150.00

S.Troyer            $150/hr Project Mngr     $205.00 B.Frantz        $97.00
K.Wilson           $150/hr Senior Mngr      $215.00 D.Lannoch     $97.00
M.Birch             $150/hr Senior Consult  $165.00 A.Duffey Rogers  $97.00

ADDITIONAL SERVICES: Same as above Blank Same as above

REMIBURSEABLES: At Cost Trans/Lodging $500/day Mileage             $790.00
Meals $50/day Lodging          $1,140.00

Meals               $490.00
Printing Allow $1,080.00

TERMS: Blank Page Missing Blank

DELIVERY DATE: Blank Page Missing 4/24/2007

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Page Missing Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Page Missing Yes

ADDENDUM #1 Y or N Yes No No

NO BIDS: G:RFP-COT 07-10 Professional Consultant Services - Permit

Beckett & Raeder 
Land Design ** DENOTES HIGHEST RATED BIDDER AS A RESULT OF A BEST VALUE PROCESS
Vandewalle & Associates

DMS:
McKenna Associates ($38,500.00) Re:  Insufficient experience with scope of work required
Management Partners, Inc. ($40,150.00) Re: Insurance certificate submitted does not fulfill the requirements for professional liability
Sikich LLP ($89,800.00)  Re:  Insufficient experience for the type of work required on this project

ATTEST:
Cheryl A. Stewart
Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein CPPB
Pamela Valentik Purchasing Director



campbellld
Text Box
E-05













 

 
 
June 5, 2007 
 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

 William Nelson, Fire Chief 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director  
     
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item – Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival 
 
 
Background:   
 
 Michigan Fireworks Law requires that before anyone can conduct a fireworks display, they must 

apply to the local unit of government for a permit. 
 On April 24, 2007, a permit application from Mad Bomber Fireworks Productions, Inc., of 

Kingsbury, Indiana was received by the City of Troy for a public fireworks display to be conducted 
at the close of this year’s Troy Daze Festival. The law defines local unit of government as a 
council or commission of a city or village, or the township board of a township. 

 Mad Bomber Fireworks Productions, Inc. is requesting that City Council grant a permit for a public 
fireworks display to occur on Sunday, September 16, 2007 at Boulan Park. 

 The Fire Prevention division has review the permit application and recommends that City Council 
issue a fireworks permit to Mad Bomber Fireworks Productions, Inc. Attached for Council’s review 
is the permit application along with the permit to be signed and issued. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funding for the fireworks display is available in the Parks and Recreation Community Fair 

operating account #784.7889.010. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 none 

 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06











Policy Considerations: 
 
 The Troy Daze Festival attracts nearly 100,000 people annually to celebrate the community. A 

wide variety of activities provide fun for the entire family, and offer an opportunity for Troy 
business and community groups to showcase their organizations. (Goal I)  

 
Options: 
 
 City Management recommends that City Council issue a fireworks permit to Mad Bomber 

Fireworks Productions, Inc. 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 



campbellld
Text Box
E-07









       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
E-8 Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield from 

Special City Council Meeting of Monday, June 11, 2007 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-08



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
June 13, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:   2006/07 Budget Amendment No. 2 
 
 
Background: 
 
 In June of every fiscal year, once May financials are out, we review all budgetary centers to 

determine whether a budget amendment is necessary based on eleven months of actual 
expenditures and estimating June expenditures. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Several of the budget amendments are a result of receiving grants during the year that were not 

anticipated during budget preparation.   
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The budget amendments will keep us in compliance with P.A. 621 of 1978 Uniform Budgeting Act, 

which calls for budgets to be amended when necessary. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The budget amendment conforms to Goal II, “Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and 

effectiveness of City government”, by upholding fiscal integrity. 
 
Options: 
 
 It is requested that City Council approve Budget Amendment No. 2 as recommended by City 

Management. 
 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\06.18.07 - 2006/07 Budget Amendment No. 2 

campbellld
Text Box
E-09



2006-2007 BUDGET AMENDMENT NO. 2

CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

GENERAL FUND

REVENUE

FEDERAL GRANTS 34,500$              240,000$       274,500$          
INVESTMENT INCOME 700,000              60,000           760,000            
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 300,000$      

EXPENDITURES

FIRE OPERATIONS 255,000$            300,000$       555,000$          
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 300,000$      

REFUSE FUND

REVENUE

INVESTMENT INCOME 100,000$            35,000$         135,000$          
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 35,000$        

EXPENDITURES

CONTRACTORS SERVICE 4,363,000$         35,000$         4,398,000$       
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 35,000$        

BUDGET STABILIZATION FUND

REVENUE
INVESTMENT INCOME 40,000$              60,000$         100,000$          
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 60,000$        

EXPENDITURES
TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND 40,000$              60,000$         100,000$          
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 60,000$        

TDDA DEBT FUND

REVENUE
TRANSFER FROM TDDA FUND -$                    3,023,000$    3,023,000$       
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO REVENUES 3,023,000$   

EXPENDITURES
PRINCIPAL -$                    1,650,000$    1,650,000$       
INTEREST -                     1,372,000      1,372,000         
OTHER FEES -                     1,000             1,000                
TOTAL AMENDMENT TO EXPENDITURES 3,023,000$   



2006-2007 BUDGET AMENDMENT NO. 2

CURRENT AMENDED
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET

CAPITAL FUND

REVENUE
FEDERAL GRANTS 305,000$            15,000$         320,000$          
SALE OF LAND 335,260              370,000         705,260            
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - FEES 70,000                1,000             71,000              

386,000$      

EXPENDITURES
POLICE ADMINISTRATION 38,000$              15,000$         53,000$            
GENERAL ENGINEERING -                     370,000         370,000            
COMMUNITY AFFAIRS - CATV 35,000                1,000             36,000              

386,000$      

Amendment requested to provides funds for recognition of Federal Grant for Fire equipment;
Contractor's Service for the Refuse Fund; Investment income transfer from the Budget Stabilization
Fund to the General Fund; Downtown Development Authority transfer to TDDA Debt Fund;
Recognition of Grant Revenue and Sale of land proceeds for police equipment and Engineering
Office building purchase. 



campbellld
Text Box
E-10



















 

 
June 13, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police   
    
SUBJECT:  Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions  
 
Background: 
 
 Lori Attan, who resides at 45 Hickory, is requesting the parking restrictions on the South side 

(non-fire hydrant side) of Hickory street, between Livernois and Plum, be temporary waived on 
June 24, 2007, between the hours of 1:00 PM and 10:00 PM.  

 Ms. Attan is hosting a graduation open house on that date; Hickory is posted no parking on both 
sides of the street does not have adequate parking for her anticipated guests. 

 The Traffic Safety Unit has inspected the location and reports the waiving of the restrictions for the 
cited time period will not significantly impact emergency response to the area. 

 Should the need arise, Ms. Attan will arrange for the immediate removal of any vehicles parked on 
Hickory. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 N/A 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Ordinance prohibits parking on Hickory; therefore, City Council action is required to grant a 

variance. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 City of Troy Goal #1 - Enhance the livability and safety of the community.   

 
Options: 
 
 Approve the request. 
 Deny the request. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-11



campbellld
Text Box
E-12









       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in 
accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City 
Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-99 PC



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  

a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled 
b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historical Commission; 
Historic District Commission; Municipal Building 
Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board c) City Council 
Appointments – Students: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Cable Advisory Committee; 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic District 
Commission; Historical Commission; Library Advisory 
Board; Liquor Advisory Committee; Parks & Recreation; 
Planning Commission; Traffic Committee and Troy 
Daze Committee 

campbellld
Text Box
F-01



 
June 1, 2007 

 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Bid Waiver - Sole Source Purchase – Chemical Munitions  
 
Background 
 The Police Department purchases chemical munitions from DEF-TEC, a sole source supplier 

periodically, as the need arises for the tactical support team and road patrol command vehicles.  
The shelf life of these products is limited to five (5) years, so every so often we must replenish our 
stock and obtain a new shipment. The expired product is then used for training purposes.  These 
products are needed for tactical incidents and are necessary to perform the tasks in the safest 
manner possible.   

 
 Def-Tec (Defense Technologies) is a sole supplier for these products and sells directly to 

customers. 
 
 The last order was placed in October 2001. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are available in the Police Department operating budget, account # 315.7740.010.     
 
Legal Considerations  
 Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 This purchase will enable and assist the Police Department in its mission to protect the public. 

(Goal I)   
 
Options 
 The Police Department recommends the purchase of these products directly from the 

manufacturer, DEF-TEC (Defense Technologies) of Casper, WY, at an estimated total cost of 
$16,580.00, as detailed on the attached memorandum.  

 
 
G:\BidAward 06-07 NewFormat\Regular Business – Waiver ChemicalMunitions06.07.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



 
500 W. Big Beaver Troy, Michigan 48084  (248) 524-3443 

 
 
 
TO: CAPTAIN EDWARD MURPHY, PATROL DIVISION COMMANDER 
 
FROM: LIEUTENANT MCWILLIAMS, SPECIAL OPERATIONS SECTION 
 
DATE:  May 22,2007 
  
RE:  Chemical Munitions Purchase 
 
Captain Murphy, 
   
Listed below are the numerous products we need to replenish our stock of chemical 
munitions.  The vast majority of the items are simply replacement, needed to re-stock our 
inventory.  As you are aware the shelf life of these products is 5 years, our last purchase 
was October 2001.  The expired product has been used in training scenarios, so we did get 
full use/ value out of them.   
 
Part ID Number      Description         Cost per Unit         Qty         Total 

 
1083   HC Smoke (white)   $33.80  40  $1,352 
1067 Military Style Smoke canister (red) $57.35  10  $573.50 
1093   Rubber Ball Smoke Grenade (white) $33.80  30  $1014 
7001   Disposable Distraction Device $40.00  40  $1,600 
1090   .32 Caliber Rubber Ball Stun Grenade$45.74 30  $1,372.20 
2042   Flameless Expulsion Grenade (CS) $47.90  20  $958 
2040   Flameless Expulsion Grenade (OC) $47.90  20  $958 
1072   Speade-Heat Grenade Cannister (CS)$36.00 34  $1224 
1032   Tri-Chamber Flameless Grenade $47.30  22  $1040.60 
1092   CS Gas Han-ball Rubber Ball Grenade$34.60 30  $1038 
1199   37MM Launch .60 Cal Stingers Ball $24.30  20  $486 
1183   37 MM Lg Range Speade-Heat smoke$26.80 30  $804 
1192   37 MM Barricade Penetrat CS powder$28.70 24  $688.80 
2002   37MM Short rg Speade-Heat CS $25.65  30  $769.50 
1152   37 MM Flite-rite CS Round  $54.05  4  $216.20 
1182   37 MM Long rg Speade-Heat CS   $23.45  20  $469 
1190   37 MM Barricade Penetrating OC   $28.70  24  $688.80 
1098   Inert Rubber Ball Practice Grenade  $45.75  10  $457.50 
1193   37 MM Inert Barricade Practice  $24.30  30  $729 
3092    Ferret-12 Powder CS gas 12 ga   $7.00  20  $140 
 

Total Cost  $ 16,579.10 

Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
Gary G. Mayer, Captain 
Edward J. Murphy, Captain 
Dane M. Slater, Captain  



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
June 11, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director  
 
SUBJECT:   Bid Waiver – Sole Source - Irrigation Supplies 
 
Background: 
 On June 16, 2003, Troy City Council approved a two-year contract to purchase irrigation 

replacement parts including Rainbird and MAXICOM products from the authorized 
dealer/distributor for Michigan, John Deere Landscapes, Inc. (Council Resolution #2003-06-3350). 

 On June 2, 2005, Troy City Council approved a renewal of the two-year contract under the same 
pricing structure, terms and conditions expiring June 30, 2007. (Council Resolution #2005-06-299-
E-4a). 

 John Deere Landscapes, Inc. of Madison Heights MI, is the exclusive distributor in southeast 
Michigan and provides parts and supplies at varied discounts up to 46%. 

 The account is used by various City departments to purchase repair parts and supplies for routine 
maintenance of irrigation systems throughout the City.  

 All of the irrigation systems in Troy’s parks, municipal grounds, and irrigated medians employ 
Rainbird parts and Rainbird MAXICOM irrigation controllers. The automated MAXICOM controllers 
allow information relative to the individual areas being serviced to be sent to a dedicated 
MAXICOM computer terminal at the Parks and Recreation Garage, prompting Parks personnel to 
be able to quickly and efficiently adjust and/or repair components of the system. 

 All of the Rainbird and other irrigation products are in stock and readily available from John Deere 
Landscapes, reducing irrigation system downtime. 

 John Deere Landscapes has indicated their interest in renewing the contract under the same 
terms and conditions. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 Funds for on-going repair and maintenance of municipal irrigation systems are available in Parks 

and Recreation operating accounts. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived from soliciting formal bids.  

 
June 11, 2007 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



Page 2 of 2 

 
To:    Philip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:    Bid Waiver – Sole Source - Irrigation Supplies 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 Readily available irrigation parts and materials reduce irrigation downtime. (Goal II) 
 Contractor prices with varied discounts up to 46% provide cost effective materials. (Goal II) 

 
Options: 
 The Parks and Recreation Department is requesting a waiver of the formal bid process and 

authorization for a two-year contract to purchase irrigation supplies including Rainbird and 
MAXICOM products from John Deere Landscapes, Inc. of Madison Heights, MI at discounts up to 
46% expiring June 30, 2009.  

 
 
 





campbellld
Text Box
F-04

















































 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
  June 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to the City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Appointment of Voting Delegate for the June 21, 2007 
    SEMCOG General Assembly Meeting 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Council Member Robin Beltramini is the voting delegate to SEMCOG and Planning Director Mark 

Miller is the alternate. 
 The SEMCOG General Assembly meeting is scheduled for Thursday, June 21, 2007 at 4:30 PM 

at the Sheraton Novi. 
 Both Robin Beltramini and Mark Miller will be attending the Master Plan workshop on June 21, 

2007 beginning at 6:30 PM at the MSU Management Education Center in Troy and therefore 
cannot attend the SEMCOG General Assembly meeting. 

 
Options: 
 
 It is requested that City Council appoint a voting delegate to attend the SEMCOG General 

Assembly meeting on June 21.  For the convenience of the appointed delegate I have attached a 
copy of the General Assembly meeting agenda and driving directions to the Sheraton Novi. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\06.18.07 - Appointment of a Voting Delegate for the SEMCOG General Assembly Meeting on 6-21-07 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
F-05





































































































































campbellld
Text Box
F-06











 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
June 12, 2007 
 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 

 
SUBJECT:  2007 Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and 

Proposed Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations 
 
 
Background: 
 
 City administration strives to maintain a competitive salary and benefit structure for full-time 

employees. 
 In 1999, City Council approved the Salary Structure and Pay Plan for Classified and Exempt 

employees, and two subsequent annual updates, as recommended by the Hay Group. 
 Since 2002, City Council has approved annual updates to the Pay Plan based on surveys of cities 

conducted internally and recommended by the Personnel Board. 
 Surveys were conducted internally of salaries for similar positions in other communities for the 

2007-08 fiscal year. 
 The Personnel Board approved the Pay Plan proposed by City administration which provides a 

2% increase. 
 Employees are advanced through the pay range based upon performance. 
 City administration continues efforts to bring consistency and reduce costs in the benefit package 

provided to employees. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The proposed Pay Plan adjustment results in an average salary increase to employees of 2.7%.  

This is comprised of a 2% across the board increase plus a merit increase depending on 
performance of up to $650. 

 Increasing the employee contribution (for employees who participate in the Defined Benefit 
Pension Plan) from 1% to 1.5% will result in an annualized cost savings of approximately .5%. 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



2007 Annual Salary Update (Classified & Exempt) 
Page Two 
 
 
 Eliminating duplicate health insurance for employees who are married to each will eliminate 

unnecessary costs and is consistent with the health insurance provision for other employee 
groups. 

 Funds are budgeted and available in the 2007-08 budget. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The Personnel Board reviewed the proposed changes to the Classification Plan and Pay Plan, 

benefit package and Personnel Rules and Regulations on May 29, 2007 and recommends 
approval by City Council 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government by rewarding 

employees based upon merit, and by reducing the City’s financial liability for health insurance and 
pension (Goal II). 

 Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally by maintaining a fair and 
competitive total compensation package in order to attract and retain qualified employees (Goal 
IV). 

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends approval of the 2007 Classification and Pay Plans for Classified 

and Exempt employees, proposed benefit changes and Personnel Rules and Regulations as 
detailed on appendices.  

 
 
 
PES/JML/BPM/bjm/PS07M.023 



 
Personnel Board Approved:   5/29/07 
City Council Approved:    
 
G:C&E/C & E PAY PLAN 2007 

 
PAY PLAN 

 
CLASSIFIED AND EXEMPT EMPLOYEES 

 
JULY 1, 2007 

(Reflects a 2% increase over 2006 Plan) 
 

 
 

Grade Minimum Mid-Point Maximum  
1 $24,543  $30,679  $36,815  
2 $28,748  $35,936  $43,123  
3 $33,590  $41,988  $50,386  
4 $39,452  $49,314  $59,176  
5 $46,331  $57,915  $69,498  
6 $55,125  $68,906  $82,686  
7 $65,318  $81,648  $97,977  
8 $80,756  $100,947  $121,137  
9 $82,918  $103,648  $124,377  

10 $85,467  $106,833  $128,199  
11 $88,511  $110,640  $132,768  
12 $92,113  $115,141  $138,169  
     

15 $107,696  $134,621  $161,545  
 
 
 



CLASSIFICATION PLAN
CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES

July 1, 2007

Pay Grade 1 Pay Grade 5
Accountant

Pay Grade 2 Administrative Assistant to the City Manager
Inventory Control Assistant Appraiser
Museum Archivist Building Inspector

Civilian Communications Supervisor
Pay Grade 3 Community Affairs Officer
Administrative Aide Cross Connection Inspector
Assistant Naturalist Environmental Specialist
Education Coordinator Field Supervisor
Engineering Technician GIS Analyst
Legal Secretary Legal Assistant II
Library Aide Project Manager (Engrg.)
Manager's Office Secretary Right-of-Way Representative
Secretary II

Pay Grade 6
Pay Grade 4 Inspector Supervisor
Building Maintenance Specialist
Engineering Assistant Pay Grade 7
GIS Data Analyst Plan Analyst
Inspector
Insurance & Safety Coordinator
Landscape Analyst
Legal Assistant
Librarian I
Office Coordinator
PC Specialist/Help Desk Technician
Planning Technician
Survey Supervisor

July 1, 2006

Personnel Board Approved: 
Council Approved: 
N = 36
G:C/E Classification Plans 2007



CLASSIFICATION PLAN
EXEMPT EMPLOYEES

JULY 1, 2006 July 1, 2007

Pay Grade 3 Pay Grade 7 (continued)
Assistant to the City Manager Economic Development Specialist

Parks Superintendent
Pay Grade 4 Plans Examiner/Coordinator
Aquatics Coordinator Principal Planner
Associate Buyer Risk Manager
Fitness and Gym Coordinator Senior Right-of-Way Representative
Naturalist Superintendent of Building Operations

Superintendent of Motor Pool
Pay Grade 5 Superintendent of Recreation
Application Support Specialist Superintendent of Streets and Drains
Buyer Superintendent of Water and Sewer 
Community Center Facility Manager
Data Processing Analyst/Programmer Pay Grade 8
Director of Golf Operations Assistant City Attorney
Greens Superintendent City Clerk
Land Surveyor Community Affairs Director
Lead PC Specialist Director of Building Operations 
Librarian II Director of Purchasing
Nature Center Manager
Planner Pay Grade 9
Police Analyst Programmer City Assessor
Police Records Supervisor City Engineer
Recreation Supervisor Director of Building and Zoning
Solid Waste Coordinator Financial Services Director

Fire Chief
Pay Grade 6 Human Resources Director
Assistant Library Director Information Technology Director
Civil Engineer Library Director
Communications Manager Parks and Recreation Director
Deputy City Clerk Planning Director
GIS Administrator Real Estate and Development Director
Human Resources Specialist
Museum Manager  Pay Grade 10
Network Administrator Police Chief
Project Construction Manager Public Works Director
Purchasing Systems Administrator
Research and Technology Administrator Pay Grade 11

City Attorney
Pay Grade 7
Attorney I Pay Grade 12
Attorney II Assistant City Manager/Finance
City Treasurer Assistant City Manager/Econ Dev Services
Community Affairs Director
Deputy City Assessor Pay Grade 15
Deputy City Engineer City Manager

Council Approved:  
N =   68
G:Classified/ExemptClassPlan 2007



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft  May 29, 2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Personnel Board was held Tuesday, May 29, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Clerk Bartholomew called the meeting to order at 6:31 
PM. 

ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT: Member Baughman 
  Member Huber 
  Member Nelson 
  Member Tschirhart 
   
 ABSENT: Member Shah 
   
 ALSO PRESENT: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager, Finance & Administration 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
  Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 
 
Appointment of Personnel Board Chairperson: 
 
Resolution PB-#2007-05-001 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That Members of the Troy Personnel Board hereby APPOINT Member 
Tschirhart to serve as Chairperson. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
Approval of Minutes of June 5, 2006: 
 
Resolution PB-#2007-05-002 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the minutes of Monday, June 5, 
2006 as amended to include the “No” votes with the word “None” following the vote and with 
the Adjournment Resolution Number expanded to read “2006-06-006”. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
Old Business: None 
 
New Business: 

-1- 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft  May 29, 2007 
 
 
A. Recommendations for Classification Plan and Pay Plan 
 
Human Resources Director Sears reviewed the recommendations and noted that the GIS 
Data Analysis has had a change in duties and performs at an elevated level than what is 
provided for in the Pay Plan. The title is recommended to have the word “Data” eliminated 
and moved up one grade to Pay Grade 5. Additionally, there was a desk audit preformed on 
one of the Legal Assistant’s positions and it was determined that that position should be 
increased to a Legal Assistant II with the salary falling within Pay Grade 5.  
 
In addition to the Classifications and Pay Grade recommendations, Director Sears reviewed 
the recommendations for the Pay Plan. She stated that staff had performed comparisons 
with similar communities and found that the salary ranges should be increased by 2% and 
therefore management recommends an increase to the Pay Grade schedule to be increased 
across the board by 2%. Additionally, management is recommending a 2% across the board 
pay increase for the Classified Employee Group with merit increases to employees who 
preformed at high and clearly outstanding levels as indicated by their Annual Personnel 
Evaluations. Ms. Sears noted that in the past, employees received a .5% and 1%, 
respectively, for merit increases. In order to more clearly reward high achievers as well as 
maintain costs within budget, Director Sears indicated that management is proposing a flat 
rate Merit Plan. She reviewed the 2007 Merit Increase matrix and stated that a $650.00 
increase for the Clearly Outstanding employees and a $200.00 increase for the High Level 
employees are being proposed. The dollar amount was proposed because the impact on the 
City budget will be slightly lower than what was experienced in the 2006-07 budget. 
Discussion continued on the evaluations and the proposed rates. It was the consensus that 
superior employee should be encouraged and rewarded accordingly.  
 
Resolution PB-#2007-05-003 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
for the Classification Plan and Pay Plan (FY 2007-2008) as submitted and presented by 
human Resources Director Peggy Sears with the plan rewards being elevated or superior 
employees rewarded the greatest merit pay in the amounts of $650.00 and $200.00 for the 
high performers. 
 
Yes:  All-4 
No:  None 
 
B. Recommended Revisions to Benefit Provisions: 

 
1. Increase Employees Contribution for Participation in the Defined Benefit Pension 

Plan 
 
Human Resources Director Sears reviewed the item and noted that it is the goal of 
Management to bring the Classified and Exempt Employee Group into line with the other 

-2- 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft  May 29, 2007 
 
non-police employee groups. She noted that the recommendation is to increase the 
contribution for employees participating in the Defined Benefit program by .5%. The 
employee’s total contribution towards the Defined Benefit plan will be 1.5%. It was noted that 
the modification would have an effect on the employer contribution by slightly less than .5%.  
 
Resolution PB-2007-05-004 
Moved by Huber 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
in the Personnel Rules, Section XXX - Retirement, as submitted. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
2. Eliminate Dual Health and Dental Insurance Coverage for Employees Who Are 

Married to Each Other 
 
Human Resources Director Sears reviewed the item and noted that the proposed 
recommendation before the Personnel Board is to eliminate the availability of dual coverage 
for two employees that are married to each other. She noted that the benefit change has 
been successfully achieved with all recently negotiated collective bargaining agreements, 
and Management is proposing the revision be applied to the Classified Employee Group. 
This proposed change would affect approximately 5 couples.  
 
Mr. Lamerato indicated the same revision would be addressed for married couples where 
there is an employee and a retiree. He noted retiree laws are a little more restrictive however 
the matter will continue to be investigated for future implementation. 
 
Chairman Tschirhart questioned terminology and suggested “legally recognized marriages”. 
 
Resolution PB-2007-05-005 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Huber 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
in the Personnel Rules, Section XXVI. Hospitalization and Medical Insurance, to eliminate 
Dual Health and Dental Insurance Coverage for Employees Who Are Legally Married to 
Each Other, as submitted. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
C. Approval of Revisions to Personnel Rules  
 

-3- 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft  May 29, 2007 
 
Human Resources Director Sears reviewed the proposed item. She noted that the 
proposed recommendation is a housekeeping item, which would replace the words 
“Personnel Office” with “Human Resources Department”, and “probation period” with 
“review period”. The rationale for the change is to reduce the confusion for third party 
employment interpretation between a “just cause relationship” and “at will relationship” 
between employees and the City of Troy.  
 
Resolution PB-2007-05-006 
Moved by Huber 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed language revision 
recommendations in the Personnel Rules as submitted. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
Amend Agenda to Add Cafeteria Plan Insurance Overview  
 
Resolution PB-2007-05-007 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby AMENDS their May 29, 2007 Agenda to 
include item 6. D. Cafeteria Plan Insurance Overview. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
D. Cafeteria Plan Insurance Overview
 
Assistant City Manager Lamerato gave a brief overview and status report regarding the City 
of Troy’s Cafeteria Plan Insurance. He noted that the City of Troy, through the 
recommendation of their Certified Public Accountant firm, adopted a Health Insurance 
Cafeteria Plan, Section 125 – Pay-In-Lieu Benefit Plan. 
 

Adjournment:  
 
Resolution PB-2007-05-008 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Tschirhart 
 
RESOLVED, That there being nothing else to come before the Board, the meeting be 
ADJOURNED. 

-4- 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft  May 29, 2007 
 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 7:31PM. 
 
  

 
 
 

 Ronald Tschirhart, Chairman 
  

 
 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

-5- 



PROPOSED REVISIONS TO PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS 
May 29, 2007 

 
 
1. Under Article XXVI. Hospitalization and Medical Insurance, add language 

restricting dual coverage for employees/retirees who are married to each other.   
2. Add verbiage regarding the contribution rate for employees who participate in the 

Defined Benefit Pension Program as noted in the excerpt below. 
 

 
 XXX.  RETIREMENT 

Employees hired before 1/1/98 who chose to remain in the Defined Benefit 
plan continue to participate in the Defined Benefit (DB) Pension Program, 
as explained in Chapter 10 of the Troy City Code.  The employee 
contribution rate for this pension program is 1.5% of earnings  
(increased from 1.0%, consistent with other employee groups).  
          (7/07) 

City of Troy employees hired on or after 1/1/98 participate in the Defined 
Contribution (DC) pension program which is administered by the ICMA 
Retirement Corporation. 

1.  Contributions: The contribution rates for this plan are (as a % of 
earnings): 

Employer: 12% (for employees hired before 1/1/04) 

  11% (for employees hired on or after 1/1/04) 

  10% (for employees hired on or after 7/1/05) 

         (7/05) 

Employees: 4% 

2.  Vesting: Employees are 50% vested at three years, 75% 
vested at four years and 100% vested at five years.  The vesting 
percentage applies to employer contributions only. 

           
          (1/06) 
 
 

3. Replace “probation” with “review period”, and “Personnel Office” with “Human 
Resources Department” wherever they appear in the Rules and Regulations 

G  Personnel R&R/2007 Revisions 
Personnel Board Approved:  May 29, 2007 
Council Approved: 



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
June 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Tim Richnak, Public Works Director 
  
SUBJECT: Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – SOCRRA  
 
Background 
 Attached is a copy of the proposed Interlocal Service Agreement between the City of Troy and 

SOCRRA, where the City of Troy will provide fleet maintenance services on certain SOCRRA 
motor vehicles. 

 The Interlocal Service Agreement follows a discussion with the City’s insurance pool to further 
define and outline the parameters of work that is to be performed. 

 The agreement was presented to the SOCRRA Board on June 13, 2007, and approved by 
unanimous vote. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 No additional staffing is required.  There is capacity in the facility to take on the additional work. 
 The agreement generates outside revenue and maximizes the use of our facility and staffing.  
 This operation also reduces our overall costs in the refuse and composting budget by reducing 

SOCRRA's operational costs. 
 The cost charged to SOCRRA is the fully burdened rate charged by the Enterprise Fund. 
 The Enterprise Fund reviews the fully burdened rates on an annual basis, and will adjust the 

agreement as needed.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 Legal counsel has reviewed the contract for form and legality.   

 
Policy Considerations 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of city government.  (Goal II) 
 Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity.  (Goal VI) 

 
Options 
 City management recommends entering in to the Interlocal Service Agreement with SOCRRA for 

fleet maintenance services.  

Page 1 of 1 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



Rev. 6-5-07 1

      
        

INTERLOCAL SERVICE AGREMENT FOR FLEET SERVICES 
 
  
This Interlocal Service Agreement dated, this ____ day of ______2007, is made by 
and between: 
 

Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority 
3910 W. Webster Road 
Royal Oak, Michigan  48073 

 
-And- 
 City of Troy 
 500 W. Big Beaver Road 
 Troy, Michigan 48084 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS , the City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084 (hereinafter “TROY”), and Southeastern 
Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority, a municipal authority authorized by 
state law, 3910 W. Webster Road, Royal Oak, Michigan 48073 (hereinafter 
“SOCRRA”) or TROY and SOCRRA hereinafter together referred to as the “Parties” 
or the “Party” are authorized separately by law to provide for the repair and 
maintenance of public works vehicles for their respective public entities;  
 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Constitution of 1963, Article 7, § 28, and the Urban 
Cooperation Act of 1967, Act No. 7 of the Public Acts of 1967, Ex. Sess., being MCL 
124.501, et. seq. (the “Act”), permit a political subdivision to exercise jointly with any 
other political subdivision any power, privilege or authority which such political 
subdivisions share in common with which each might exercise separately;   

 
WHEREAS, due to the fact that public work vehicles have specific 

performance requirements which require specialized service and maintenance work, 
it is difficult for public entities to locate service facilities that are able to perform those 
specialized services, properly and timely; 

 
WHEREAS, TROY has a facility at its Department of Public Works building 

located at 4693 Rochester Road, Troy, Michigan 48085 that contains the Troy Fleet 
Division.  The Troy Fleet Division maintains a vehicle repair facility and personnel 
capable of repairing and maintaining public works vehicles for TROY and, by this and 
other interlocal agreements, other public entities; 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties have mutually agreed that this Agreement be entered 

into to allow SOCRRA and TROY to repair or maintain SOCRRA’s public works 
vehicles on an as requested basis and under the terms set forth below. 
 



Rev. 6-5-07 2

WHEREAS, pursuant to resolution of its governing bodies, the Parties each 
have the authority to execute this Interlocal Service Agreement (“Agreement”) to 
allow TROY to repair or maintain SOCRRA’s public work vehicles at costs on an as 
requested basis and under the terms set forth below.  
 
 

Based upon the foregoing statements, the Parties agree to 
the following terms, conditions, representations, consideration and 
acknowledgements and mutually agree as follows: 
 

1. TROY represents and SOCRRA acknowledges that TROY has the necessary 
facility, tools and equipment and its employees have the qualifications, 
experience and abilities to provide services in connection with the business of 
maintaining and repairing public works vehicles owned by  SOCRRA. Public 
works vehicles shall mean loaders, dozers, cars and trucks, whether marked 
or unmarked, used for public purposes of SOCRRA. 

 
2. TROY is agreeable to providing such services through TROY’S  Fleet  

Division to SOCRRA, on the terms and conditions as set forth in this 
Agreement and upon the request of SOCRRA.  
 

3. SOCRRA, at its own discretion and based on SOCRRA’s decisions,  hereby 
agrees to engage Troy’s Fleet Division to provide repair and maintenance 
services during regular business hours consisting of the following work: 
service and/or maintenance on SOCRRA’s loaders, dozers, cars and trucks as 
requested by SOCRRA. TROY will also provide a technician on call if needed 
24 hours a day, 7 days per week.  The technician on call-can be reached at 
cell # 248 885-1847. After hours, weekends and holidays will be billed at 
premium rate with a minimum billing of three hours of service.  SOCRRA 
understands and acknowledges that TROY’S personnel will first service TROY 
vehicles.  However, TROY will make every reasonable effort to timely 
complete work for  SOCRRA under the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

 
4. SOCRRA understands, acknowledges and relies on the representation that  

TROY will use the highest standards which control the repair and maintenance 
of loaders, dozers, cars and trucks.  TROY will not deviate from these 
standards even at the request of SOCRRA. 

 
5. Subject to an annual adjustment of rates as provided in Paragraph 7,  

SOCRRA shall pay compensation for the maintenance and repair services of
 TROY’S Fleet Division employees provided by TROY’S Fleet Division at the  

following rates: 
 

Technician’s time:   $73.00 per hour or fraction thereof.  
 
Technician’s premium time: Minimum amount of 3 hours plus 
                              $88.00 per hour or fraction thereof . 

 



Rev. 6-5-07 3

6. SOCRRA shall also pay the costs for all necessary parts and necessary 
supplies used in the repair and/or maintenance of the vehicles. 

 
7. Before June 1st of each year, TROY shall review its personnel costs, including 

technician’s time and technician’s premium time, and any costs directly related 
to the ability of TROY to provide services under this Agreement.  If those costs 
have increased, TROY shall notify SOCRRA in writing of the amount of and 
the reason for the increased costs for services under the Agreement. Those 
increased costs will be effective on July 1st of each year. This increase in costs 
shall be effective even if the Agreement was executed within less than a year 
period of the cost increase. 

  
8. SOCRRA will be invoiced on a monthly basis.  Payment for all costs must be 

paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Payments shall be mailed 
to:______________________________________________. 

 
9. TROY shall have absolute discretion to refuse to repair and/or maintain any 

loader, dozer, car or truck under this Agreement. SOCRRA is not obligated  
under this Agreement to use the services of Troy exclusively and SOCRRA is 
expressly allowed to seek other similar services on an as needed basis  
without violating this Agreement. 

 
10. THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT, AND IS NOT INTENDED TO INCLUDE ANY 

WARRANTIES, PROMISES OR GUARANTIES BY TROY OF ANY NATURE 
WHATSOEVER, CONCERNING THE TECHNICIANAL SERVICING AND/OR 
REPAIR OF ANY LOADER, DOZER, CAR OR TRUCK. 

 
11. The Agreement shall remain in effect until terminated by either Party.  Either 

Party may terminate this Agreement, for any reason (including the  
convenience of any Party), and without penalty but shall comply with  
Paragraph 12.  Either Party may deliver a written notice of termination of the 
Agreement to the names and address set out in the notice provision of 
Paragraph 18. Termination shall become effective thirty (30) days from the 
date of the notice unless TROY or SOCRRA has indicated a different 
termination date beyond the thirty (30) days on the notice supplied to the other 
party.  

 
If  TROY has vehicles belonging to SOCRRA on its site, SOCRRA shall state 
in its termination notice that it authorizes TROY to complete work on those 
vehicles or that TROY is to discontinue work on those vehicles.  If  TROY is to 
discontinue work on the vehicles, SOCRRA shall  pick up the vehicles within 
five (5) days of the notice of termination.  If TROY completes work on the 
vehicles based on instructions from SOCRRA after termination of the 
Agreement, all terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply as to those 
vehicles. 

 
12. Upon receipt of notice of termination of the Agreement by SOCRRA, TROY 

shall have thirty (30) days to fully invoice SOCRRA for any outstanding 
balances that have not previously been invoiced. SOCRRA shall continue to 
be responsible for payment for the cost of services, parts and supplies either 



Rev. 6-5-07 4

invoiced prior to termination or performed or purchased by TROY  before the 
notice of termination.  TROY will attempt to return any used parts and supplies 
to suppliers that it is unable to use on non- SOCRRA vehicles being serviced 
by TROY.  If TROY is unable to obtain full refunds or only obtains partial 
refunds, SOCRRA will be invoiced for those non-refundable and/or partially 
refundable parts and supplies. The invoice shall be paid within 30 days from 
the date of the invoice. TROY will hold those parts and supplies for 30 days 
from the date of the invoice for pick up by SOCRRA.  SOCRRA shall be 
responsible for payment for the non-refundable and/or partially refundable 
parts and supplies whether or not picked up by SOCRRA. 

 
13. The Parties agree that at all times and for all purposes under the terms of this 

Agreement each Party’s relationship to the other Party is that of an 
independent contractor.  No liability, right or benefit arising out of any 
employer/employee relationship, either express or implied, shall arise or 
accrue to any party as a result of this Agreement. 

 
14. All of the privileges and immunities from liability, and exemptions from laws,  
     ordinances and rules , and all pensions, relief, disability, worker’s  
     compensation and other benefits which apply to the activity of officers, agency,  
     or employees of any public agency or employees of any public agency when 
     performing their respective functions within the territorial limits of their 
     respective agencies shall apply to the same degree and extent to the  
     performance of such functions and duties of such officers, agents or  
     employees extraterritorially under the provisions of any such interlocal 
     agreement. 

 
15. SOCRRA agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless 
     TROY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and  
     others working on behalf of TROY against any and all claims, demands, suits,  
     or loss, including, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or  
     recovered against or from TROY, its elected and appointed officials, 
     employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of  TROY by reason of  
     personal injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property damage,  
     including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or is in any way connected or  
     associated with services, maintenance and/or repair performed for SOCRRA   
     in accordance with this Agreement. This duty to indemnify, defend and hold  
     harmless shall include all costs of litigation or defense of claims including  
     attorney fees, costs and expert fees. 
 

   16.  TROY shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless SOCRRA from any and 
          all claims of damage against SOCRRA, or for damages to SOCRRA’S  
 loaders, dozers, cars and trucks proximately caused by the gross negligence  

of Troy  in the provision of services, maintenance and/or repairs performed for  
SOCRRA in accordance with this Agreement. To the extent this provision is 
triggered, this duty to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall include all 
costs of litigation or defense of claims including attorney fees, costs and expert 
fees. 

 
17. TROY acknowledges that it is currently issued with proper coverage and limits. 



Rev. 6-5-07 5

TROY agrees to keep its current insurance, or insurance of a similar nature, in 
           effect during all dates of service of maintain to SOCRRA vehicles.  Upon   
           requested by SOCRRA, TROY shall provide a Certificate of Insurance as  
           evidence of it coverage. 

 
18. TROY represents and agrees that all work for SOCRRA under the terms of  
     this Agreement shall be performed in accordance with all appropriate and  
     applicable industry standards.   
 
 
19. Within ten (10) days from the execution of this Agreement, SOCRRA shall  
     provide a Certificate of Insurance acceptable to the City demonstrating that 
     general liability coverage is available for any and all claims for personal injury  
     or property damage which are or might be caused by maintenance and repairs 
     done by Troy and the use of the vehicles by SOCRRA. SOCRRA 
     agrees to keep said insurance coverage in effect for the term of this 

Agreement or any renewals thereof (Sample Certificate attached as Exhibit A). 
          SOCRRA shall submit to the City of Troy Risk Management Department prior  
          to the expiration of any insurance coverage the new Certificate(s) of Insurance  
          acceptable to the City. Any Certificate(s) of Insurance shall name the City of 
          Troy as an additional insured and contain the following cancellation notice:  
   

 “Should any of the above described policies be cancelled 
                        before the expiration date thereof, the issuing insurer will  

  mail 30 days written notice to the certificate holder 
  named to the left.” 

 
SOCRRA acknowledges that, once accepted by the Troy Risk Manager, the 
specified insurance for the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect 
during the life of the Agreement. 

    
Additionally, TROY may request a copy of said insurance certificate at any 
time during this Agreement.  Failure to produce a certificate of insurance within 
twenty (20) days of a request by the City, shall allow the City to terminate the 
Agreement with forty-five (45) days written notice. 

    
It shall be the responsibility of SOCRRA to ensure that the City is provided 
with a new Certificate of Insurance acceptable to the City before a Certificate 
of Insurance on file with the City’s Risk Management Department expires. A 
lapse in the insurance coverage  required under the Agreement shall be 
considered a material breach of this Agreement and the Agreement shall 
become null and void automatically at any time such a lapse in coverage 
exists.  

 
20.The Parties agree that they shall promptly deliver to the other Party written  

notice and copies of any claims, complaints, charges, or any other 
accusations or allegations of negligence or other wrongdoing, whether civil or 
criminal in nature, that the other Party becomes aware of which involves, in 
any way the facility, equipment, personnel and/or services under this 
Agreement.  Unless otherwise provided by law and/or the Michigan Court 



Rev. 6-5-07 6

Rules, the parties agree to cooperate with one another in any investigation 
conducted by the other party of any acts or performances of any services 
under this Agreement. 

 
21.The Parties agree that all indemnification and hold harmless promises,  
      waivers of liability, representations, insurance coverage obligations, liabilities, 
      payment obligations and/or any other related obligations provided for in this  
      Agreement with regard to any acts, occurrences, events, transactions, or  
      claims, either occurring or having their basis in any events or transaction that  
      occurred before termination of this Agreement, shall survive the termination. 

 
22.Any written notice required or permitted under the Agreement shall be 

considered delivered to a party as of the date that such notice is deposited, 
with sufficient postage, with the U.S. Postal Service.  Unless specifically 
otherwise set out in the Agreement, all writing sent to TROY shall be sent to: 
Sam Lamerato, City of Troy – Fleet Division, 4693 Rochester Road, Troy, 
Michigan 48085.  All writing sent to SOCRRA shall be sent to: Jeff McKeen. 

 
23.This Agreement sets forth the entire Agreement between the Parties.  The  

language of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair 
meaning and not constructed strictly for or against any party. The Parties have 
taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary to authorize and 
complete this Agreement. 

 
24.If a Court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision of this Agreement  

invalid or unenforceable, then  that provision shall be deemed severed from 
the Agreement.  The remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force. 

 
25.This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of Michigan and shall in  

 all respects be interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws of the State  
 of Michigan. Except as otherwise required by law or court rule, any action 
brought to enforce, interpret or decide any claim arising under this Agreement 
shall be brought in the 6th Judicial Circuit Court of the State of Michigan or the 
United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan, Southern 
Division as dictated by the applicable jurisdiction of the court.  Except as 
otherwise required by law or court rule, venue is proper in the courts set forth    
above. 

    
     26. The Recitals shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement. 
 
     27. The Agreement may be amended or an alternative form of the Agreement  
       adopted only upon written agreement of the Parties. 
 
      28. Except as expressly provided herein, this Agreement does not create, by  

  implication or otherwise, any direct or indirect obligation, duty, promise,  
  benefit, right of indemnification (i.e., contractual, legal, equitable, or by 
  implication) right of subrogation as to any Party’s rights in this Agreement, or 
  any other right of any kind in favor of any individual or legal entity. 

 
29.  Each Party shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining, throughout the  



Rev. 6-5-07 7

term of this Agreement, all licenses, permits, certificates, and governmental    
authorizations for its employees and/or agents necessary to perform all  of its 
obligations under this Agreement.  Upon request, a Party shall furnish copies 
of any permit, license, certificate or governmental authorization to the 
requested party. 

 
       30.   Absent a written waiver, no fact, failure or delay by a Party to pursue or  

    enforce any rights or remedies under this Agreement shall constitute a  
    waiver of those rights with regard to any existing or subsequent breach of 
    this Agreement. No waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this 
    Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, in one of more instances shall  
    be deemed or construed as a continuing waiver of any term, condition, or  
    provision of this Agreement.  No waiver by either Party shall subsequently 
    affect its right to require strict performance of this Agreement. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement if executed by the Parties on the 
date hereafter set forth.   
 
 
WITNESSES:    CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
       Municipal Corporation, 
 
__________________________  By:______________________ 
           Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
__________________________ 
 
 
__________________________   
      By:______________________ 

Tonni Bartholonew, City Clerk 
__________________________   

 
 

 
                                    
 
___________________________ ____________________________, 

a Michigan ___________________ 
 
___________________________          By:___________________________ 
      Its:___________________________  
                                      
 
DATE:______________ 
 
 
 



Rev. 6-5-07 8

 
 
 
 
                                                                 



 1

 
 
DATE: June 14, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 Mark S. Stimac, Building & Zoning Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Final Approval – The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD 7) – 

Proposed Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development, Southwest corner of Big 
Beaver and John R, Section 26 – M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
 
Background: 
 

• City Council granted Preliminary Approval of PUD 7 (with conditions) at the April 30, 2007 
Regular meeting.   

 
• The project includes a combination of retail stores and other commercial uses near the 

intersection of Big Beaver Road and John R Road, and a senior living facility to the south 
along John R Road.  The proposed retail/commercial uses equal 62,545 square feet.  The 
senior living facility use proposes a four (4) story building with 120 units for independent living, 
and a three (3) story building with 80 units for assisted living. 

 
• The proposed PUD meets the Eligibility requirements of Section 35.30.00 of the City of Troy 

Zoning Ordinance. 
 

• The proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval of Section 35.70.03 of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
• The project is structured into Phase I, the Retail Phase and Phase II, the Senior Living Phase.  

The project has met all Engineering Standards for Phase I and Phase II.    All dedications and 
easements are executed with one exception.  The Cross Access Easement has not been 
executed, but can reasonable be expected to be completed before City Council considers Final 
Approval of the PUD. 

 
• Phase II has not been submitted for Final Site Plan Approval; however, the Development 

Agreement grants this authority to City Management.  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-09



 2

Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• The item is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and safety of the 
community), Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment), and Goal 
V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public needs). 

 
 
Options: 
 

• City Council can approve the application for Final PUD Approval. 
 
• City Council can approve the application for Final PUD Approval with conditions. 
 
• City Council can deny the application for Final PUD Approval. 
 

 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. City Council Minutes from the April 30, 2007 Special/Study meeting. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /PUD 7 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD 007 Village at Big Beaver\CC Final Approval 06 18 07.doc 
 
 
 









R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



B
E

LL
IN

G
H

A
M

JACKSON

ROUNDTREE

D
O

M
IN

IQ
U

E

LINCOLN

E BIG BEAVER

R
H

O
D

E
ISLA

N
DGARRY

JO
H

N
 R

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED P.U.D. #7 VILLAGE AT BIG BEAVER
SW CORNER BIG BEAVER & JOHN R
SEC. 26    ZONED M-1     (PUD #7)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 20050
Feet ³



B
E

LL
IN

G
H

A
M

JACKSON

ROUNDTREE

D
O

M
IN

IQ
U

E

LINCOLN

E BIG BEAVER

R
H

O
D

E
ISLA

N
DGARRY

JO
H

N
 R

CJ-17

CJ-22

CJ-16

(R-1E)

(RM-1)

(B-1)

(B-2)
(O-1)

(M-1)

(R-C)

(R-2)

(B-3)

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REQUEST
PROPOSED P.U.D. #7 VILLAGE AT BIG BEAVER
SW CORNER BIG BEAVER & JOHN R
SEC. 26    ZONED M-1     (PUD #7)

SUBJECT PROPERTY

0 100 20050
Feet ³



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  April 30, 2007 
 
 
 
1. PUBLIC HEARING – Proposed Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit 

Development (PUD 7), Southwest Corner of Big Beaver and John R, Section 
26 – M-1 Light Industrial District 

 
Resolution #2007-04-134 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council reviewed a Preliminary Plan for a Planned Unit 
Development, pursuant to article 35.60.01, as requested by SAAAM-Troy, LLC for The 
Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD – 7), located on the south side of 
Big Beaver and west side of John R Road, located in section 26, within the M-1 zoning 
district, being approximately 15.048 acres in size;  
 
WHEREAS, The City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. prepared a memorandum dated March 29, 2007 that recommends 
conditional approval of The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development;  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed PUD meets the Eligibility Requirements set forth in Article 
35.30.00 and the General Development Standards set forth in Section 35.40.00;  
 
WHEREAS, The Preliminary Planned Unit Development application consists of the 
project manual and a set of full size plans; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Planned Unit Development, parts of parcels 88-20-26-200-
026, -023, -069, -072, -073, is described in the following legal description and illustrated 
on the attached Certificate of Survey drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE 1/4 of Section 26 
 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 26, thence S 
00°04'00" W along the East line of said Section 26, a distance of 
102.00 ft.; thence N 89°59'10" W (recorded as S 89°50'00" E), 60.00 
ft. along the extension of the south line of Big Beaver Road (204 ft. 
wide) to the Point of Beginning; thence S 00°04'00" along the west 
line of John R. Rd., 1032.00 ft.; thence parallel to said North line of 
Section 26, N 89°59'10" W, 260.00 ft.; thence parallel to said East line 
of Section 26, S 00°04'00" W, 144.00 ft.; thence parallel to said North 
line of Section 26, N 89°59'10" W, 160 ft.; thence parallel to said East 
line of Section 26, N 00°04"00" E, 338.00 ft.; thence parallel to said 
North line of Section 26, N 89°59'10" W, 235.00 ft.; thence N 
00°16'31" W, 838.01 ft. (recorded as N 00°16'24" W, 839.09 ft.) to the 
aforementioned south line of Big Beaver Rd.; thence S 89°59'10" E 
(recorded as N 89°50'00" E) along said south line, 660.00 ft. to the 
Point of Beginning; containing 15.048 acres more or less; 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  April 30, 2007 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES The Village 
at Big Beaver Preliminary Planned Unit Development, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. Signage for the entire retail portion, including the CVS 
Drugstore, Bank, Retail A, Retail B, Retail C and Retail D shall 
comply with the Sign Ordinance requirements for B districts.  
Signage for the senior housing facility shall comply with Sign 
Ordinance requirements for the R-M district. 

 
2. Elevations for the proposed Bank and Retail Building A shall 

be consistent in design, character, and materials with the other 
buildings within the PUD.  Furthermore, the elevations shall be 
brought back to the Planning Commission for review prior to 
granting of building permits.   

 
3. Rooftop mechanical equipment shall be fully screened with 

materials that are architecturally consistent with the building 
elevations. 

 
4. The applicant shall investigate additional sustainable 

stormwater improvements with the Planning Consultant and 
City Management. 

 
5. The west elevations of Retail Building D shall have similar 

articulation with the east elevations. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini, Stine  
 



 

 
 
June 18, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing for LMS, 5755 New King 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 LMS North America, has requested the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD), 

and the issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for their move to 5755 
New King.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The financial considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The legal considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Policy considerations will occur at the Public Hearings. 

 
Options: 
 
 The public hearings will be on July 23, 2007 to conform to State law.  

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T\LMS\AnnouncePH07.23.07 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, July 23, 2007 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from LMS North  America, for the establishment of an Industrial 

Development District (IDD) at the following location: 

 

T2N, R11, E, of Section 8 

Part of NE 1/4, etc.  

Parcel # 88-20-08-227-004 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
PATRICK DOHANY 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
DAVID HIEBER 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
LMS NORTH AMERICA 
1050 WILSHIRE STE 250 
TROY MI 48084 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, July 23, 2007 at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the request from LMS North America, for the granting of an Industrial Facilities 

Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for a period not to exceed 12 years, beginning December 

31, 2007, for personal property located at: 

 

T2N, R11, E, of Section  

Part of NE ¼, etc.  

Parcel # 88-20-08-227-004 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
       City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


 
MICHAEL ADAMCZYK 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 
 

 
PATRICK DOHANY 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
DAVID HIEBER 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
LMS NORTH AMERICA 
1050 WILSHIRE STE 250 
TROY MI 48084 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: June 13, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Adult Use Businesses – Licensing Ordinance 
 

       
 
 
The Planning Commission has reviewed the proposed Adult Use Business zoning amendments, 
and has recommended approval of the revisions to provide some additional safeguards for the City 
of Troy.  A public hearing on these proposed revisions is set for the June 18, 2007 City Council 
meeting.  The recommended version of the Adult Use Business zoning amendments requires each 
proposed operator to submit to an annual licensing procedure.  Therefore, a proposed Adult Use 
Business Licensing schedule has also been prepared for City Council consideration.   
 
The enactment of a new Adult Use Business License also requires amendments to Chapter 60 
(fees) and Chapter 3 (enforcement authority), which are also submitted for Council review, in draft 
form.  Minor revisions to the formatting must still be made.  The definitions in the proposed new 
Chapter 76 mirror the definitions in the proposed Adult Use Business zoning amendments.  As a 
result, any modification to the proposed zoning text will likely require a similar change to the 
licensing ordinance.  For this reason, the proposed ordinances are provided as informational items 
at this time.  Any City Council modifications can be incorporated prior to submission of the 
ordinances for approval.  However, since it is essential that the licensing and application procedure 
are linked to the proposed zoning changes, the proposed resolution makes the effective dates of all 
Adult Use Business amendments in Chapter 3, 39, 60, and 76 the same.       
 
In addition to the definitions section, the new proposed Chapter 76 also sets forth the Adult Use 
Business Application requirements, as well as the investigation process.  The proposed ordinance 
also specifies the factors that can be considered in deciding whether or not to grant a requested 
special use approval for an Adult Use Business.  Grounds for suspension of a license are also set 
forth in the proposed Chapter 76, as well as the required standard of conduct.   
 
Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns about the proposed Adult Use Business 
Licensing ordinance.  Absent objections from City Council, this item will be brought back as an 
action item on a subsequent City Council agenda.  
         
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  

CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3 
of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Section 1.141 (6) of Chapter 3 
 
Section 1.141 (6) is hereby amended to provide that a City of Troy Building 
Inspector shall have authority to issue and serve appearance tickets to Adult Use 
Businesses if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person has 
committed a violation of Chapter 76. 
 
Section 1.141 (6) is amended by the addition of the following: 
 

Section 1.141 (6)   A City of Troy Building Inspector shall have authority to 
issue and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil 
Infraction notice of violation and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if 
he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a 
violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City Code. 
 
Chapter 76. Adult Use Businesses Licenses              

 
 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect are hereby saved.  Such 
proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This Ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this Ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 
of this Ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any 
ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 



Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date. 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI, on the______day of ________,2007. 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  

CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60 
of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule of Chapter 60. 
 
Section 60.03 - Fee Schedule is hereby amended to provide a license fee and 
renewal fee for Adult Use Businesses. 
 
Section 60.03 - Fee Schedule. Is amended by the addition of the following new 
fees:    
 
 
ITEM/SERVICE:     FEE: 
 
Adult Use Business  
 
Application Fee     $500.00 
 
Investigation Fee $500 for up to and including 4 

persons and an additional $100 
per person thereafter 

 
      

Annual License Renewal Fee     $500.00 
 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect are hereby saved.  Such 
proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this Ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 



of this Ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any 
ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI, on the______day of ________,2007. 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 



 1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO ADD A NEW CHAPTER TO THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY WHICH CHAPTER SHALL BE 
DESIGATED AS CHAPTER 76 

 
 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 

Section 1.  Short Title: 
 

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as Chapter 76 of the Code of the  
City of Troy. 

 
Section 2. Adoption of Article VII, Chapter 76 

 
Chapter 76 of the Code of the City of Troy, to provide for the licensing of adult use businesses, to 
provide for definitions of adult use businesses, to provide for application for a license, to provide for 
specific requirements and conditions for adult use businesses and to provide for a penalty for violation 
thereof, is hereby adopted as set forth below: 

 
Section 3.  ADULT USE BUSINESS LICENSE 

 
I. Purpose.  The purpose and intent of this Chapter is to regulate adult use businesses, to 

promote the health, safety, morals and general welfare of the citizens of the city, and to establish 
reasonable and uniform regulations for adult use businesses. The provisions of this Chapter have 
neither the purpose nor the effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content of any 
communicative materials, including adult materials.  Similarly, it is not the intent nor effect of this 
section to restrict or deny access by adults to adult materials protected by the Constitution of the United 
States or the Michigan Constitution, or to deny access by the distributors and exhibitors of adult use 
businesses to their intended market.  Neither is it the intent nor effect of this Chapter to condone or 
legitimize the distribution of obscene material. 

 
II. Definitions.  For purposes of this Chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 
 

Adult Arcade.  An establishment where, for any form of consideration, one or more still or motion 
picture projectors, slide projectors, compact discs or similar machines, or other image producing 
machines, (whether coin-operated, slug-operated or electronically, electrically, internet or mechanically 
controlled), for viewing by five (5) or fewer persons each, are used to show films, motion pictures, video 
cassettes, compact discs, slides or other photographic reproductions which are characterized by the 
depiction or description of “specified sexual activities” or “ specified anatomical areas”. 

 
Adult Book Store, Adult Novelty or Retail Store or Adult Video Store. 

 
A. An establishment which, as one of its principal business purposes, offers any one or more of the 

following for sale, rental, or viewing at the site, for any form of consideration: 
 

1. Books, computer diskettes, tapes or hard drives, magazines, periodicals or other printed 
material, films, motion picture, video cassettes or video reproduction, slides or other visual 
representations which depict or describe “specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical 
areas”; and/or 
 

2. Instruments, devices, or paraphernalia which are designed for use in connection with “specified 
sexual activities”; and/or 

 



 2

3. Items, materials, gimmicks, or paraphernalia depicting, displaying, advertising or packaged as 
“specified sexual activities” or depicting or describing “specified anatomical areas”. 
 

B. For purposes of this section, “principal business purpose” means:  
 

1. The devotion of a significant or substantial portion of its stock-in-trade or interior floor space; or 
 

2. The receipt of a significant or substantial portion of its revenues from; or 
 

3. The devotion of a significant or substantial portion of its advertising expenditures to the 
promotion of the sale, rental or viewing, of books, magazines, periodicals or other printed 
matter, or photographs, film, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides or other 
visual representations, items, materials, gimmicks, or paraphernalia which are characterized by 
the depiction, description display, advertising or packaging of “specified sexual activities” or 
“specified anatomical areas”.  
 

C. An establishment may have other principal business purposes that do not involve the offering 
for sale, rental or viewing of materials depicting or describing “specified sexual activities” or 
“specified anatomical areas”, and still be categorized as an adult bookstore, adult novelty or 
retail store or adult video store.  Such other business purposes will not serve to exempt such 
establishment from being categorized as an adult bookstore, adult novelty store or adult video 
store, so long as the establishment falls within the definition of an adult bookstore, adult novelty 
store or adult video store as set forth above. 

 
Adult Caberet.  A nightclub, club, bar, restaurant or similar commercial establishment which features 
one or more of the following:  

 
A. Person(s) who appears nude or in a state of nudity or semi-nudity; 

 
B. Live performances which are characterized by the exposure of “specified anatomical areas” or 

by “specified sexual activities”; 
 

C. Films, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, slides or other photographic 
reproductions which are characterized by the depiction or description of “specified sexual 
activities” or “specified anatomical areas”. 

 
Adult Motel.  A motel, hotel or similar commercial establishment which:  

 
A. Offers accommodations to the public for any form of consideration and provides patrons with 

closed-circuit television transmissions, films, motion pictures, video cassettes, compact discs, 
slides or other photographic reproductions which are characterized by the depiction or 
description of “specified sexual activities” or “specified anatomical areas” and which advertises 
the availability of this adult type of material by means of a sign, visible from the public right of 
way, or by means of any off-premises advertising, including but not limited to newspapers, 
magazines, pamphlets or leaflets, radio or television; and/or 

 
B. Permits patrons to be filmed or photographed performing sexually explicit activities or displaying 

“specified anatomical areas”, including transmission over the World Wide Web; and/or 
 

C. Offers a sleeping room for rent for intervals of time less than ten (10) hours; and/or 
 

D. Allows a tenant or occupant to sub rent a sleeping room for intervals of less than ten (10) hours. 
 



 3

Adult Motion Picture Theater.  A commercial establishment where films, motion pictures, video 
cassettes, compact discs, slides of  “specified sexual activities” or depictions or descriptions of 
“specified anatomical areas” are regularly shown for any form of consideration. 

 
Adult Theater.  A theater, concert hall, auditorium or similar commercial establishment which, for any 
form or consideration, regularly features persons who appear in a state of nudity or live performances 
which are characterized by exposure of “specified anatomical areas” or by “specified sexual activities.”  
This definition does not include a theater which features occasional live nude performances with 
serious literary, artistic, or political value and that have no adverse secondary effects. 

 
Adult Use Business.  An adult arcade, adult bookstore, adult novelty or retail store, adult video store, 
adult cabaret, adult motel, adult motion picture theater, adult theater, escort agency, nude modeling 
studio and/or a sexual encounter establishments and any business determined by the Planning Director 
to be an adult use, due to the activities of the business which involve characteristic of adult uses, such 
as nudity, semi-nudity, exposure of “specified anatomical areas” and/or “specified sexual activities”.  
The definition of “adult use business” shall not include an establishment where a medical practitioner, 
psychologist, psychiatrist or similar professional person licensed by the State engages in medically 
approved and recognized sexual therapy. 

 
Employee.  A person who works or performs in and/or for an adult use business, regardless of whether 
or not said person is paid a salary, wage or other compensation by the operator of said business. 

 
Entertainer.  A person who performs some type of activity or pose with the intent of allowing others to 
witness that activity or pose. 

 
Entertainment. A performance of some type of activity, including, but not limited to, singing, dancing, 
acting, mime, comedy, recitations, demonstrations, magic tricks, modeling, posing, exhibition, with or 
without inanimate objects or animals, with the intent of allowing others to witness that activity in live or 
reproduced format. 

 
Escort.  A person who, for consideration in any form, agrees or offers to act as a companion, guide, or 
date for another person, (or who agrees to privately perform as an entertainer, including but not limited 
to, the modeling of lingerie, the removal of clothing, and the performance of a dance or skit).  Under this 
definition, “privately” shall mean a performance for an individual and that individual’s guests. 

 
Escort Agency.  A person or business that furnishes, offers to furnish, or advertises the furnishing of 
escorts as one of its primary business purposes, for a fee, tip or any other form of consideration. 

 
Establishment.  In regard to an adult use business, means and includes any of the following: 

 
A. A new business; 

 
B. An existing business, whether or not an adult use business, that has been converted to or which 

adds as a component any adult use business; 
 

C.        An adult use business that adds a different or expanded adult use business activity to any other  
      existing adult use business;  

 
or 

 
D. A relocated adult use business. 
 
Licensee.  The individual listed as an applicant on the application for an adult use business license, or a 
person in whose name a license to operate an adult use business has been issued.  

 



 4

Licensing Officer. The Clerk of the City of Troy or his/her designee. 
 

Manager.  An operator, other than a licensee, who is employed by an adult use business to act as a 
manager or supervisor of employees, or is otherwise responsible for the operation of the adult use 
business. 

 
Nude Modeling Studio.  Any place where a person appears in a state of nudity or displays “specified 
anatomical areas”, and is provided money or any form of consideration to be observed, sketched, 
drawn, painted, sculpted, photographed or similarly depicted by other persons. This includes modeling 
studios that provide for nude modeling on an occasional basis, but it does not include modeling studio 
whose primary function is to provide art classes as part of a college, university or educational institution 
and which is certified by the State of Michigan. 

 
Nudity or State of Nudity.  

 
A. The exposure of human male or female genitals, pubic area, buttocks, anus or the areola or 

nipple of the female breast; and/or 
 
B. A state of dress which fails to opaquely and fully cover human male or female genitals, pubic 

area, buttocks, anus or the areola or nipple of the female breast. 
 

Operator.  Includes the owner, licensee, manager, or person in charge of any premises. 
 

Peep Booth.  An adult motion picture theater with a viewing room or cubical of less than one hundred 
fifty (150) square feet of floor space. 

 
Person.  An individual, proprietorship, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, association or 
other entity. 

 
Premises or Licensed Premises.  Any premises that requires an adult use license and that is classified 
as an adult use business. 

 
Principal Owner.  Any person owning, directly or beneficially: a) ten percent (10%) or more of a 
corporation’s equity securities; b) ten percent (10%) or more of the membership interests in a limited 
liability company; or c) in the case of any other entity, ten percent (10%) or more of the ownership 
interests in the entity. 

 
Private Room.  A room in a hotel/motel that is not a peep booth, has a bed, a bathtub, a shower, a toilet 
and/or a sink in the room or adjacent room, and is used primarily for lodging. 

 
Semi-Nude.  A state of dress in which clothing covers no more than the genitals, pubic region, and 
areola of the female breast, as well as portions of the body covered by supporting straps or devices. 

 
Sexual Encounter Establishment.  A business or commercial establishment that as one of its primary 
business purposes, offers a place where two (2) or more persons may congregate, associate, or 
consort for the purpose of “specified sexual activities” or the exposure of “specified anatomical areas” 
or any activities when one or more or the persons is in a state of nudity or semi-nudity and/or permits 
patrons to display or be filmed or photographed performing “sexually explicit activities” or displaying 
“specified anatomical areas” for recording or transmission over the World Wide Web or any other 
media, for any form of consideration.  A hotel/motel will not be classified as a sexual encounter 
establishment, by virtue of the fact that it offers private rooms for rent. 

 
Specified Anatomical Areas. 

 



 5

A. Less than completely and opaquely covered human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, anus or 
female breasts below a point immediately above the top of the areola; and/or 

 
B. Human male genitals in a discernibly turgid state, even if completely and opaquely covered. 

 
Specified Criminal Acts:  Any felony, included but not limited to, crimes involving gambling, weapons, 
robbery, ID theft, tax evasion, fraudulent activity, sale or manufacture of controlled substances, sexual 
crimes against children, sexual abuse, criminal sexual conduct, rape, crimes classified as sexual crimes 
by the State of Michigan or any other state; or crimes connected with another business whether an 
adult use business or otherwise,  including but not limited to, the distribution of obscenity, prostitution, 
pandering, maintaining a nuisance, repeated acts of disturbing the peace,  noise or assaultive behavior 
violations at the same location, and/or repeated acts involving the excessive us of alcohol by patrons, 
employees and/or entertainers. 

 
Significant or Substantial Portion.  Means thirty (30) percent or more of the term modified by such 
phrase.  

 
Specified Sexual Activities. 

 
A.  The fondling or other intentional touching of human genitals, pubic region, buttocks, anus or 

female breasts: and/or 
 

B.  Sex acts, actual or simulated, including but not limited to, intercourse, oral copulation or 
sodomy; and/or 

 
C.  Masturbation, actual or simulated; and/or 

 
D.  Human genitals in a state of sexual stimulation, arousal or tumescence;  

and/or 
 

E.  Excretory functions as part of or in connection with any of the activities set  
forth in subsections (A) through (D) of this definition. 

 
Tip.  Any money or other consideration given by a patron or patron’s agent to an entertainer. A tip 
includes, but is not limited to, money, fees, service charges, gifts, salary, donations, stipends, 
contribution, offer of service, performance of service, payment or any other consideration. 

 
Transfer of Ownership or Control of an Adult Use Business.   

 
A. The sale, lease or sublease of the business; and/or 

 
B. The transfer of securities which constitute a controlling interest in the business,  

whether by sale, exchange or similar means; and/or 
 

C. The establishment of a trust, management arrangement, gift or 
 other similar legal device which transfers ownership or control of the 
 business, except for transfer by bequest or other operation of law upon 
 the death of a person possessing the ownership or control. 

 
III. Location of Business.  It shall be unlawful to operate or cause to be operated an adult use business in 

any location in the City except as provided in Troy’s Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 39, Article  
XXII, Section 22.30.08 of the Code of Ordinances. 

 
IV. License Required; Application Fee; Investigation Fee; License Fee. 
 



 6

A. No person shall conduct an adult use business without first having obtained an annual adult 
business license for each separate place of business in the City. 

 
B. Applicants for a new adult use business license shall pay an application fee and an investigation 

fee as set by Chapter 60 of the ordinances of the City of Troy. An existing adult use business 
shall pay an annual license fee as set by Chapter 60 of the ordinances of the City of Troy.  

 
C. In the event an application or a application for a license renewal  for an adult use business 

license is withdrawn or denied, the application fee, investigation fee and /or license fee shall not 
be refunded to the applicant. Fees are not transferable. 

 
V. License Application. 
 

A. All applicants for an adult use business license shall file an application for such license with the 
City Clerk on forms provided by the Clerk.  Each principal owner and all managers and 
employees shall be named on the application form. 

 
B. The completed application shall contain the following information and/or shall be accompanied 

by the following documents: 
 

1. If the applicant is: 
 

a. An individual: the individual shall state his or her legal name and any aliases and 
shall submit satisfactory proof that he or she is at least eighteen (18) years of age. 

 
b. A partnership: the partnership shall state its complete name, and the names of all 

partners, whether the partnership is   general or limited, and attach a copy of the 
partnership agreement, if any. 

 
c. A corporation: the corporation shall state its complete name, the date of its 

incorporation, evidence that the corporation is in good standing under the statutes of 
the State of Michigan, or in the case of a foreign corporation, evidence that it is 
currently authorized to do business in the State of Michigan, the names and titles of 
all officers, directors and principal owners, and the name of the registered corporate 
agent and the address of the registered office for service of process. 

 
d. A limited liability company: the limited liability company shall state its complete name, 

the date of filing of the articles of organization and operating agreement, and the 
names of all managers and members. 

 
2. Whether the applicant or any other individual required to be listed on the application currently 

holds or has previously held an adult use business license or currently works or has previously 
worked for an adult use business, adult entertainment or sexually oriented business; whether 
that business is or was licensed in another state, city or county; and whether that business 
license was ever denied, suspended or revoked.   The name and location of the adult use 
business, the reason the permit was denied, suspended or revoked, and the date of the denial, 
suspension or revocation must be provided on the application. 

 
3. The location of the proposed adult use business, including a legal description of the property, 

street address and telephone number(s). 
 

4. Proof of the applicant’s right to possession of the premises where the adult use business is 
proposed to be located. 

 



 7

5. The name, address and telephone number of the applicant and any other individual listed on the 
application. 

 
6. A photocopy of the driver’s license or other government issued identification for the individuals 

listed in Article V and/or Article VI of this Chapter. 
 

7. A floor plan of the proposed premises that specifies the location and dimensions of any 
employee’s station(s) and demonstrates that there is an unobstructed view from at least one of 
the employee’s stations of every area of the premises to which any patron is permitted access 
for any purpose, excluding the restrooms. The proposed floor plan shall designate the use of 
each room or area in the premises and designate those rooms or other areas of the premises 
where patrons are not permitted. The proposed floor plan need not be professionally prepared 
but must be drawn to a designate scale or drawn with marked dimensions of the interior of the 
premises to an accuracy of plus or minus six (6) inches.  The diagram shall designate the place 
where the license will be conspicuously posted and the location of any proposed stage.   

 
8. A current certified drawing prepared, within thirty (30) days prior to the application, by a land 

surveyor depicting the property lines and the structures containing any adult use business within 
one thousand (1,000) feet measured from the nearest lot line on a straight-line basis, and 
depicting the property line of any church, school, childcare facility, public park, residential zoning 
district or any parcel used for residential purposes, whether zoned residential or not, within five 
hundred (500) feet from the nearest lot line to the nearest lot line on a straight-line basis. 

 
9. Whether the applicant or any of the other individuals listed in Article V and/or Article VI of this 

Chapter have been convicted of a specified criminal act within the times set forth in Article VII. 
1.8. of this Chapter, including the nature of the specified criminal act and the date and place of 
conviction. 

 
10. Photographs (passport size or approximately two [2] inches by two [2] inches) and fingerprints 

of all principal owners and each manager, general partner, and, in the case of a corporate 
applicant, the president of the corporation. 

 
C. If the applicant is an individual, he/she shall sign the application for a license.  If the applicant is 

a corporation, the application shall be signed by the president or vice-president and attested to 
by the secretary or assistant secretary.  If the applicant is a general partnership, the application 
shall be signed by a general partner.  If the applicant is a limited liability corporation, the 
application shall be signed by the manager. 

 
D. If an omission or error is discovered by the City Clerk, he/she shall promptly notify the applicant 

and returned the application for completion or correction. The City Clerk shall not be required to 
take any further action.  The applicant shall have thirty (30) days to properly complete the 
application. The time period for granting or denying a license shall be stayed during the period 
in which the applicant is allowed an opportunity to property complete the application.   Any 
application rejected due to an omission or error shall be re-filed only when the omission or error 
has been remedied.  For the purposes of this Chapter, the official application date is the date 
the City Clerk accepts an application that is complete for filing. 

 
E. Applicants for a license under this Chapter shall have a continuing duty to promptly supplement 

application information required by this section in the event that said information changes in any 
way from what is stated on the application.  The failure to comply with this continuing duty within 
thirty (30) days from the date of such change, by supplementing the application on file with the 
City Clerk, shall be grounds for the suspension, revocation or denial of an adult business 
license. 

 



 8

 VI. Investigation. 
 

On receipt of a properly completed application and the payment of the application and investigation 
fees, the City Clerk shall submit the documentation to the Chief of Police, or his/her designee.  The 
Troy Police Department shall investigate the background of each individual applicant, manager, 
employee, independent contractors, other than building and trade contractors, that act as entertainers, 
waitress and/or have any contact with patrons in any other way, partners of a partnership, president, 
vice-president, secretary and treasurer of a corporation, or other officers and the holders of stock of a 
corporation.  Each applicant shall pay a non-refundable and non-transferable investigation fee at the 
time the application if filed for each person who will be investigated.  Fees under this section shall be 
set by resolution of City Council.  The report of the Troy Police Department shall be referred to the City 
Clerk. 

 
The City Clerk shall transmit a request to the Planning Director for a report determining whether or not 
the proposed location of the adult use business complies with the locational requirements of this 
Chapter and the Zoning Ordinance.  The Planning Director shall issue a report within five (5) business 
days of the transmittal of the request for a report from the City Clerk.  Except as set out in Article VII. D. 
of this Chapter, if the Planning Director fails to issue the report, as required, the City Clerk shall 
presume that the proposed location of the adult use business complies with the Code of Ordinances. 

 
    VII.Approval/ Denial of License. 
 

A. The application of any applicant shall be approved or denied by the City Clerk within fourteen 
(14) days of the date of the application is officially filed with the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall 
deny a license if one or more of the following criteria apply:  

 
1. The applicant is under the age of eighteen (18) years of age;  
2. The applicant has made a false statement upon the application or have given false 

information in connection with an application; 
3. The applicant or any holder of any class of stock, or a director, officer, partner or 

principal of the applicant has had an adult use business license revoked or suspended 
anywhere within the State of Michigan or any other state in the United States within one 
(1) year prior to the application; 

4. The applicant has operated an adult use business which has determined to be a public 
nuisance in the State of Michigan or any state, county or the city or any other 
governmental subdivision in the United States within one (1) year prior to the application; 

5. A corporation applicant is not in good standing or is not authorized to do business in the 
State of Michigan; 

6. The applicant is overdue in the payment of City taxes, fees, fines or penalties assessed 
against him, her or it or imposed against him, her or it in relation to an adult use 
business; 

7. The applicant has not obtained the required sales tax license; 
8. The applicant has been convicted of a specified criminal act within the five (5) year 

period prior to the date the application if filed with the City Clerk. 
 

B. In the event the City Clerk denies a license, he/she shall notify the applicant in writing by first 
class mail to the address on the application of the denial and the reasons for the denial. The 
applicant shall have the right to a hearing before the City Manager as set forth in Article X.C. of 
this Chapter.  A written request for a hearing shall be made to the City Manager within ten (10) 
days of the date of denial of the license by the City Clerk.  A hearing shall be held within 
fourteen (14) days from the date a timely request for a hearing is received by the City Manager. 

 
1. At the hearing, the City Manager may require the presence of representatives of the 

Police Department, the City Clerk, the Planning Director, the Building and Zoning 
Director, City Treasurer, Code Enforcement, the applicant or other interested parties, or 



 9

any other individual who may have information relevant to the denial of the license.  The 
City Manager may accept written documentation or hear statements and consider other 
evidence offered which is relevant to the denial of the license application by the City 
Clerk. 

 
a. If the City Manager determines that the applicant is ineligible for a license under this Chapter, 

he/she shall notify the applicant in writing at the address on the application within two (2) days 
after the hearing is concludes that the City Clerk’s denial of the application is upheld and state 
the reason(s) therefore. 

 
b. The City Manager’s decision shall be final and may be appealed to the Oakland County Circuit 

Court in accordance with the State law.  Failure of an applicant to timely follow the filing 
deadlines for an appeal as set out in this Chapter constitutes a waiver of any right the applicant 
may otherwise have to contest the denial of the application. 

 
C. Except as set out in Article VII.D., if any city official or department fails to render a timely 

decision pursuant to the terms of this Chapter, that city official or department shall be deemed to 
have approved or consented to the issuance of the requested license.   

 
D. A deadline date for rendering a decision under this Chapter may only be excused and extended 

for events beyond the control of the decision maker, such as, the death or a sudden serious 
illness of a spouse, parent, child or sibling; an excused serious illness of the decision maker, or 
other highly personal issue.  It shall be the decision of the City Manager as to whether this 
paragraph applies to a specific situation.  In rendering that decision, the City Manager shall only 
implement an extension under this paragraph if there is no other city official that is qualified to 
rendering the required decision.  The City Manager’s only power after making a decision under 
this paragraph is to grant an extension to the decision maker for no more than seven (7) days. 
Only one (1) extension shall be granted under this paragraph.  If the City Manager is the 
decision maker for which an extension is required, it shall be the duty of the Assistant City 
Manager for Services to grant or deny an extension to the City Manager under this subsection. 

 
      VIII. Term of License. 

 
All licenses granted pursuant to this Chapter shall be for a term or one (1) year. Said term shall 
commence on January 1st of each year and terminate on December 31st of the same year.  Applications 
for a license filed at any other time during the year shall be treated the same as if they were filed 
January 1st of that year and shall terminate on December 31st of the same year. There shall be a 
license fee for each year a license is in effect. No prorating of fees shall be permitted. 
 

     IX. License Renewal; License Fee. 
 
The renewal of an existing license granted pursuant to this Chapter requires payment of the annual 
licensing fee set by resolution of City Council and filing of a renewal application with the City Clerk not 
less than forty-five (45) days prior to the date of expiration.  The City Clerk may waive, for good cause 
shown, this filing time requirement. 
 

    X. Suspension or Revocation of License. 
 
A. The City Manager may suspend a license for a period not to exceed six (6) months or revoke 

any license granted pursuant to this Chapter upon a finding of any of the following: 
 

1. Repeated disturbances of the public peace within the licensed establishment or upon 
any parking areas, sidewalks, walkways, access ways or grounds within the 
neighborhood of the licensed establishment involving patrons, employees or the 
licensee; 



 10

2. Except as authorized by a valid license issued by the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission, the licensee or any employee have offered for sale or knowingly allowed to 
be consumed or possessed on the licensed premises, or on any parking areas, 
sidewalks, walkways, access ways or grounds immediately adjacent to the licensed 
premises, alcoholic liquor, including, but not limited to, any spirituous, vinous, malt or 
fermented liquor, beverages, liquids or compounds, or marijuana, narcotics, controlled 
substances or other dangerous drugs. 

 
3. The licensee or manager is not on the licensed premises at all times that entertainment 

of any nature, live or otherwise, is being provided; 
 

4. Entertainment was offered at the licensed establishment during hours prohibited by 
Article XIII. of this Chapter. 

 
5. The licensee, a manager or an employee has allowed or has done nothing to prevent 

patrons from engaging in a public display or indecency in violation of State law or the 
Troy Code of Ordinances; or has allowed or done nothing to prevent any act of sexual 
intercourse, sodomy, oral copulation or masturbation; or has allowed or done nothing to 
prevent patrons or employees in engaging in acts of prostitution or negotiate for acts of 
prostitution, within the licensed premises or on any parking areas, sidewalks, walkways, 
access ways or grounds immediately adjacent to the licensed establishment, when 
licensee, manager or employee knew or should have known such displays or acts were 
taking place; 

 
6. The licensee or manager made a false statement or gave false information in connection 

with an application for a license or a renewal of a license; 
 

7. The licensee, manager, or an employee violated or permitted a violation of any provision 
of this Chapter, including the standard of conduct set forth in Article XIV of this Chapter. 

 
8. The licensee, manager or an employee of the licensed establishment is under the age of 

eighteen (18) years. 
 

9. The licensee, in the case of a corporation, is not in good standing or is not authorized to 
do business in the State; 

 
10. The licensee, manager or an employee knowingly operated the facility, part of the facility 

or allowed any adult activities in the facility of the adult use business during a period of 
time when the adult use business was suspended or revoked; 

 
11. The licensee is delinquent to the city, county or state for any taxes or fees past due; 

 
12. A licensee(s), manager, employee or independent contractor as set out in Article VI has       

been convicted of a specified criminal act.  
 

B. Nothing in this Chapter shall prohibit the city from taking any other enforcement action provided 
for by the Troy Code of Ordinances, the laws of the State, or the laws of the United States. 

 
C. A licensee shall be entitled to a hearing before the City Manager if the City seeks to suspend or 

revoke his/her or its license based on a violation of this Chapter.  The procedure for suspending 
or revoking a license is as follows: 

 
1. When there is probable cause to believe that a licensee, a manager or an employee has 

violated or permitted a violation of this Chapter to occur in or near the licensed 
establishment, the Police Department, the City Clerk, the Director of Building and 



 11

Zoning, the Planning Director, the City Treasurer, Code Enforcement, or any other city 
department, may file a written complaint with the City Manager setting forth the 
circumstances of the violation.  

 
2. The City Manager shall provide a copy of the complaint to the licensee, together with 

notice to appear before the City Manager for the purpose of a hearing on a specified 
date to show cause why the adult use business license should not be suspended or 
revoked. 

 
3. At the hearing, the City Manager may require the presence of representatives of the 

Police Department, the City Clerk, the Planning Director, the Building and Zoning 
Director, the City Treasurer, Code Enforcement, the owner, occupant, applicant or other 
interested parties, or any other individual who may have information relevant to the 
violation alleged in the complaint.  The City Manager may accept written documentation 
or hear statements and consider other evidence offered which is relevant to the 
allegations in the complaint.  The City Manager shall make findings of fact from the 
statements and evidence presented as to whether or not the alleged violation occurred. 
If the City Manager determines, based on a preponderance of evidence, that a violation 
has occurred, within twenty (20) days after the hearing, the City Manager shall issue a 
written summary based on the finding of facts. The written summary issued by the City 
Manager shall order the suspension or revocation of the adult use business license.  A 
copy of the written summary and order shall be served in person on the licensee or 
mailed by first class mail to his/her or its last known address. 

 
4. The City Manager shall have the power to administer oaths, issue appearance notices, 

and when necessary, grant continuances.  Appearance notices may be issued to require 
the presence of persons and production of papers, books and records necessary to 
make a determination concerning the allegations in a complaint. 

 
5. The written summary and order of the City Manager shall be a final decision and may be 

appealed to the Oakland County Circuit Court in accordance with State law.  Failure of 
an applicant to timely appeal the City Manager’s order of suspension or revocation 
constitutes a waiver by licensee of his/her or its right to contest the suspension or 
revocation of the adult use business license. 

 
6. In such cases where specified criminal acts are in issue, the provisions of the Michigan 

Penal Code, Chapter 750, MCL 750.1, et. seq. shall control. 
 

D. In the event of suspension, revocation or cessation of an adult use business, no portion of the 
license fee, application fee or investigation fee shall be refunded. 

 
E. When the City Manager revokes an adult use business license, the revocation shall continue for 

a one (1) year period.  The licensee shall not be issued an adult use business license for one 
(1) year from the date the revocation became effective. 

 
     XI. Display; Transferability; Change of Ownership. 
 

A. Any adult use business license issued pursuant to this Chapter shall be prominently displayed 
at all times on the premises for which the license was issued in accordance with Article V. B.7. 
of this Chapter. 

 
B. Licenses issued under this Chapter shall not be transferable except as provided herein.  Any 

transfer of ownership or control by a licensee holding an adult use business license shall result 
in termination of the license unless such licensee, within thirty (30) days prior to any such 
transfer files a written notice of such transfer accompanied by the application fee and an 



 12

investigation fee as required by Article IV this Chapter. Any such transfer shall be reported on 
forms provided by the City Clerk and shall require the names of all new principal owners and 
any information as required by Article V of this Chapter.  Approval or denial by the City Clerk of 
such transfer shall be based on the same terms as provided for in this Chapter for the approval 
or denial of an adult use business license. 

 
C. When a license has been issued to a husband and wife or to general or limited partners, the 

death of a spouse or partner shall not require the surviving spouse or partner to obtain a new 
license.  All rights and privileges granted under the original license shall continue in full force 
and effect as to such survivors for the balance of the license period. 

 
D. Each license issued under this Chapter is separate and distinct, and no person shall exercise 

any of the privileges granted under any license other than that which he/she holds.  A separate 
license shall be issued for each specific adult use business and each geographical location. 

 
     XII.  Manager; Change of Manager. 
 

A. A registered manager shall be on the premises of an adult use business at all times that 
entertainment, live or otherwise, is being provided.  It shall be unlawful for any person to work 
as a manager of an adult use business without first registering with the City Clerk.  The 
registration form shall require the applicant to provide his/her legal name and any aliases, home 
address, telephone numbers and satisfactory proof that he/she is eighteen (18) years of age. 

 
B. In the event a licensee changes the manager or any employees of an adult use business, the 

licensee shall report such change and register the new manger or any employees on forms 
provided by the City Clerk within ten (10) days of such change.  Any new employees or 
manager shall pay the investigation fee approved by resolution of City Council and shall be 
subject to approval or denial in accordance with the provisions of Article VII of this Chapter. 

 
    XIII.  Hours of Operation. 
 

It shall be unlawful for an adult use business to be open for business or for the licensee, manager or 
any employee of a licensee to allow patrons on the licensed premises from twelve o’clock (12:00) 
midnight until eight (8:00) A.M. 

 
   XIV.  Standard of Conduct. 
 

A. The following standards of conduct must be adhered to by employees of any adult use business 
that offers, conducts or maintains live entertainment: 

 
1. Clothing: No employee or entertainer mingling with the patrons or serving food or beverages 

shall be unclothed or in such attire, costume or clothing so as to expose to view any specified 
anatomical area. 

 
2. Touching, Caressing, Fondling: No employee or entertainer shall encourage or knowingly permit 

any person on the premises to touch, caress, or fondle the breasts, buttocks, anus or genitals of 
any employee, entertainer or any other person. Touching, caressing or fondling of any part of an 
employee or entertainer by a patron shall be strictly prohibited. 

 
3. Simulation of Specified Areas: No employee or entertainer shall wear or use any device or 

covering exposed to view, which simulates the breasts, genitals, anus, pubic hair or any portion 
thereof. 

 
4. Performance Standards: 

 



 13

a. No employee or entertainer shall be in such attire, costume or clothing so as to 
expose any portion of a specified anatomical area except on a stage at least 
eighteen (18) inches above the immediate floor level and removed at least six (6) 
feet from the nearest patron or behind a solid, uninterrupted physical barrier 
which completely separates the employee or entertainer from any patrons.  This 
barrier must be a minimum of one-fourth (1/4) inch thick and have no openings 
between the employee or entertainer and any patrons.  The stage shall be fixed 
and immovable. 

 
b. No employee or entertainer shall perform any obscene acts or obscene acts that 

simulate specified sexual activities or perform any prohibited activities described 
in this Chapter. 

 
5. Use of Inanimate Objects or Animals: No employee or entertainer shall use artificial devices or 

inanimate objects and/or animals to depict any of the prohibited activities described in this 
Chapter. 

 
6. Menu: There shall be posted and conspicuously displayed in every area offering entertainment 

a list of food and beverage prices. 
 

7. Alcohol and Liquor: No adult use business shall serve or engage in the sale of alcoholic 
beverages, including, but not limited to, any spirituous, vinous, malt or fermented liquor, 
beverages, liquids and compounds.  The sale or service of alcohol at an adult use business 
shall be controlled by the Michigan Liquor Control Code, M.C.L. 436.1101, et. seq., as 
amended. 

 
8. Consumption of alcohol:  It shall be unlawful to permit the consumption of alcoholic beverages 

in any adult use business except in relation to a liquor license granted and in compliance with 
the Michigan Liquor Control Code, M.C.L. 436.1101, et. seq., as amended.  

 
9. Tips:  Any tips for employees or entertainers shall be placed by a patron into a tip box which is 

permanently affixed in the adult use business and no tip may be handed directly to an employee 
or entertainer.  A licensee that desires to provide for such tips form its patrons shall establish 
one or more containers to receive tips.   

 
 
10. Tip Boxes: An adult use business that provides tip boxes shall conspicuously display in the 

common area of the premises one or more signs in letters at least one (1) inch high to read as 
follows: 

 
“EMPLOYEE AND ENTERTAINMENT TIPPING IS REGULATED BY THE CITY 
Any tips are to be placed in tip boxes and not handed directly to the employees or 
entertainers.  Any physical contact between the patron and the employee or entertainer 
is prohibited by law. Violators face maximum penalties of $500 and/or 90 days in jail.” 

  
11. Outside Visibility:  No entertainment occurring on the premises shall be visible at any time from 

outside of the premises. 
 

B. Any licensee who offers, conducts, or maintains live entertainment or an adult arcade which 
exhibits in a peep booth, a film, videocassette, compact disc, or other video reproduction, shall 
comply with the following requirements in addition to those set forth in this Chapter: 

 
1. It is the duty of the licensee of the premises to ensure that at least one employee is on duty 

and situated in each manager’s station at all times that any patron is present inside the 
premises. 



 14

 
2. It is the duty of the licensee and managers of the premises to ensure that any doors to 

public areas on the premises remain unlocked during business hours. 
 

3. The interior of the premise shall be configured in such a manner that there is an 
unobstructed view from an employee’s station of every area of the premises to which any 
patron is permitted access for any purpose, excluding restrooms.  Restrooms may not 
contain video reproduction equipment or other forms of entertainment.  If the premises has 
two (2) or more employee’s stations, then the interior of the premises shall be configured in 
such a manner that there is an unobstructed view of each area of the premises to which any 
patron is permitted access for any purpose, excluding restrooms, from at least one of the 
employee’s stations.  The view required in this Article must be by direct line of sight from the 
employee’s station.   

 
4. No alteration to the configuration of an adult use business may be made without the prior 

written approval of the Building and Zoning Director. 
 

5. It shall be the duty of the licensee, and it shall also be the duty of any agents, managers and 
employees present in the premises to ensure that the view area specified in Article XIV. B.3.  
of this Chapter remains unobstructed by any doors, curtains, drapes, walls, merchandise, 
display racks or other materials at all times or any person intentionally blocking said view 
and to ensure that no patron is permitted access to any area of the premises which has 
been designated as an area in which patrons will not be permitted in the license application 
filed pursuant to this Chapter. 

 
6. No peep booth may be occupied by more than one person at any one time. 

 
7. Peep booths must be separated from other peep booths by a solid, non-opaque, 

uninterrupted physical divider which is a minimum of one-fourth (1/4) inch thick and serves 
to prevent physical contact or visibility between patrons. 

 
    XV.Age Restrictions. 
 

Admission to an adult use business is restricted to persons of the age of eighteen (18) years of age or 
older. 

 
     XVI.Right of Entry. 
 

The filing of an application for an adult use business license shall constitute consent of the applicant 
and licensee and his/her or its agents, managers and/or employees to permit the city’s Police 
Department, Building Department, Planning Department or any other department or agent of the city to 
conduct routine inspections of any licensed adult use business during the hours the establishment is 
conducting business. 

 
Section 3. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give 
this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes 
effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 



 15

repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 
of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and 
in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid or unconstitutional, the 
remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, whichever shall 
later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of 
the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ________ day of ________, ________. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
 
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
I-1  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-01



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final March 6, 2007 
 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Wednesday, March 6, 2007, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman 
McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:33 AM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   

Commissioner David Cannon    
 Commissioner Patrick Daugherty (Absent-Excused) 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Phillip Nelson, City Manager, Lori Grigg-Bluhm - City 

Attorney, Peggy Sears - Human Resources Director, 
Charles Craft – Police Chief, Lieutenant Michael 
Lyczkowski, Representing TCOA, Officer Michael Geise, 
TPOA President, and Barbara A. Pallotta – Deputy City 
Clerk; and 

 
 John Higgins and Steve Standfest, EMPCO, Inc. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 
Approval of Minutes of Monday, March 8, 2006 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-03-001 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the meeting of Wednesday, March 8, 2006 as presented. 
 
Yes: All-2  
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty  
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:  
 
Peggy Sears advised that there are no content changes in the approval of qualifications, 
posting and test battery for Police Captain at this time. 
 
Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Police Captain  
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-03-002 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Captain as 
PRESENTED. 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-01a



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final March 6, 2007 
 

-2- 

Yes: All-2  
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Police Lieutenant  
 
Peggy Sears advised that there are no content changes in the approval of qualifications, 
posting and test battery for Police Lieutenant at this time. 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-03-003 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Lieutenant as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-2  
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Police Sergeant 
 
Peggy Sears advised that there are no content changes in the approval of qualifications and  
posting, and requested that John Higgins of EMPCO, Inc. outline the proposed changes for the 
test battery for Police Sergeant. 
 
Mr. Higgins explained that the changes being recommended for Police Sergeant  are in the 
review and challenge phase of the written test, in an attempt to make the written test as 
transparent as possible. He continued by stating that the test results will be forwarded to the 
department after the written exam has been scored. The applicants will meet together and be 
given a copy of the exam, a copy of the correct answers and a print-out of their own answers. 
candidates will be allowed one hour to review their test with the text book; no note taking will be 
permitted. Mr. Higgins believes these revisions will provide total transparency and will increase 
credibility to the process. He added that this will also provide the candidate with the opportunity 
for immediate review. 
 
Chair McGinnis believes this new process will help to reduce challenges. 
 
Mr. Higgins agreed and added that challenges will be accepted on the spot. The candidate will 
be given a form and once completed, will be forwarded to subject matter experts for review and 
decision. The challenge will either be accepted or denied; if accepted, EMPCO will rescore all 
tests and will score that item as though everyone answered correctly. 
 
Lieutenant Lyczkowski asked if the new process is to merely facilitate challenges? 
 
Mr. Higgins replied yes and added that in almost all cases there is no challenge. 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final March 6, 2007 
 

-3- 

City Attorney Bluhm asked if challenges could only be made during the hour review? 
 
Mr. Higgins confirmed that challenges could only be made during the hour review. 
 
Ms. Sears interjected that an orientation meeting explaining the entire process is held for the 
candidates prior to testing. 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-03-004 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Sergeant as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-2  
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
  
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Election of Chairperson 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-03-005 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby ELECTS Donald E. 
McGinnis, Jr. as Chairperson of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) for a period of one 
year. 
 
Yes: All-2  
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 
ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
MAY 2, 2007 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, May 2, 2007, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Buchanan called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.           
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member K. Clark, alternate   
   C. Geier, member  P. Hammond, member  
   G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member 
   D. Pietron, member  C. Weidman, student 
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
 
Absent: M. Freliga, member EA 

A. Done, member EA 
   S. Murphy, alternate UA 
 
 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF APRIL 4, 2007 
Pietron made a motion that the minutes of April 4, 2007 be approved.  Supported by 
Clark; all voted in favor. 
 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
None were scheduled. 
 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Buchanan distributed a compilation of input from members regarding what the members 
would want as an ideal Committee, ideal Committee member and ideal Chairperson.  
Additional information will be collected and discussed at next meeting. 
 
Werpetinski reported the revision of the terminology for this Committee’s member 
requirements is ongoing. 
 

 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
Manetta, Buchanan and Hammond will research the previous goals and 
accomplishments of this Committee and report their findings. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
MAY 2, 2007 

 2

ITEM VII – REPORTS 
Hammond previously reported that there is very little handicap parking available when 
she attends an exercise class at the Community Center.  She discussed it with Carla 
Vaughn and Carla suggested arriving earlier, parking at the north entrance or using 
Medi-Go. 
 
Werpetinski reported that Dave Lambert is encouraging City staff to prioritize 
development of the City park on land across from the Community Center.  Hopefully this 
site will become a Boundless Playground.   
     
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None reported. 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Hyun reported that Smith Middle School will be holding a 24 hour walk for the American 
Cancer Society on June 2.  It will be held on the school grounds. 
 
Weideman reported that she and a friend escorted a member of the Special Olympics to 
his prom.   
 
The Parks and Recreation Board meets monthly, usually, at 7:00.  Members are 
encouraged to attend and offer support. 
 
Werpetinski reported that the Troy Post Office is not accessible.  She discussed it with 
the Postmaster, the District Manager, and was referred to the Director of Sales and 
Customer Services who indicated that she should write a letter with concerns and she 
would receive an answer.  The sidewalks are narrow, the doors open out, and there is 
no automated door or wireless doorbell. 
 
ACPD business cards were distributed to Committee members. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Hammond made a motion to adjourn at 8:05 p.m.  Supported by Clark.   All voted in 
favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                  Cynthia Buchanan 
              Interim Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
MAY 2, 2007 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, May 2, 2007, in the second floor Conference Room C at City Hall.  
Buchanan called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.           
 
 
Present:  C. Buchanan, member K. Clark, alternate   
   C. Geier, member  P. Hammond, member  
   G. Hyun, student  P. Manetta, member 
   D. Pietron, member  C. Weidman, student 
   S. Werpetinski, member 
        
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
    
 
Absent: M. Freliga, member EA 

A. Done, member EA 
   S. Murphy, alternate UA 
 
 
 
ITEM III – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF APRIL 4, 2007 
Pietron made a motion that the minutes of April 4, 2007 be approved.  Supported by 
Clark; all voted in favor. 
 
 
ITEM IV – SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS 
None were scheduled. 
 
 
ITEM V – UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Buchanan distributed a compilation of input from members regarding what the members 
would want as an ideal Committee, ideal Committee member and ideal Chairperson.  
Additional information will be collected and discussed at next meeting. 
 
Werpetinski reported the revision of the terminology for this Committee’s member 
requirements is ongoing. 
 

 
ITEM VI – NEW BUSINESS 
Manetta, Buchanan and Hammond will research the previous goals and 
accomplishments of this Committee and report their findings. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
MAY 2, 2007 

 2

ITEM VII – REPORTS 
Hammond previously reported that there is very little handicap parking available when 
she attends an exercise class at the Community Center.  She discussed it with Carla 
Vaughn and Carla suggested arriving earlier, parking at the north entrance or using 
Medi-Go. 
 
Werpetinski reported that Dave Lambert is encouraging City staff to prioritize 
development of the City park on land across from the Community Center.  Hopefully this 
site will become a Boundless Playground.   
     
ITEM VIII – PUBLIC COMMENT 
None reported. 
 
ITEM IX – MEMBER COMMENT 
Hyun reported that Smith Middle School will be holding a 24 hour walk for the American 
Cancer Society on June 2.  It will be held on the school grounds. 
 
Weideman reported that she and a friend escorted a member of the Special Olympics to 
his prom.   
 
The Parks and Recreation Board meets monthly, usually, at 7:00.  Members are 
encouraged to attend and offer support. 
 
Werpetinski reported that the Troy Post Office is not accessible.  She discussed it with 
the Postmaster, the District Manager, and was referred to the Director of Sales and 
Customer Services who indicated that she should write a letter with concerns and she 
would receive an answer.  The sidewalks are narrow, the doors open out, and there is 
no automated door or wireless doorbell. 
 
ACPD business cards were distributed to Committee members. 
 
ITEM X – ADJOURNMENT 
Hammond made a motion to adjourn at 8:05 p.m.  Supported by Clark.   All voted in 
favor. 
 
 
 
                                                               _______________________________ 
                                  Cynthia Buchanan 
              Interim Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
            Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                       MAY 2, 2007 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, May 2, 2007, in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF APRIL 4, 2007 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of April 4, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MONDRIAN PROPERTIES/CHOICE GROUP, 
1233 W. WATTLES, for relief of Chapter 85 to maintain a temporary sign installed at 
1233 W. Wattles. 
 
The site plan submitted and site inspection indicates that the sign located on this site is 
a 54 square foot Real Estate Sign.  The owner of the property is in the process of 
developing a site condominium on the adjacent property to the south.  However, the 
property in question is not part of the condominium.  Chapter 85, Section 85.02.05 
allows signs for subdivisions under development of up to 100 square feet.  However, 
since this parcel is not part of the site condo (subdivision) it is limited to the maximum 
size of six (6) square feet and an aggregate area of fourteen (14) square feet on a site 
in the R-1B Zoning District. per Section 85.03.02. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of April 4, 2007 and was 
postponed at the request of the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Building Department had received a letter from the 
petitioner stating they wished to withdraw this request and would remove the existing 
sign. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                       MAY 2, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to accept the withdrawal of request of Mondrian Properties/Choice Group, for 
relief of Chapter 85 to maintain a temporary sign installed at 1233 W. Wattles. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL OF REQUEST CARRIED 
 
No further action by the Building Code Board of Appeals 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. JOSEPH KYRIAKOZA, 3617 
SANDBURG, for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 4’ high non-obscuring fence adjacent to 
the property along Stonetree. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 4’ 
high non-obscuring fence.  The property in question is located at the northwest corner of 
Sandburg and Stonetree.  Because of the orientation of the adjacent homes, this 
property is a double front corner lot.  Therefore, it has front yard setback requirements 
along both Sandburg and Stonetree.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in front 
setbacks on this property to 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 4’ high non-
obscuring fence adjacent to the property line along Stonetree. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Kyriakoza were present.  Mr. Kyriakoza stated that the existing fence was 
there at the time they purchased this home and does not enclose the yard.  They have a 
young daughter and a dog and would like to provide safety for both.  Stonetree is 
extremely busy and is a high traffic area.  They would like to protect their child as well 
as other children visiting the home from running into the street.  The existing fence is 
very dilapidated due to its age and they are trying to improve the appearance of their 
property.  Mr. Kyriakoza has presented pictures of the proposed fence to surrounding 
neighbors, including a Board Member of the Subdivision Association and has received 
approvals of this request.   
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the new fence was going to replace the existing fence and asked if 
the current fence runs along the west side of the driveway.   
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that the fence will start at the side of the house and go around the 
perimeter of the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked for clarification of the location of the proposed fence. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza stated that the fence line will start on the side of the house near the 
chimney.  Mr. Kyriakoza also stated that they are very concerned about visibility and 
want to make sure that they are not obstructing cars backing out of the driveway. 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                       MAY 2, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked the petitioners if they were aware that they would have a problem 
with a fence due to the configuration of their lot. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they were not aware this would be a problem.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked how much area they would have in the yard if the fence were 
constructed following the Ordinance.  Mr. Kessler said that in his opinion this was quite 
a large lot and he feels there is enough room to fence in the area behind the house and 
therefore comply with the Ordinance.  In order for the Board to grant a variance, the 
petitioner needs to prove a hardship exists with the property.  Mr. Kessler does not 
believe there is a hardship that would allow a variance to bring the fence out. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they basically wish to replace the existing fence and their main 
concern is the fact that Stonetree is extremely busy.  They wish to enclose the yard and 
provide safety for their children and children that would visit. 
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza said that if they moved the fence and kept it even with the house it 
would be very close to the playscape and swings, which could create a hazard. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that it would be possible to allow the fence into eight (8’) feet of the 
setback and provide the safety they are looking for. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that the way the yard is set up that is still the back yard. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated for other people in the subdivision this is the front yard. 
 
A discussion began regarding placement of the fence.   Mr. Kessler said that in his 
opinion the location of the fence should be between the pine trees and then across.  
The trees would act as a buffer for this fence. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they have received the support of their neighbors and the 
Homeowners Association.  Although he understands where Mr. Kessler is suggesting 
the fence be placed, it would eliminate part of their property. 
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza said that there is a lot of landscaping in that area and she is concerned 
about how it would look.  Their patio is raised and surrounded by rock with room for 
additional landscaping and she is afraid that they would have to disrupt some of this 
landscaping. 
 
Mr. Kessler explained that in other situations where the Board has approved the same 
type of request, it has required additional landscaping around the fence to soften the 
look.  Mr. Kessler also stated that if a variance was granted for them to go 10’ into the 
setback, and they decided that 3’ would be better, they could still put up a fence. 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                       MAY 2, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza asked if additional landscaping would create an obstruction. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that the petitioner could install a hedge along the perimeter of his 
property and this would not be regulated.  The only area that they could not put in 
landscaping was at the corner of the property where the two streets meet.  The Board is 
concerned about the aesthetics and visibility to surrounding property.   
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza asked if additional landscaping would be required, if they were granted a 
variance to put the fence where they wished to. 
 
Mr. Richnak said he thought landscaping would be required along the south property 
line. 
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza said that they have done a lot of work on their property and hope that 
they would not have to pull out what they have done. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that the only problem is visibility when backing out of the driveway. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the distance was from the chimney to the setback. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it appears from the aerial view of the property that this parcel is 90’ 
wide, and is zoned R-1C, which required a 30’ setback.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to speak and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  Mr. Kyriakoza brought an additional 
approval letter in. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that he had given sketches of the proposed fence to the neighbors 
and also showed them a sample of the fence they wish to install. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that in his opinion the issue of additional shrubbery would create a 
problem with the driveway. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that his suggestion is to put the fence 10’ away from the front setback.  
If it is approved in that location they would not require additional landscaping.  There is 
a hardship with the placement of existing structures and he believes that the 10’ setback 
would address that problem. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the photographs submitted showed the additional improvements. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they were not reflected in the photos as they are more to the 
back of the house.  The stamped concrete walkway was added last year.   

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                       MAY 2, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how wide the walkway was and Mr. Kyriakoza said he thought it was 
about 3’.  Mr. Kyriakoza also said that the 10’ setback would affect the landscaping that 
surrounds the pine tree.  He asked if the fence could be placed behind the landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that there is probably a 30’ setback from the house to the property line. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza asked if they would be allowed to construct the fence along the property 
line if they added extra landscaping. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he did not believe there was a hardship that would justify a 
variance. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he did not believe it would go all the way to the front.  10’ would 
come to the north side of the evergreen tree and south side of the structure.  He would 
be more inclined to put it on the south side of the evergreen tree and 15’ from the face 
of the house.  The fence would then come over and come back to the chimney, not all 
the way to the driveway.  That property line and the area to the west would need to be 
screened with various types of vegetation. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they have seen other homes in the area with very similar 
requests. 
 
Mr. Richnak explained that each situation is different and often the fences were in place 
before these types of restrictions were put into effect.  Each situation is addressed on its 
own merit.   
 
Mr. Kyriakoza asked if he could put up a 36” high fence in the same location as the 
existing fence.  He would like to create a nicer look and at the same time increase the 
safety factor. 
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza said that they really would like to be able to put the fence in where they 
requested.  They did not realize there would be a problem replacing the fence at the 
time they purchased this home.   
  
Mr. Dziurman asked if they were planning to change their request. 
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza said that they would really like to put up what they are asking for.  They 
want the height because of the safety of children and because there are other dogs in 
the area.   
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they would like to have a 4’ high fence and would be willing to 
compromise with the Board and bring it in.  They would also be willing to put it behind 
the pine tree and up to the chimney. 
 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                       MAY 2, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler confirmed that they are asking for a 4’ high fence in the location that they 
requested.  Right now there is no driveway next to the fence.  A 30” fence would not 
obstruct anyone’s view. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that the neighbor most affected by this request approves of this 
proposed fence.  Mr. Kyriakoza brought over the sample fence to show him.  They do 
not want to obscure the neighbor’s line of site with high shrubbery and this proposed 
fence is in compliance with the by-laws of the subdivision.  They also want the 
neighbors to be happy with this decision. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they want their request on the table as it is proposed. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that they did. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the hardship was and Mr. Kyriakoza said that the heavy traffic 
on the road along side their house and the fact that if the fence is placed too close to 
the play structure, it will create a safety hazard for the children playing on it. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if a 15’ setback would work for them.  Mr. Kyriakoza said that it would 
not. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Mr. & Mrs. Kyriakoza, 3617 Sandburg, for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 4’ high non-obscuring fence adjacent to the property along 
Stonetree. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
Mr. Richnak explained that they could still put up a 30” fence in the front.   
 
Mrs. Kyriakoza asked if they could put up 6’ high shrubs. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that they could put shrubbery across the front of the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that they cannot put shrubbery within 25’ of the intersection of the two 
(2) streets. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza asked what the regulations were to put up a 4’ high fence. 

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                       MAY 2, 2007 

Mr. Stimac stated that he would be happy to meet with the Kyriakoza’s to discuss their 
options after this meeting was concluded. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting ended at 9:10 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 

 7



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on May 22, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Wayne Wright 
Mary Kerwin 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski (arrived 7:40 p.m.) 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-092 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: None 
Absent: Troshynski (arrived 7:40 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-093 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: None 
Absent: Troshynski (arrived 7:40 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES – May 1, 2007 Regular Meeting 
 
Ms. Kerwin requested that the following comment be incorporated in the last 
paragraph on page 6:  “It is recognized that adult business uses have a deleterious 
effect on surrounding properties.” 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-094 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the May 1, 2007 Regular meeting minutes as revised.   
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
No: None 
Abstain: Littman 
Absent: Troshynski (arrived 7:40 p.m.), Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Chair Schultz reported Mr. Wright’s account of the May 15, 2007 Board of Zoning 
Appeals (BZA) meeting, as follows:   
• Approved variance for proposed William Beaumont Hospital pedestrian bridge. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the May 16, 2007 Downtown Development Authority 
(DDA) meeting.   
• Approved timeline for implementation of Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
• Approved Development Plan #6.  Recommend to City Council [June 4, 2007 

meeting].  
 
A brief discussion followed. 
 
[Ms. Troshynski arrived at 7:40 p.m.] 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following City Council action items. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

• Conditional Rezoning CR-001 – Troy Medical Office Building, West Side of 
Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 21 – R-1B to O-1 – Approved. 

• Rezoning Application Z 726 – 190 East Maple, South side of Maple, East of 
Livernois [Michigan Chandelier], Section 34 – B-2 to M-1 – Approved. 

• Final Stone Haven Park Site Condominium Review – South of Wattles, West of 
Crooks, Section 20 – R-1B – Approved. 

• Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 229) – Article XXVIII, Automobile 
Rental Establishments in the M-1 Light Industrial District – Approved. 

• Site Plan 909 – Consent Judgment Amendment for Property at Northwest 
Corner of Crooks and Big Beaver Road, Starbucks Coffee – Approved. 

• Conditional Rezoning 002 – Troy Grand Villas, West Side of Rochester Road, 
North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T – Approved.   

• Rezoning Application (Z 625-B) – Southwest Corner of Square Lake and Niles, 
Section 9 – R-2 to O-1 – No action. 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT).  A 
public input meeting is scheduled on June 21, 2007 at the Management Education 
Center (MEC) in Troy.  
 
Mr. Savidant addressed agenda items on the June 5, 2007 Special/Study meeting: 
• Big Beaver Road District Overlay [Carlisle/Wortman representatives]. 
• ULI Project [University of Michigan representatives]. 
 
Briefly discussed were: 
• Status of Rezoning Request Z 725, South Side of Wattles, East of Livernois, 

from R-1C to O-1. 
• Milestones of draft Master Plan. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SU 328) – Existing Clark Station, Northeast corner of Maple 
and Livernois, Section 27, Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the revisions that were made to the site plan.  He reported 
the Planning Department recommends approval of the site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Jason Longhurst of Nowak & Fraus, 1310 N. Stephenson Highway, 
Royal Oak, was present.  Mr. Longhurst addressed the site plan modifications in 
relation to the concerns expressed by members at the May 1, 2007 Regular 
meeting. 
 
Chester Stempien, project architect, 29895 Greenfield Road, Southfield, addressed 
the building material and screen wall.   
 
Mr. Strat asked if a study was done on the location of the pumps.  He addressed 
access to the pumps and internal congestion.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Stempien addressed the underground tanks in relation to the building.  He noted 
the size of the lot is very limited for reconfiguration.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-05-095 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the proposed 
Clark Station improvements, located on the northeast corner of Maple and Livernois, 
located in Section 27, on approximately 15,457 square feet in area, within the H-S 
zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Tagle, Troshynski 
No: Strat, Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck cited safety concerns with the internal traffic circulation and location of the 
pumps.   
 
Mr. Strat agreed a dangerous situation exists for internal traffic because of the 
pump locations and screen wall.  
 
Chair Schultz agreed with the comments relating to traffic circulation and the screen 
wall, but said it was time to move the site plan along.   
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 

9. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT – Southwest corner of Maple and Combermere, 
Section 34 – M-1 
 
Mr. Savidant provided an overview of the subject site and the intent of the owner.   
 
Robert Campbell of 386 E. Maple, Troy, was present.  Mr. Campbell provided a 
history of the subject property and indicated his intent to improve the site.  He said 
the existing building and house would most likely be demolished and the site 
developed as a non-industrial use; i.e., office, bank, medical office.   
 
Discussion followed.  The members concurred: 
• That the site should be developed as a whole; not piecemeal. 
• That timing the development to coincide with the new Master Plan would be 

advantageous to both the City and the petitioner.  
• That submission of a conditional rezoning application would be a viable 

alternative. 
 
Mr. Savidant indicated the Planning Department would be happy to discuss the 
conditional rezoning process with the petitioner. 
 
Chair Schultz welcomed the petitioner to discuss the matter at a future study 
meeting.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 231) – Restaurants in the M-1 
Light Industrial District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District. 
 
Discussion followed. 
 
It was the consensus of the members that locations of restaurants in the M-1 district 
should not be restricted to major thoroughfares.  It was also agreed to incorporate 
text that would require access through the restaurant for outside seating areas.   
 
A June public hearing will be scheduled. 
 
 

11. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 230) – Freestanding tower 
structures and antennas in parks and on school property 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
wireless communication towers on school property and City parks.  The Legal 
Department determined that it is within the City’s purview to regulate freestanding 
towers on school property.  
 
Ms. Lancaster will research if the law has changed on whether schools are required 
to go before the City for site plan approval.   
 
It was agreed to stipulate the required setback for towers from residential to two (2) 
times the height of the structure.  
 
 

12. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating to 
commercial vehicles.   
 
Discussion followed. 
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:10 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:15 p.m. 

___________ 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

By a straw vote, the following was agreed on. 
 
Commercial Vehicle Definition:   
• Any vehicle over 10,000 gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) and used for 

commercial purposes. 
• Any vehicle required by law to have commercial driving license (CDL) and 

required to display identification [company name and phone number]. 
• Any vehicle containing advertising. 
 
Restrictions:   
• Vehicle must be stored within a garage, 12 months out of the year. 
• Vehicle must be permanently screened within the required building setbacks 

applicable to zoning district. 
• Any vehicle requiring a commercial driving license [CDL plate] is prohibited. 
• Stipulate signage requirements if not covered by vehicle advertising. 
• Vehicle must be owned or operated by resident who resides in home where 

vehicle is stored. 
• More than one vehicle is allowed per household as long as all restrictions are 

met.  
• Recreational vehicles apply.  
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

14. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
General comments were made on the productivity of tonight’s meeting.   
 
Mr. Tagle addressed the report submitted by Mr. Littman on the American Planning 
Association (APA) conference.  He also talked about the need to “wordsmith” the 
Zoning Ordinance.  
 
There was general discussion on the procedure to “wordsmith” the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Ms. Kerwin shared comments on the Michigan Association of Planning (MAP) Risk 
Management seminar she attended.  She also addressed public art in relation to the 
Master Plan and Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Littman offered to distribute material he received at the APA conference.   
 
There was general discussion on the Hooters Restaurant matter.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT MAY 22, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\05-22-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft  May 29, 2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Personnel Board was held Tuesday, May 29, 2007, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Clerk Bartholomew called the meeting to order at 6:31 
PM. 

ROLL CALL: 
 
 PRESENT: Member Baughman 
  Member Huber 
  Member Nelson 
  Member Tschirhart 
   
 ABSENT: Member Shah 
   
 ALSO PRESENT: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager, Finance & Administration 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
  Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 
 
Appointment of Personnel Board Chairperson: 
 
Resolution PB-#2007-05-001 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That Members of the Troy Personnel Board hereby APPOINT Member 
Tschirhart to serve as Chairperson. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
Approval of Minutes of June 5, 2006: 
 
Resolution PB-#2007-05-002 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the minutes of Monday, June 5, 
2006 as amended to include the “No” votes with the word “None” following the vote and with 
the Adjournment Resolution Number expanded to read “2006-06-006”. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
Old Business: None 
 
New Business: 

-1- 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft  May 29, 2007 
 
 
A. Recommendations for Classification Plan and Pay Plan 
 
Human Resources Director Sears reviewed the recommendations and noted that the GIS 
Data Analysis has had a change in duties and performs at an elevated level than what is 
provided for in the Pay Plan. The title is recommended to have the word “Data” eliminated 
and moved up one grade to Pay Grade 5. Additionally, there was a desk audit preformed on 
one of the Legal Assistant’s positions and it was determined that that position should be 
increased to a Legal Assistant II with the salary falling within Pay Grade 5.  
 
In addition to the Classifications and Pay Grade recommendations, Director Sears reviewed 
the recommendations for the Pay Plan. She stated that staff had performed comparisons 
with similar communities and found that the salary ranges should be increased by 2% and 
therefore management recommends an increase to the Pay Grade schedule to be increased 
across the board by 2%. Additionally, management is recommending a 2% across the board 
pay increase for the Classified Employee Group with merit increases to employees who 
preformed at high and clearly outstanding levels as indicated by their Annual Personnel 
Evaluations. Ms. Sears noted that in the past, employees received a .5% and 1%, 
respectively, for merit increases. In order to more clearly reward high achievers as well as 
maintain costs within budget, Director Sears indicated that management is proposing a flat 
rate Merit Plan. She reviewed the 2007 Merit Increase matrix and stated that a $650.00 
increase for the Clearly Outstanding employees and a $200.00 increase for the High Level 
employees are being proposed. The dollar amount was proposed because the impact on the 
City budget will be slightly lower than what was experienced in the 2006-07 budget. 
Discussion continued on the evaluations and the proposed rates. It was the consensus that 
superior employee should be encouraged and rewarded accordingly.  
 
Resolution PB-#2007-05-003 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
for the Classification Plan and Pay Plan (FY 2007-2008) as submitted and presented by 
human Resources Director Peggy Sears with the plan rewards being elevated or superior 
employees rewarded the greatest merit pay in the amounts of $650.00 and $200.00 for the 
high performers. 
 
Yes:  All-4 
No:  None 
 
B. Recommended Revisions to Benefit Provisions: 

 
1. Increase Employees Contribution for Participation in the Defined Benefit Pension 

Plan 
 
Human Resources Director Sears reviewed the item and noted that it is the goal of 
Management to bring the Classified and Exempt Employee Group into line with the other 

-2- 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft  May 29, 2007 
 
non-police employee groups. She noted that the recommendation is to increase the 
contribution for employees participating in the Defined Benefit program by .5%. The 
employee’s total contribution towards the Defined Benefit plan will be 1.5%. It was noted that 
the modification would have an effect on the employer contribution by slightly less than .5%.  
 
Resolution PB-2007-05-004 
Moved by Huber 
Seconded by Nelson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
in the Personnel Rules, Section XXX - Retirement, as submitted. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
2. Eliminate Dual Health and Dental Insurance Coverage for Employees Who Are 

Married to Each Other 
 
Human Resources Director Sears reviewed the item and noted that the proposed 
recommendation before the Personnel Board is to eliminate the availability of dual coverage 
for two employees that are married to each other. She noted that the benefit change has 
been successfully achieved with all recently negotiated collective bargaining agreements, 
and Management is proposing the revision be applied to the Classified Employee Group. 
This proposed change would affect approximately 5 couples.  
 
Mr. Lamerato indicated the same revision would be addressed for married couples where 
there is an employee and a retiree. He noted retiree laws are a little more restrictive however 
the matter will continue to be investigated for future implementation. 
 
Chairman Tschirhart questioned terminology and suggested “legally recognized marriages”. 
 
Resolution PB-2007-05-005 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Huber 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed recommendations 
in the Personnel Rules, Section XXVI. Hospitalization and Medical Insurance, to eliminate 
Dual Health and Dental Insurance Coverage for Employees Who Are Legally Married to 
Each Other, as submitted. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
C. Approval of Revisions to Personnel Rules  
 

-3- 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft  May 29, 2007 
 
Human Resources Director Sears reviewed the proposed item. She noted that the 
proposed recommendation is a housekeeping item, which would replace the words 
“Personnel Office” with “Human Resources Department”, and “probation period” with 
“review period”. The rationale for the change is to reduce the confusion for third party 
employment interpretation between a “just cause relationship” and “at will relationship” 
between employees and the City of Troy.  
 
Resolution PB-2007-05-006 
Moved by Huber 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby APPROVES the proposed language revision 
recommendations in the Personnel Rules as submitted. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
Amend Agenda to Add Cafeteria Plan Insurance Overview  
 
Resolution PB-2007-05-007 
Moved by Nelson 
Seconded by Baughman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Personnel Board hereby AMENDS their May 29, 2007 Agenda to 
include item 6. D. Cafeteria Plan Insurance Overview. 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
D. Cafeteria Plan Insurance Overview
 
Assistant City Manager Lamerato gave a brief overview and status report regarding the City 
of Troy’s Cafeteria Plan Insurance. He noted that the City of Troy, through the 
recommendation of their Certified Public Accountant firm, adopted a Health Insurance 
Cafeteria Plan, Section 125 – Pay-In-Lieu Benefit Plan. 
 

Adjournment:  
 
Resolution PB-2007-05-008 
Moved by Baughman 
Seconded by Tschirhart 
 
RESOLVED, That there being nothing else to come before the Board, the meeting be 
ADJOURNED. 

-4- 



PERSONNEL BOARD MINUTES – Draft  May 29, 2007 
 
 
Yes:   All-4 
No:   None 
Absent:  Shah 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 7:31PM. 
 
  

 
 
 

 Ronald Tschirhart, Chairman 
  

 
 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

-5- 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                    JUNE 6, 2007 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals meeting to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, June 6, 2007 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Tom Rosewarne 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Bill Nelson 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MAY 2, 2007 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of May 2, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Dziurman, Kessler, Rosewarne, Zuazo 
Absent: 1 – Nelson 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES OF MAY 2, 2007 AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JOHN ROGERS OF BEAUMONT SERVICES CO., 
44201 DEQUINDRE, for relief of Chapter 85 to allow nine (9) Town Crier Banners to 
announce the 30th anniversary of Beaumont Hospital until April 1, 2008. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 allow nine (9) 
town crier style banners to be installed on light poles at their facility to announce the 30th 
anniversary of Beaumont Hospital until April 1, 2008.  Section 9.02 of the Sign 
Ordinance permits a special event sign; however, limits the time period to not more than 
seven (7) days. 
 
John Rogers was present and stated that basically they want to announce this 
anniversary, which will end on April 1, 2008. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked why they were going to put up nine (9) signs. 
 
Mr. Rogers said that they are going to put them on the poles around the loop road of 
Troy Beaumont. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if this was the anniversary of William Beaumont Hospital or Troy 
Beaumont Hospital. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                    JUNE 6, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Rogers explained that it is the 30th anniversary of Troy Beaumont Hospital. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that staff has looked at a possible change the language in the 
Ordinance that would allow for longer periods of time for signs of this type, but as of this 
date, staff has not come up with the language to take to Council to change the 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked what type of material these signs would be made from. 
 
Mr. Rogers said that they are a type of vinyl and they will be replaced as necessary. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to grant John Rogers of Beaumont Services Co., 44201 Dequindre, relief of 
Chapter 85 to allow special event signs for a period of ten (10) months where Section 
9.02 allows the time limit to not more than seven (7) days. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Signs will be replaced as needed when showing signs of wear. 
• Signs will be removed by May 1, 2008. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Kessler, Rosewarne, Zuazo, Dziurman 
Absent: 1 – Nelson 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE GRANTED 
 
Mr. Stimac reminded the Board that a special meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, 
June 13, 2007. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:35 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 2



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft June 7, 2007 
 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Thursday, June 7, 2007, at Troy 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman McGinnis 
called the meeting to order at 7:35 AM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   

Commissioner David Cannon    
 Commissioner Patrick Daugherty (Arrived 7:37 AM) 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 
 Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Charles Craft, Police Chief 
 William Nelson, Fire Chief     
 Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 
 Dane Slater, Police Captain 

Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Specialist 
Sergeant Robert Redmond, TCOA President 
Rodney, Bovensiep, Fire Lieutenant 
David Quaiatto, Police Officer 
Donald Mouch, Fire Lieutenant  
Keith Lenderman, Fire Lieutenant 
Paul Firth, Fire Lieutenant 
John Higgins, EMPCO, Inc. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 
a. Approval of Minutes of Wednesday, March 6, 2007  
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-006 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the meeting of Wednesday, March 6, 2007 as presented. 
 
Yes: All-2 
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:  
 
a. Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Division Assistant Chief  
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-007 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-01h



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft June 7, 2007 
 

-2- 

RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Division Assistant Chief as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-2 
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
Commissioner Daugherty arrived at 7:37 AM. 
 
b. Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Fire Staff Technician 
 
Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director advised that the city and union are in full agreement 
in regard to the new position of Fire Staff Technician and this will now create a method to begin 
recruiting. 
 
Bill Nelson, Fire Chief gave a brief description of the newly proposed Fire Staff Technician 
position and explained how it will be integrated into the department’s hierarchy. 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-008 
Moved by Cannon  
Seconded by Daugherty 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Fire Staff Technician as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
c. Approval of Eligible List – Police Captain 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-009 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the eligible list for 
Police Captain as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
 d. Approval of Eligible List – Police Lieutenant  
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-010 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft June 7, 2007 
 

-3- 

RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the eligible list for 
Police Lieutenant as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3  
 
e. Approval of Eligible List – Police Sergeant 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-011 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the eligible list for 
Police Sergeant as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
f. Revisions to Hearing Rules Article IV – Filling Vacancies, Section 3 – Initial 

Appointment and Section 4 – Promotions  
 
Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director explained that the first proposed revision is a 
housekeeping modification that strikes the “I” and “II” designations from the Police Service Aide 
position. Ms. Sears continued by stating that the second revision amends the Fire Staff 
Lieutenant position to the newly formed Fire Staff Technician position. 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-012 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the revisions to 
the hearing rules as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
NEW BUSINESS: None 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 
ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 7:46 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 
 



DATE:        June 1, 2007
TO:            Philllip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of May 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 5 $160,888.00 $1,742.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $100.00

Sub Total 6 $160,888.00 $1,842.00

COMMERCIAL
Fnd./Shell New 3 $1,758,000.00 $12,741.00
Add/Alter 17 $3,309,483.00 $25,623.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $210.00

Sub Total 22 $5,067,483.00 $38,574.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 6 $1,056,508.00 $8,269.00
Add/Alter 37 $955,625.00 $10,291.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 9 $27,535.00 $735.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 4 $13,750.00 $360.00
Repair 2 $70,569.00 $794.00
Fire Repair 3 $212,403.00 $1,926.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $120.00

Sub Total 63 $2,336,390.00 $22,495.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 2 $17,000.00 $331.00

Sub Total 2 $17,000.00 $331.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 2 $3,593,500.00 $20,660.00

Sub Total 2 $3,593,500.00 $20,660.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 1 $26,000.00 $327.00

Sub Total 1 $26,000.00 $327.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 36 $0.00 $3,910.00
Fences 38 $0.00 $600.00

Sub Total 74 $4,510.00

TOTAL 170 $11,201,261.00 $88,739.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MAY 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 81 $810.00
Cert. of Occupancy 31 $2,476.50
Plan Review 95 $6,375.00
Microfilm 28 $475.00
Building Permits 170 $88,739.00
Electrical Permits 149 $9,176.00
Heating Permits 120 $5,460.00
Air Cond. Permits 42 $1,670.00
Plumbing Permits 136 $7,264.00
Storm Sewer Permits 22 $1,253.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 17 $761.00
Sewer Taps 16 $4,794.00

TOTAL 907 $129,253.50

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING MAY 2007
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 29 $145.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 28 $420.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 53 $53.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 7 $70.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 1 $15.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 9 $90.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 22 $220.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 3 $45.00

TOTAL 27 $1,058.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2006 2006 2007 2007

JANUARY 116 $7,273,163.00 119 $7,595,008.00

FEBRUARY 94 $6,659,691.00 101 $8,056,092.00

MARCH 127 $5,629,425.00 135 $9,204,932.00

APRIL 174 $5,766,996.00 140 $4,844,929.00

MAY 216 $11,290,598.00 170 $11,201,261.00

JUNE 218 $10,681,352.00 0 $0.00

JULY 198 $11,269,902.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 150 $14,170,725.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 161 $12,827,192.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 134 $10,733,680.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 111 $6,690,950.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 94 $10,508,219.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1793 $113,501,893.00 665 $40,902,222.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2007

6 5 3
9 6

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Jun 1, 2007 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF MAY 2007Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter SALOMONE ASSOCIATES, INC 2800 W BIG BEAVER N-120  250,000
Commercial, Add/Alter HEALTH BY DESIGN 130 TOWN CENTER 130  150,000
Commercial, Add/Alter CONTRUCTION SPECIALISTS INC. 710 E BIG BEAVER  304,000
Commercial, Add/Alter OSPREY CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPME 2800 LIVERNOIS 420  150,000
Commercial, Add/Alter RONNISCH CONSTRUCTION GROUP 5600 CROOKS 101  589,152
Commercial, Add/Alter RONNISCH CONSTRUCTION 5600 CROOKS 102  589,152
Commercial, Add/Alter PREMIER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 3310 W BIG BEAVER 205  250,000
Commercial, Add/Alter COLUMBIA CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 2800 W BIG BEAVER P-157  500,179
Commercial, Add/Alter JCOR INC 2800 W BIG BEAVER N-106  125,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  2,907,483

Commercial, Fnd/Shell New MICHIGAN HOME BUILDERS II, LLC 6814 ROCHESTER 6836  711,000
Commercial, Fnd/Shell New MICHIGAN HOME BUILDERS II, LLC 6842 ROCHESTER 6854  486,000
Commercial, Fnd/Shell New MICHIGAN HOME BUILDERS II, LLC 6892 ROCHESTER 6908  561,000

Commercial, Fnd/Shell NewTotal  1,758,000

Industrial, Add/Alter DONOVAN, BRUCE CONSTRUCTION INC 1696 MAXWELL  100,838

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  100,838

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter BEAUMONTSERVICES CO 44201 DEQUINDRE 1ST VAS  200,000
Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter B S C 44201 DEQUINDRE SITE  3,393,500

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  3,593,500

Total Valuation:  8,359,821Records  16



 

 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

May 25, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Final Reporting –Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services - April 2007  
 
Background: 
 

 Resolution #2007-03-089-E4b established the auction fee of 5% on-site and 6% off-site 
and provided approval to use Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services, LLC for vehicles – 
cleaned, detailed, and prep.  Included in the specifications for the auction contract is the 
ability of our auctioneer to take the City’s auction items to other auction locations. Mid-
Thumb Auctioneering, LLC suggested using the St. Clair County Park in Port Huron, 
Michigan.  All transportation, reporting, and advertising are included in the auction fee. 
Chuck Cryderman & Associates, LLC was also approved fro heavy equipment etc at 
rates of 5% on-site and 10% off-site. It was a Purchasing goal that both companies would 
be utilized for either on & off site auctions. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for two 
(2) Ford Crown Vics that were auctioned through Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services, 
LLC on April 28, 2007.    

 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS   SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME
2 Vehicles (Ford Crown Vic) 7,700.00  
                                                              SUB-TOTAL:      $ 7,700.00  
    

 FEES:   
6% Off-site Fee (462.00)   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:        ($462.00)  
Sales Tax (None on Vehicle):  Tax Exempt.           0.00   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:              $0.00  
                                                      $7,238.00 

 
 
 
 

1 of 2 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



May 25, 2007 
 
 To: Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Services - April 2007   
 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Troy, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for on and off site auctions.   

Resolution #2007-03-089-E4b. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in the 

surplus auction process. (Goal II).  
 
Options: 
 
 To report final results of April 2007 Auctions to City management. 

 
 No action required 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:Agenda-Final Reporting-Mid-Thumb Auctioneer –April 07  

2 of 2 
 



 VEHICLE AUCTION REPORT 
 NUMBER MAKE MODEL YEAR AUCTION FEE AUCTION PRICE 
 949 FORD FORD CROWN VIC 01 $168.00 $2,800.00 
  
 956 FORD FORD CROWN VIC 03 $294.00 $4,900.00 
  

 TOTALS $462.00 $7,700.00 

 

 

Vehicles #949 & 956 were sold at Mid-Thumb Auctioneering Service on 4/28/2007. 
 

FINANCE: PLEASE CREDIT ACCOUNT # 6610.4693.100 GAIN/SALE OF DEPRECIATED FIXED 
ASSETS. 
 
  
 
                               TOTAL SALE:            $ 7,700.00 

 
                              AUCTION FEE (6%) $ -   462.00 

       $  7,238.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet  

 Friday, May 18, 2007 Page 1 of 1 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02c





























campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



S M T W T F S
1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

June 2007
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

July 2007June 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
June 1 2

3

4
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

5
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

7:30pm CANCELLED Historic 
District Study Comm

6
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

7
7:30am Civil Service 

Commission (Act 78) 
(Lower Level 
Conference Room)

1:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

8 9

10

11
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

12
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

13
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals (Special 
Meeting) (Lower Lev

12:00pm Employee's 
Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 

1:00pm Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Board (Con

14
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

15
7:30am Charter Revision 

Committee (Council 
Boardroom)

16

17

18
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

19
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

20
7:30am CANCELLED DDA 

Meeting (Conference 
Room Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

21
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

22 23

24

25 26
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm Historical Commission
(Museum Resource 
Room)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study Meetin

27 28 29 30

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

July 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

August 2007July 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun

July 1

2 3
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 
Resource Room)

4
City Hall Closed

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

5 6 7

8

9
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

10
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11
9:00am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

12:00pm Employee's 
Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 

12 13 14

15

16 17
3:00pm BRA Meeting (Council

Boardroom)
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)

18
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

19
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm Cable Advisory 
Committee 
(Conference Room C)

20 21

22

23
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

24
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

25 26 27 28

29

30
3:00pm LDFA Committee 

(Council Boardroom)

31



S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

August 2007
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

September 2007August 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
August 1

8:30am Building Code Board 
of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm City Council-Special 
Meeting-Chamber of 

2 3 4

5

6
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

7
7:30pm Historic District Study

Committee (Museum 
Resource Room)

8
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

9 10 11

12

13
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

14
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

16
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

17 18

19

20
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

21
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)

22
7:00pm Youth Council 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

23 24 25

26

27 28
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

29 30 31



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

May 28, 2007 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director   
 
SUBJECT:     Program Year 2007 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocation 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The City Council of the City of Troy approved the CDBG 2007 Application on November 13, 

2006.  
 
 The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) released the U.S. Census 

Low and Moderate Income Summary Data (MISD) updates for fiscal year 2007 that 
immediately affect Oakland County’s program year 2007 CDBG program.  

 
 Consequently, Oakland County has recalculated its program year 2007 CDBG budget and 

community allocations by applying the updates to the allocation method and formula authorized 
by the Oakland County Board of Commissioners. 

 
 The City of Troy’s low/moderate income Census Tracts/Block Groups for CDBG area benefit 

activities has remained the same.  
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The City of Troy’s program year 2007 CDBG revised allocation is $165,141. This figure is 

$1,175.00 lower than our planning estimate for the program year 2007. 
 
 The following adjustments to our program year 2007 application will be made to reflect the 

actual allocation amount. 
 

o Flood Drain Improvements  $ 92,641.00 
o Home Chore Program  $ 70,000.00 
o Administration   $   2,500.00 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



Policy Considerations: 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the residents through CDBG funding. (goal #1) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 06.18.07 – CDBG 2007 revised allocation 











 

 
 
June 6, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager – Finance and Administration 
    Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
    Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
  
 
SUBJECT:   Archiving City Council Meeting Webcasts on the Website 
 
Background: 

 
 Currently we webcast the City Council meetings while they are being shown live on our Cable 

Channel.  

 Residents and City Council Members have asked us to look into offering past webcasts on our 

website. 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There is no additional cost involved to accomplish, only additional staff time to archive the 

meetings the day after they are broadcast.  We have enough disk space to accommodate one 

year’s worth of meetings (approximately 14GB).   We can place them on the City Council web 

page. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 By expanding what is offered to our citizens electronically we improve the availability of 

information (Goal IV). 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 None 

       

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: June 11, 2007 

 

SUBJECT: Norma J. Robertson v. City of Troy 
 
 
 

Enclosed please find a copy of the Order Granting Summary Disposition to the 
City of Troy in the lawsuit filed against the City by Norma J. Robertson.  On June 6, 
2007, Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Rae Lee Chabot granted our motion.  The 
order dismissing this case in its entirety was signed on June 11, 2007.    
 

On January 10, 2006, Ms. Robertson fell on the public sidewalk in front of 392 
Hickory, in the City of Troy.  She filed this lawsuit against the City to recover for her 
injuries, which allegedly included a broken arm, mental anguish and severe 
embarrassment.   According to the complaint, the sidewalk was “unsafe and reasonably 
unfit”, due to a “raised portion of the sidewalk.”  She sought damages in excess of 
$25,000, which is the minimum amount for circuit court jurisdiction.    

 
At the earliest opportunity, we filed a motion for summary disposition, where we 

argued that the City is immune from liability in this case.  Under state statute, 
municipalities are provided with tort immunity, since they undertake to provide services 
that private entities are hesitant to provide, due to risk management concerns.  
Examples of these services include providing and servicing roads, sidewalks and 
recreational facilities, and providing police protection.  This immunity is not absolute, 
however, and may be pierced.  One exception to the broad grant of governmental 
immunity is the “highway exception.”  Under this exception a municipality may be liable if 
it has failed to maintain its roads (including sidewalks) in reasonable repair.  

 
In order to prevail against the City, Ms. Robertson needed to first prove that the 

City failed to keep its sidewalks in reasonable repair.  Under the state statute, a sidewalk 
is presumed to be in reasonable repair if discontinuities in the sidewalk are less than two 
inches.  Therefore, we attached photographs in support of our motion that showed that 
there was only a slight height difference between two flags in the sidewalk where Ms. 
Robertson allegedly fell.  This discontinuity was approximately one inch.  Ms. Robertson 
was unable to refute the presumption of reasonable repair, and therefore Judge Chabot 
granted the City’s motion for summary disposition.  In addition, Ms. Robertson had also 
failed to establish that the City had prior notice of any alleged defect in the sidewalk. 
There were no complaints about the sidewalk filed with either the Risk Manager or the 
Public Works Department.  In the Court’s opinion, the City of Troy was entitled to 
governmental immunity, and therefore the case was dismissed.  

 
If you have any questions, please let us know. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08







TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: June 12, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Hookah Cafes 
 

 
 

Over the past year, the Troy Police Department and Troy Community Coalition have 
received complaints about certain restaurants or cafes that are allowing under-aged persons 
to illegally smoke hookahs.  A hookah is a traditional Arabic water pipe used to smoke 
flavored tobacco.  Hookahs have traditionally been offered in Middle Eastern restaurants or 
coffee shops.  Over the last few years, hookahs have become increasingly popular with 
youth, and are being offered at wide variety of restaurants, cafes and nightclubs across the 
country.  Although sometimes marketed as a safe alternative to cigarette smoking, according 
to a 2005 World Health Organization study, hookahs have the same negative health affects 
typically associated with cigarettes – such as heart disease and cancer.    
   

The City currently has ordinances that prohibit persons under the age of 18 years 
from purchasing or using tobacco (Chapter 98, section 12.01).  In addition, Chapter 98, 
Section 12.2 prohibits a person from selling or furnishing tobacco to a person under the age 
of 18.  For each hookah complaint received so far, the Troy Police Department has 
investigated for possible violations of these two ordinance provisions.  Aggressive 
enforcement of Chapter 98, sections 12.01 and 12.02 will continue for all businesses and 
establishments that sell tobacco products operating in Troy.  However, given the continued 
popularity of hookahs with young people in Troy, City Council may want to adopt an 
ordinance requiring hookah cafes or other type of smoking lounges to apply for and obtain a 
license from the City.  By requiring a license, each prospective hookah or smoking lounge 
operator would be subject to an investigation and background check by City Staff, which 
would insure that only qualified persons operate these types of businesses.   

 
If Council is interested in pursuing such an ordinance, we are prepared to bring back a 

draft ordinance for a future City Council agenda.  Troy would be one of the first municipalities 
to adopt legislation specifically directed to hookahs or smoking lounges.   

 
If you have any questions please let us know.  

 
    

 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-09



 

 
June 13, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 

 
SUBJECT: Water Billing - June 2007  
 
 
 

Background 
 
The deadline for payment of the City of Troy water bills for District 3 normally due  
June 15th has been extended to July 15th.   Unfortunately, due to multiple errors on the 
part of the outside contractor who mails out the water bills, bills were sent out late.  To 
compound the problem, some of the reply envelopes included in the mailing are 
addressed to a New Mexico County Treasurer.  As a result, numerous residents have 
called to obtain information about what, when and how to pay for their current bills.  
 
A press release through the web, cable and newspaper was issued to residents 
notifying them of the deadline extension and to check that their return envelope is 
correctly addressed.  The correct lock box information was also disseminated. 
 
 
Option 
 
 No action required 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:Agenda-Report – Water Billing June 2007  
 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-10



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Discussion of the Futures Report 
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on 
items, which appear on the printed Agenda, will be 
allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon 
recognition by the Chair in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, during the 
Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. 
Other than asking questions for the purposes of gaining 
insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt or 
debate with members of the public during their 
comments. Once discussion is brought back to the 
Council table, persons from the audience will be 
permitted to speak only by invitation by Council, 
through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of 
the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you 
feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, 
you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the 
City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-99 PC



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
June 18, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
L-1 Closed Session:   

campbellld
Text Box
L-01


	AGENDA: June 18, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Service Commendation – Brian Stoutenburg
	Service Commendation – Neall Schroeder
	Proclamation in Recognition of Jack and Pearl Kotter on the 
	Proclamation Celebrating 30 Years Beaumont Hospital Troy – P
	Presentation of Check by the Historical Society Regarding Pu
	Presentation of Loss Control Award from the Michigan Municip


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Special Assessment Roll for Asphalt Paving of the Easter
	C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) 

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Partnership v. City of 
	D-2 Appointment to Boards and Committees: City Council Appoi

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):
	a\) Parks and Recreation Month – July, 2�
	b\) Beaumont Hospital Troy – Celebrating�
	c\) Jack and Pearl Kotter – 50th Anniver�

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: T�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Ma�
	e\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bi�
	f\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Be�

	E-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road 
	E-6 Fireworks Permit – Troy Daze Festival
	E-7 Private Agreement for Beaumont Critical Care – Project N
	E-8 Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Broomfield from Speci
	E-9 2006/07 Budget Amendment No. 2
	E-10 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptan
	E-11 Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions – Sou
	E-12 Private Agreement for The Village at Big Beaver – Phase

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Histo
	F-2 Bid Waiver – Sole Source Purchase – Chemical Munitions
	F-3 Bid Waiver – Sole Source – Irrigation Supplies
	F-4 Replacement of City Code Chapter 86 – Soil Erosion and S
	F-5 Appointment of Voting Delegate for the June 21, 2007 SEM
	F-6 2007 Part-time Wage Recommendations
	F-7 2007 Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Empl
	F-8 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services - SOCRRA
	F-9 Final Approval – The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit 

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	LMS – 5755 New King - Request for Industrial Development Dis

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Adult Use Businesses – Licensing Ordinance


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – March 6, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – May
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – May
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – May 2, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – May 22, 2007
	Personnel Board/Draft – May 29, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 6, 2007
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – June 7, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of May
	Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – Mid-Thumb Auctione
	City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – May 31, 2007

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Jennifer Lawson from Oakland University’

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richna
	J-7  Communication from Information Technology Director Gert
	J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding N
	J-9  Communication from City Attorney Lori Bluhm Regarding H
	J-10  Communication Regarding Water Billing Issues – June, 2

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Discussion of the Futures Report

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



